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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

B o

| herein present the results and operations of Zhuguang Holdings Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

RESULTS

The audited consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$938,643,000 and the basic loss per share was HK25.66 cents, as
compared to the consolidated profit of approximately HK$182,349,000
and basic earnings per share of HK6.48 cents for 2012.

NET ASSET VALUE

The consolidated net asset value per share attributable to the owners
of the Company as at 31 December 2013 was approximately HK$0.79
based on 4,224,118,458 shares in issue, as compared to approximately
HK$0.62 per share as at 31 December 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In line with the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Government’s
increasing rationalisation of its plan to promote urbanisation and its
measures to regulate the China’s real estate market, investors have
continuously adjusted and adapted their respective strategies and
direction to prevent significant fluctuations encountered by this sector in
the past. During the year, the Group actively responded to the market
changes and made timely adjustments to its development and sales
plan, focusing on the principle of operational stability and undertaken
an in-depth self-rehabilitation of its operations in many aspects and
achieved relatively satisfactory results.

The Group achieved a record high pre-sale performance of
approximately HK$1.6 billion, due to the launch of the modern and
stylish Zhujiang New Town Central Park and Zhuguang Yujing Scenic
Garden located in Conghua City. The results underpinned by new market
optimism consistent with the result of the outcomes of the Third Plenary
Session of the 18th Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
(the “Third Plenary Session”). All the signals indicate that China will focus
on ensuring long-term sustainability for its property market environment
for private developers. We confident that this is an opportunity for us to
aim for more growth and embarked on a number of steps in preparation
for rapid growth in the years to come. We have made our investments
carefully catching opportunities before significant rise in land price. This
will enable us to capture the benefits of future growth with a focus on
continuing our strong margin trends.
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PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

We believe we are approaching a mature phase of China’s property
market development which, in spite of ongoing challenges, offers
significant opportunities for the Group. In 2014, the Company will focus
on strengthening its sales efforts, quickening construction cycles and
improving inventory turnover. The Company will continue a prudent
expansion strategy by keeping pace with the national property market
and decision-making. We will select premium land to add to our land
bank and maximise distribution structure for existing coverage.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to adhere with national
development strategies and the macroeconomic environment to
select and develop property projects. Together with our fast growing
development, strong execution capabilities, continuously enhanced
product quality, committed to offering high value-for-money property
products and living experience, so as to bring continuous and
satisfactory returns for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our management team
and every staff member of the Group, the growth of the Group would
not have been possible without your dedication and contribution. We
would also like to express our appreciation to investors, customers and
business partners for their strong support and confidence in the Group.
The management and staff of the Group will continue to dedicate their
professional knowledge with excellent team spirit to overcome every
difficulty ahead so as to achieve more outstanding results.

Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2014

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

Hil 37 e

AEBERR - PEFEMETISEREEAKR
BRE - BERERNUE SR AEER
KEAEE - —T—F  ARAHEENM
WIHENE  MREEAMEREFEEAE
Ko ARBIRREEBEFEMEM S ZHRS
& - BEETTRERRRE LORKBIE - KE
BisEEE i - EIAREEZ TR
WBRICREXRGBEZ DIHERE -

RERR  AEERESIREEERRNE
W HERBHE IR B E AR EHEERR -
ERRBARIRER BTN RYMNERE
ERER AR ARETRBAORERYE
PrEZFIEERKEERR  EMES R
REERBOIFR -

X

AABRRESERFAKENETEEZ k2
BET  AKEKRBETHRM—EAKE
FHENESHER - AEETRORHRE
% BABEPEEBBHETAEENANX
FEEE - AEEEEELRERE THERN
BEEABLEGBRERRAYE  BRE S

élli’

2
RER
B8 —E-MFE=A=1H

®




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continued to focus on the property developments and sales
business, and property investments business in the PRC. The Group
achieved a record high of pre-sale performance of approximately
HK$1.60 billion, due to the launch of the Group’s modern and stylish
project in Zhujiang New Town, Central Park (formerly known as “Feili
Business Building”) in the second half of 2013 and Zhuguang Yujing
Scenic Garden, a residential project (“Yujing Scenic Garden”) located in
Conghua City. Both projects have successfully attracted a wide base of
customers during pre-sale.

The Group will continue to enhance its presence in Guangzhou and
nearby cities in the future. Projects acquired in 2012 and 2013 have
already commenced the relevant construction works and will provide a
sufficient land bank for the Group’s future development. With respect
to the projects acquired in 2012 and 2013, the Group has begun to
explore the opportunities in other tier-one cities and provincial capitals.
Subsequent to year ended 2013, the Group entered into various
agreements or memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) for potential
projects. If these projects are successfully acquired which will enable
the Group to accumulate additional saleable resources to sufficient its
business expansion.

In order to maintain a sustainable growth and developments, the Group
will continue to strengthen its cost control to improve the profitability,
and streamline its internal process to enhance operation efficiency, thus
laying a solid foundation for continuous growth in the future. To uphold
its brand image, the Group will also devise appropriate strategies for the
development and launch of new projects in the long-term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI i e 3 M

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Development and Sales

During the year, the Group’s total contracted sales amounted to
approximately HK$1,599,587,000 and contracted gross floor area
(“GFA”) amounted to approximately 125,526 square meters (“sgm”). The
aggregate contracted sales value for the year ended 31 December 2013
has already exceeded the target of the year. This solid performance has
put the Group in a good position in future. The details of contracted
sales of the Group are set out below:

EHME e

FR AEBEMNARBEEBENAR
1,599,587,000/ L+ & A EEEE L A
125526 F F Ke HHEZT—=F+= A
T+ —HLEFEMRTARBEEHEDBBATF
ERBEEZ - HEBEAREENARERETR
FER - AEBEESREENFBITOT

Contracted sales GFA sold
ERHEE CEEZEE
HK$'000 sgm
FAT FroK
Projects IEH

Yujing Scenic Garden = ILKIER
— Phase | — E—Hf 421,348 60,737
— Phase Il — % —Hj 453,313 52,946
Central Park BRI #TIk B p 724,926 11,843
1,599,587 125,526

Yujing Scenic Garden #15 LLI7KTEE

Central Park 3k 3¢ £t BES
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) G50 )
Property Development and Sales (continued) Ve B s ()
It is expected that the GFA of approximately 238,004 sqm is available for ~ Bt ZZ—UF Al HiEE TBEEREBEN A
sale/pre-sale in 2014, and the details are as follows: 238,004 F 77K  FHIEHIRAAT ¢
GFA available
Expected for sale
sale period AN E Usage
s E M EEmE Jizk=3
(sam)
(FFFK)
Yujing Scenic Garden — Phase | and Il, District | 1st quarter 46,196 Sale
8 ILAKTEE — - HRECRE R E—FE e
— Phase II, District Il 2nd quarter 85,722 Sale
— FHE & BFE HE
Pearl Yunling Lake (“Yunling Lake”) — Phase | 3rd quarter 43,004 Sale
Bt - EEH ((E8H)) o E=FH e
Zhukong International 1st quarter 50,270 Sale
ERIZE BB AR 0 E—FFE HE
Central Park 1st quarter 12,812 Sale

PR HTIE R F—FE HE

238,004
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI i e 3 M

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Development and Sales (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group owned seven property development
projects, and the details are as follows:

Nansha Scenic — 100% interest

Pearl Nansha Scenic (“Nansha Scenic”) is located at Jinzhou Main
Street, Nansha District, Guangzhou, the PRC, which is the central
business district in Nansha. With a site area of approximately 28,319
sgm, the project comprises ten 18-storey towers including residential
units, a street-level commercial podium and an underground car park,
with a GFA of approximately 104,530 sgm. The Phase | and Il of Nansha
Scenic were completed and delivered in 2012 and 2013 respectively.

Zhukong International — 80% interest

Zhukong International previously named as Hailian Building and is
located at Lot A2-1, Zhujiang New Town, Tianhe District, Guangzhou,
the PRC, which is at the junction of Guangzhou Avenue and Huang
Pu Da Dao. With a site area of approximately 10,449 sgm, the project
will be developed into a 35-storey high-rise commercial complex.
This will include a 6-storey commercial podium, a 29-storey Grade A
office building and a 3-storey underground car park, amounting to an
aggregate GFA of approximately 133,326 sgm. During the year, the
pre-sale permit was obtained and a sale and purchase agreement was
signed with PingAn Bank, Guangzhou Branch on 23 January 2014 to
sell in an aggregate GFA of approximately 39,803 sgm.

Yunling Lake — 100% interest

The Group acquired the “Pearl Yunling Lake” project in Fengyunling
in 2012. It is located at Provincial Highway S355 line at Jeikou Street,
Conghua, Guangzhou, the PRC, which is adjacent to the Fengyunling
Forest Park, and is the main transportation link between Conghua and
Guangzhou. The project site area is approximately 200,083 sgm, of
which approximately 139,182 sgm will be developed and the remaining
area reserved for public facilities. According to the latest design, the
project will be developed an integrated residential and resort complex,
comprising villas, low-rise apartment buildings and a boutique hotel.
The total GFA is expected to be approximately 124,521 sgm. The
development is divided into two phases, with Phase | comprising 57
villas and 5 apartment buildings with an aggregate GFA of approximately
43,004 sgm, and Phase Il comprising 28 villas, 3 apartment buildings
and a hotel, with an aggregate GFA of approximately 81,517 sgm. The
villas and apartment buildings will be available for sales upon completion,
whilst the hotel will be retained as a long-term investment asset under
the Group.

EHME e
VISERE IR R (#)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development and Sales (continued)
Yujing Scenic Garden — 70% interest

“Zhuguang Yujing Scenic Garden” was acquired by the Group in
2012, and is located at Provincial Highway G105 line at Jiulibu District,
Jiangpu Town, Conghua, Guangzhou, the PRC, which is well connected
via a number of highways to and from Guangzhou. The project is a
20-minute drive from the downtown Conghua and a 10-minute drive
from Wenquan Town, Conghua. The project site area is approximately
294,684 sgm and will be developed into a commercial and residential
complex, comprising residential and commercial buildings, service
apartments and car parks. According to the latest design, the total
GFA is expected to be approximately 886,216 sgm. The proposed
development will be divided into four phases. The Phase | will comprise
a GFA of approximately 225,027 sgm and certain units are expected to
be completed and delivered in 2014. The total GFA of Phase Il to IV is
approximately 661,189 sgm which is expected to be completed between
2016 and 2018.

Pearl Tianhu Yujing Garden — 100% interest

The Group successfully won the tender for the land use right of the land
lot situated at Shui Di Village, Jiulibu District, Wenquan Town, Conghua,
Guangzhou, the PRC, with a site area of approximately 55,031 sgm
in 2012. As the land is located adjacent to Yujing Scenic Garden, the
Group may consider developing the land together with Yujing Scenic
Garden and thus expand the Group’s development and presence in
Conghua. The project primarily named as “Pearl Tianhu Yujing Garden”
(“Tianhu Yujing”) and will be developed into a 32-storey modern
residential building with a total GFA of approximately 245,182 sgm. The
foundation works will be commenced in the second quarter of 2014
and the project is expected to be available for pre-sale in the first half of
2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BRI i e 3 M

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Development and Sales (continued)
Central Park — 100% interest

On 25 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with &JBELE 5HR/AE (Feng Shun Jia Rong Trading
Company Limited®) (“Jia Rong”) to acquire 100% of income right
of Jia Rong, which includes, but not limited to, the income arising
from the holding of the equity interest in BERZ8EEMEREAR
‘A A} (Guangdong Xilong Property Development Company Limited*)
(“Guangdong Xilong”). Guangdong Xilong is currently engaged in a
development project on a parcel of land at Lot H3-3, Zhujiang New
Town, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, the PRC, and is entitled to a total
GFA of approximately 36,559 sgm, which will be developed into a
30-storey tower including service apartments, a street-level commercial
podium and a 4-storey underground car park. The project is known as
“Central Park”. The Central Park is still under construction and certain
units were launched for pre-sale in September 2013, the other portions
of Central Park are available for pre-sale in the first quarter of 2014. It
is expected the whole Central Park to be completed in the first half of
2015.

Yunshan Yujing — 50% interest

On 12 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent vendor to acquire 50% equity interest
in Joygain Holdings Limited (“Joygain”). The principal project of Joygain
together with its subsidiaries is located at the east side of Baiyuan
Mountain, Guangzhou, the PRC which is a traditional high-end residential
and scenic area. With the site area of approximately 94,221 sgm will be
developed into high-end villas and apartments, and public facilities. Such
acquisition was accounted for as prepayments for acquisition of equity
interest as at 31 December 2013.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Investments

The Group owns certain floors of Royal Mediterranean Hotel (“Hotel”)
located at 518 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, the PRC, as
a leased property with GFA of approximately 34,592 sgm. During the
year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent purchaser to dispose of its entire interests in Rainbow
High Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Rainbow High Group”)
and Zhang Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Zhang Tong
Group”) which hold the 3rd, 4th and 6th floors of the Hotel with total
GFA of approximately 16,408 sgm. Such disposal is expected to be
completed before 30 June 2014. The Group will maintain certain portion
of investment properties in order to keep a steady income stream to the
Group.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

With urbanisation designated as a national priority coupled with the
increasing disposal income of Chinese consumers, the Group remains
cautiously optimistic on the outlook of the PRC real estate market. It
is expected that the demand for quality residential and commercial
properties in core districts will remain steady in the long-term. The
Group is confident that its upcoming projects, Zhukong International (a
commercial complex) and Central Park (a residential) in Zhujiang New
Town, Guangzhou, will firmly spearhead such demand in the market.
Blessed with a prime geographic location positioned within the city’s new
central business district, the two projects are scheduled for completion
in early 2015, respectively and are expected to generate lucrative sales
revenue for the Group in the coming years.

As construction costs and labour costs in the PRC are expected to
rise continuously in the coming year, the Group remains adamant in
improving its internal efficiency and has deployed strategic cost saving
initiatives on specific development projects during the year. Such
endeavours will ensure a healthy financial position for future development
and will better prepare the Group for any opportunities that may arise in
the market.

Leveraging on its strong business foothold and well-established brand
name in southern China, the Group’s development focus will remain in
Guangzhou and cities within its vicinity. As such, the Group is carefully
assessing the market environment to grow its land bank in the most
cost effective manner and will prudently select land sites with the utmost
development potential, so as to maximise investment returns. The Group
will also devise appropriate sales strategies for existing developments to
bring satisfactory returns to shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

The Group’s turnover included revenue from property sales and rental
income. The turnover of the Group for this year was approximately
HK$280,880,000 (2012: HK$571,167,000), which is 50% decreased
as compared to 2012. The decrease was mainly due to the amounts
of completed and delivered properties were less than 2012. Total area
delivered was approximately 38,984 sgm in 2013, a decrease by 40%
of GFA as compared to same the period in last year. Rental income also
recorded a slight decrease of 1% from approximately HK$81,407,000
in 2012 to approximately HK$80,340,000 in 2013, primarily due to
early termination of certain rental agreements and offset by an average
increase of 5% in rental from the second quarter of 2013.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group mainly refers to the costs incurred directly
from its property development activities, including construction cost, land
premium and interest capitalised.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a gross
profit of approximately HK$109,188,000, a decrease of approximately
50% as compared to the same period of 2012. It was mainly due to
current year recognition of revenue after the completion and delivery of
properties were much less than 2012.

Other income

The Group’s other income increased significantly to approximately
HK$72,176,000 (2012: HK$590,000), which was contributed by the
write-back of other payables and reversal of provision for contingent
liability of approximately HK$44,377,000 and HK$24,342,000
respectively.

Fair value gains on investment properties

Fair value gains on investment properties in 2013 was approximately
HK$120,625,000 (2012: HK$30,174,000), mainly due to continuous
rise in market value of the Group’s investment properties in Royal
Mediterranean Hotel which was brought about by positive market
conditions.

$4 5 o] g
e

AEEMNEEBREMEHEREMHESIK
A o REFEREE R E T A 280,880,000
HBIT (ZZ— 4 : 571,167,000/87T) &=
T—_F 0% - W THREZEHNEET
TR ERNMEREI R T ——F - =F
—=FERNHBEIEL /38,984 F 75K - &
EFRBRNEEEERL 40% c RZT—=
F HESWAIEZF — = 481,407,000
IR B T %1% £4980,340,0008 7T + =2
EHRETHEBRIETRIEMS  EH=F
—=FEFERS T EF5% T

B AR

AEEHERATREAREEZRAGYE
BRADMELHRA - BREZERAN - £t
HiEe REAMEFBE

sEvll

HE-_Z—=F4+_A=+—HItEE &K
EEEEENL A109,188,0008 T W=
——FRETEL50%  TZR2ARAFED
ERTUORNEERHRAR S ——FFE
TR o

H AN

REBEHE AU A KIE R E 472,176,000 75
T (ZZE—4 : 590,000/87T) + &= H Rl
Bl EMENRIBERERERABERED L
44,377,000 87T % 24,342,000 S TTATER ©

BE W Z AP

ZE—ZF2REVELRLTFERED
120,625,000/ 7T ( = ZF — =4 : 30,174,000
BiT)  EERAMISRAERM S AEER
AR ERERIE 2 IREYE s MSEERFEL
FHETER ©



FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses for the year 2013 was approximately
HK$44,371,000 (2012: HK$7,977,000), due to an increase in promotion
expenses incurred as a result of the pre-sale of Phase | and Il of Yujing
Scenic Garden and Central Park during the year.

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses of the Group significantly
increased to approximately HK$1,050,195,000 in 2013 from
HK$49,305,000 in 2012. It was primarily due to the fact that i) payment
of professional financial advisory services fee to an independent adviser;
ii) payment of land premium related charges and penalties; iii) additional
administrative expense incurred for the subsidiaries acquired by the
Group; iv) the impairment loss on prepayments for acquisition of 50%
equity interest in Joygain (The impairment loss was made by reference
to the estimated recoverable amount of the said prepayments. The
recoverable amount based on the fair value less costs of disposal was
estimated by reference to the business enterprise value of Joygain
carried out by an independent qualified professional valuer. The directors
are of the opinion that the impairment loss was mainly attributable to the
increase in the closing market price of the Company’s ordinary shares at
their issue date as compared to the price of HK$1.98 per consideration
share as stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement); and v)
additional staff costs incurred by the Group due to recruit more high-
calibre employees for key positions as strategic reservoir of personnel
that will satisfy the Group’s growing demand for human resources in the
foreseeable future.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year was approximately HK$209,756,000 (2012:
HK$108,851,000), which was made up of interest expenses incurred
during the year after deduction of the amount capitalised to development
costs. The significant increase was mainly due to additional borrowings
and the issues of the senior notes in the aggregate principal amounts of
US$200 million during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) JA %5 Il R ()
Income tax REY

Income tax comprised of corporate income tax (“CIT”) and land  FISMEFEHPBIDEMER ([REMER])
appreciation tax (“LAT”) in the PRC. Total income tax charged for ~ M EHIZEF ([ L IBEF]) - FAFTE
the year was approximately HK$3,815,000 (2012: HK$56,604,000). i 485t 49 &3,8150008 T (Z T — —F:
Substantial decrease in income tax was mainly due to write-back of 56,604,000 7T) ° FTSHIEE R D SRR F

over-provision of LAT approximately HK$22,315,000 during the year. (Bl R R B ) T b 3B (B 71 49 22,315,000 %
TURTER
Cash position Bl &K

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank and cash balances (including R Z_ZZ—=F+ZA=+—HB x&EEZ

restricted bank deposits) amounted to approximately HK$1,179,950,000  #R{T MBS &H (BEXZBRHRITEFEHR) &

(31 December 2012: HK$249,335,000). 1,179,950,0008 0 (ZE——F+_-_B=+—
B : 249,335,000/87T) °

Borrowings and charges on group assets i K S 4R B K

The Group’s bank and other borrowings comprise the following: REEMRITRAMERBEATEIE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Bank loans — secured RITER — FEM 1,226,482 1,129,800
Senior Notes — secured BEEE — BT 1,387,851 476,756
Other borrowings — secured Hibfgsk — BAHEM 1,931,595 —

4,545,928 1,606,556




FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Borrowings and charges on group assets (continued)

(1)

Bank loans

As at 31 December 2013, the bank loans were secured by the

following:

U

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

the Group’s investment properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$663,024,000;

the Group’s land use rights classified under prepaid land
lease payments and the construction in progress thereon
of approximately HK$51,356,000 and HK$16,447,000
respectively;

the Group’s properties for sale under development of
approximately HK$2,061,669,000;

the Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$13,555,000;

charge over the entire issued share capital of the
Company’s subsidiaries, Diamond Crown Limited,
Graceful Link Limited, Speedy Full Limited and
Guangdong Xilong;

assignment of all rental income from the Group’s
investment properties; and

corporate guarantees executed by BRIk EBAFR
A7) (Guangdong Zhuguang Group Company Limited*)
(“Guangdong Zhuguang”) and E R ¥ H £ B AR A
&) (Guangdong New Southern Group Company Limited*)
(“Guangdong New Southern”) and an independent third
party.

Guangdong Zhuguang is considered as a related
company of the Group as the ultimate controlling party of
the Company, Mr. Liao Tengjia, has significant influence in
Guangdong Zhuguang.

Guangdong New Southern is considered as a related
company of the Group as it is beneficially owned and
controlled by the executive director of the Company,
Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Mr. Zhu La Yi).

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) $4 %55 ol )
Borrowings and charges on group assets (continued) ik S AR B A A ()
(1) Bank loans (continued) ()  HUTEH (E)
During the year, the Group breached a financial covenant clause FRAEBRFTEEBAEZFAS
in relation to the maintenance of the consolidated net borrowings FEBREFHEYGES B FELEN
to consolidated tangible net worth ratio of the Group which BB RA  BYRTHREERRERE
contributes an early repayment option by the bank. Such bank ENEER - BERTEREBEY
loans in the total sum of approximately HK$192,112,000 are 192,112,000 TR —E—=F+=_H
reclassified as current liabilities as at 31 December 2013. The =T—HEFERRBAERE - RITI
bank did not request for the early repayment of the bank loans. B|ERRFEERRITER - RIEAH
Subsequent to the reporting date, the bank has agreed to waive % RITERBEMEZIREEENE
the early repayment option. o
(2)  Senior Notes 2)  EEEE
(@) Senior Notes | (a) BEERI
Pursuant to an investment agreement dated 6 December RIEHBHA-_ZT—F+=H
2011, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, NBZ&EEWZE  ARAzE
Zhuguang Group Limited (“ZGL”) issued secured and EMBARIKAEEBRA A
guaranteed senior notes in an aggregate principal amount ((HKAEE]) RZFT——F
of HK$500 million, interest-bearing at 15% per annum +ZAZ+—HRRERV)E
(the “Senior Notes I”) to Silver Prosper (BVI) Investments BERARETACSEA R
Limited on 21 December 2011. 500,000,000 7T 2 & H#H & B

ERELRE  E15% 2FH
TR (TEEZERE) -

The Senior Notes | are secured and guaranteed by: EBEZERI RN TSERTR R
R -

0] a second fixed charge over the entire issued (i) KRFIMBRAIKNE
share capital of the Company’s subsidiaries, ZGL, CHEERBRA A
Cheng Chang Holdings Limited and Fully Wise LEE2HREERRAA
Investment Limited (“Fully Wise”), being the holding (B8] WEEREGH
companies of Guangdong Hailian Building Co., RKEERAR ([ERE
Ltd* (“Guangdong Hailian”), and the related rights; B ]) 22k RE) 2%

HEBTRAZEZR
e RABRARER ;
(ii) 80% equity interests in Guangdong Hailian; (ii) BRI 2 80% fEa

* English name is translated for identification purposes only. BN ETHEMHT o



FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Borrowings and charges on group assets (continued)

(2)  Senior Notes (continued)

@)

Senior Notes | (continued)

(iii) security assignment of all of the rights and interests
in respect of certain intra-group loans; and

(iv) guarantee executed by the Company’s director,
Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi).

On 7 August 2013, the Group repurchased the entire
principal amount of the Senior Notes .

Senior Notes |l

Pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated 22 July
2013 together with certain supplemental agreements
thereto, the Company issued secured and guaranteed
senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$200
million (the “Senior Notes II”) to certain investors in 2013.
The Senior Notes I, due on 4 August 2016, are interest-
bearing at 12.5% per annum and interests are payable
semi-annually in arrears.

Concurrent with the issuance of the Senior Notes II,
nil-paid warrants (the “Warrants”) representing a total
aggregate amount of exercise moneys of US$40 million
(the exchange rate to be used for the purchase of HK$
with US$ shall be HK$7.8 per US$1.0) were granted
by the Company to these investors to subscribe for
137,499,449 ordinary shares of the Company at an
initial exercise price of HK$2.2691 per ordinary share
of the Company, which is subject to certain anti-dilutive
adjustments. The warrants are exercisable at any time up
to three years from 5 August 2013.
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A B Bl gR ()
K S SR B & AE G (@)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Borrowings and charges on group assets (continued)
(2)  Senior Notes (continued) 2  EEEE(E)

(o)  Senior Notes Il (continued) )  EBEEEIE)

The Senior Notes Il are secured and guaranteed by: BEERITIRATSEETR

1,200 million ordinary shares of the Company
owned by Rong De Investments Limited (“Rong
De’);

ER -

mEREABERAR
A meE) #E62
1,200,000,000 % 4 2 7]

L BPARLS

(i) 100% equity interest of the Company’s (i) AKRARATHEBARZ
subsidiaries: Top Perfect Development Limited 100% f& A%« B E

(i)

(iv)

(“Top Perfect”), Ever Crown Corporation Limited
(“Ever Crown”), East Orient Investment Limited
(“East Orient”) and Fully Wise;

corporate guarantees executed by Rong De, Top
Perfect, Ever Crown, East Orient, Fully Wise and
Zhuguang Group (Hong Kong) Limited; and

guarantees executed by the Company’s directors,
Mr. Liao Tengjia, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr.
Zhu Qing Yi) and Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Mr. Zhu
La Yi).

(i)

(V)

ERARRAR ([FEE] -
BEAXERAR (HE
Bl  2REEFERAQ
a(ER]) kEg
mE-FEBEE
R BEMKLER (B
) BRARRILZEE
R R

ARAEEERER
B REMEE (RER
BFELE) RRARZTRE
(RBRIUFFRE) EH
ZIER -



FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) JA %5 Il R ()

Borrowings and charges on group assets (continued) ik R B 4 L KA (550
(3)  Other borrowings 3)  HE
Other borrowings are secured and guaranteed by: EMERT R A TS IEER R IER

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

the Group’s properties for sale under development of
approximately HK$1,042,430,000;

charge over the assets provided by Guangdong Feng
Shun Lu Hu Hot Spring Resort Company Limited* (“Feng
Shun Lu Hu"), the registered capital of Feng Shun Lu Hu
was owned, as to 80% by Guangdong Zhuguang and as
to 20% owned by Guangdong New Southern;

corporate guarantee executed by related companies —
Guangdong Zhuguang, Guangzhou Zhuguang Property
Development Company Limited* (“Guangzhou Zhuguang
Property”), Beijing Zhuguang Property Development
Company Limited* (“Beijing Zhuguang Property”) and
Guangzhou Zhuguang Investment Company Limited*;

guarantee executed by the Company’s director, Mr. Chu
Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi);

corporate guarantee executed by a non-controlling
shareholder of Guangdong Hailian; and

entire equity interest in Guangdong Hailian.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
purchasers of the Group’s properties as follows:

AR R

AEBERAEBYEZETENRHRBER
MEE TRITE THIRIBREBE R TE
&

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET T
Guarantees given to banks for MEFERZIRBEREREE
mortgage facilities utilised MERITHREER
by purchasers 860,245 288,383

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there are any defaults on
the mortgages, the Group is responsible to repay the outstanding
mortgage principals together with accrued interests and penalties owed
by the defaulting purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal title and possession of the related properties. The
guarantees will be released upon issuance of the purchasers’ property
ownership certificates and completion of the relevant registration of the
mortgaged properties.

At the reporting date, the directors do not consider it probable that a
claim will be made against the Group under the above guarantees.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not material and is
not recognised in the financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OF THE
SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the Group had completed the acquisitions of the interest
of Jia Rong through Income Right SP Agreement dated 25 June 2013.
Pursuant to the Income Right SP Agreement, the Group acquired the
right to receive all the income arising from the business of Jia Rong.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15 July 2013
for details.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE

The Group conducts its business almost exclusively in RMB except that
certain borrowings are in HK$ and US$. The conversion of RMB into
HKS$, US$ or other foreign currencies has been based on the rates set
by the People’s Bank of China. The value of RMB against the HK$, US$
and other foreign currencies may fluctuate and is affected by factors
such as changes in the PRC’s political and economic conditions. The
Group has not adopted any financial instruments for hedging purposes.
However, the Group will constantly assess the foreign exchange risk it
encounters so as to decide on the hedging policy required against the
possible foreign exchange risk that may arise.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had approximately 119 employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: 80). They are
remunerated according to their respective job nature, market conditions,
individual performance and qualifications. Other staff benefits include
annual bonus.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HERERBEEENE G

The Board currently comprises seven directors, four of whom are
executive directors and three of whom are independent non-executive
directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Zhu Qing Yi), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
September 2009. In February 2010 he was appointed as the Deputy
Chairman of the Company. In December 2013, he was appointed as
the Chairman of the Company and continues to serve as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Chu is a shareholder of Rong De
Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Chu
has over 10 years’ extensive experience in corporate management and
property development in the PRC. He is the younger brother of Mr. Chu
Muk Chi, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Zhu La Yi), aged 56, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company since September 2009. Mr. Chu is a
shareholder of Rong De Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Medicine from
Guangzhou College of Traditional Chinese Medicine (now known as
Guangzhou University of Traditional Chinese Medicine). Mr. Chu has
over 10 years’ extensive experience in corporate management, Chinese
medicine and property development in the PRC. He is the elder brother
of Mr. Chu Hing Tsung, the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive director of the Company.

Mr. Liao Tengjia, aged 50, was appointed as the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company from September 2009 to December
2013. In December 2013, Mr Liao would no longer concurrently act
as the chairman of the Company. Mr. Liao is a shareholder and sole
director of Rong De Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. He has over 10 years’ management experience in the
property development industry in the PRC.

Mr. Huang Jia Jue, aged 43, was appointed as an executive director
and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since September 2009.
Mr. Huang obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
Sun Yat-Sen University in the PRC. He has over 10 years’ financial
management experience in the property development industry in the
PRC.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Wo Ping Jr, aged 70, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since October 2009. Mr. Leung
is a certified public accountant with extensive experience in Hong Kong
tax and international tax planning for over 30 years. Currently, he is
a senior advisor to Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited. Mr. Leung is a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Apart from his professional work,
Mr. Leung has actively participated in community affairs. He had been
a Regional Councillor for 5 years and a District Councillor for 18 years.
Mr. Leung is currently a Councillor of the New Territories Heung Yee Kuk.
He also serves as members of various boards and committees, including
the Hospital Authority’s Hospital Governing Committee of Tai Po Hospital
and United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service Management
Committee. Mr. Leung was awarded a Badge of Honour by Her Majesty
Queen Elizabeth Il in 1994 for his service to the community. He was
a District Advisor to the Hong Kong Branch of Xinhua News Agency
before 1997. He was also appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2000.
Mr. Leung is an independent non-executive director of Heng Xin China
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8046), which is listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since June 2012.
Mr. Law holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting and is a member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Law was active
in direct investment in the PRC. Prior to that, he held senior positions in
investment banking with major international investment banks in Hong
Kong. Mr. Law was an executive director of Soluteck Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8111, now known as China Technology Solar Power
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Wong Chi Keung, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since June 2012. Mr. Wong has
over 34 years of experience in finance, accounting and management.
He is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and CPA Australia, and an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a Responsible Officer
for asset management, advising on securities and advising on corporate
finance for Greater China Capital Limited under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong holds a master’s degree in
business administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia. Mr.
Wong was an executive director, the deputy general manager, group
financial controller and company secretary of Guangzhou Investment
Company Limited (stock code: 0123, now known as Yuexiu Property
Company Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, for over ten years. Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of each of Asia
Orient Holdings Limited (stock code: 0214), Asia Standard International
Group Limited (stock code: 0129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0355), China Nickel Resources Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 2889), China Ting Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3398), EMN Holdings Limited (stock code: 0128), Golden Eagle
Retail Group Limited (stock code: 3308), Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0332), PacMOS Technologies Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1010), Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 0617),
Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited (stock code: 0078) and
TPV Technology Limited (stock code: 0903). All of these companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is also
an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of First Natural Foods Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1076) for the
period 26 November 2007 to 21 November 2013 (as all the resumption
conditions have been fulfilled, the provisional liquidators have been
discharged by an order granted by the High Court of HKSAR on 4
September 2012), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of
FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings Limited (stock code: 1175,
provisional liquidators appointed) for the period from 22 November 2004
to 24 June 2011, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The four directors of the Company holding executive offices above are
directly responsible for the various business of the Group. They are
regarded as the members of the senior management of the Group.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Company firmly believes that a good, solid and sensible
framework of corporate governance will enhance the Company to run its
business in the best interest of its shareholders as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) during the year ended 31 December 2013, other than code
provisions A.2.1 and A.4.2, of the CG Code.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code (appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules) stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be the same individual. As a
result of the appointment of Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi)
(“Mr. Chu”) as the chairman of the Board, Mr. Chu will assume the roles
of both the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board believes that vesting both the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions.

Under code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every director should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the chairman of the
Board of the Company shall not be subject to retirement by rotation or
taken into account in determining the number of directors to retire. As
continuation is a key factor to the successful long term implementation
of business plans, the Board believes that the roles of the chairman
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow more
effective planning and execution of long-term business strategy. As
such, the Board is of the view that the chairman of the Board should not
be subject to retirement by rotation.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding

securities transactions by directors. Special enquiry has been made to all

directors, and all directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

II

The Responsibilities of The Board

The principal functions of the Board are to consider, set and
approve the strategies, financial objectives, annual budget,
investment proposals, director appointment and re-appointment,
and accounting policies of the Group. The Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance functions set out in
D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s
business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. The day-to-day operations of the Group are
delegated to the management of the Group.

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2013, the Board consists of a total of
seven directors, comprising four executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. The independent non-
executive directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of directors of the
Company. The number of independent non-executive directors
exceeds one-third of the Board. The directors have professional
background in property development, finance, taxation,
investment and management, respectively. They have extensive
experience and independent views in their respective areas of
expertise so that they can provide professional advice in respect
of the long-term development of the Company. The Company
has formal letter of appointment for all directors setting out the
key terms and conditions relative to their appointment.
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The composition of the Board of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2013 and up to the date of this report was
as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Mr. Zhu La Yi)

Mr. Liao Tengjia

Mr. Huang Jia Jue

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Leung Wo Ping uP

Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

The Company’s Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and executive
director, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung and the executive director, Mr.
Chu Muk Chi are brothers. Biographical details of the directors
and the relationship between Board members are set out in the
section headed “BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” of this annual report. Save as disclosed
above and in the “BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT” section of this annual report, none of the
directors of the Company has any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with one another.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, every listed issuer
is required to have at least three independent non-executive
directors, at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Throughout the year, the Board at all
times fully complied with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules that
at least one of the independent non-executive directors has
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.
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III. Directors’ Liability Insurance Cover

Appropriate directors’ liability insurance cover has been arranged
to indemnify the directors of the Company for liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under
the policy are to be reviewed regularly.

BOARD MEETING AND ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular circumstances.
Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company Secretary as
delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed to the Board
members within reasonable time before the meetings. Relevant meeting
papers are also sent to directors well before the meetings, informing
them of the background and giving explanation on matters to be brought
before the Board. All directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agendas for Board meetings. Draft and final versions of
the minutes of Board meetings are sent to all directors for their comment
and records, respectively, within a reasonable time after the board
meeting and are kept by the Company Secretary.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and 18
Board meetings were held to consider, among other things, various
transactions contemplated by the Group, and to review and approve the
interim results and annual results of the Group. To ensure the directors
to make decisions objectively and in the interests of the Company,
Bye-Laws No.103(1) of the Company provides that any director shall
abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he or his associates is/
are materially interested nor be counted in the quorum of the meeting.
Any Board meeting in which a director was abstained from voting nor be
counted in the quorum of the meeting shall not be taken into account in
determining that director’s attendance record.

The Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of the Remuneration Committee, members of the Nomination
Committee and the Company’s external auditor all attended the 2013
annual general meeting (“2013 AGM”) and were available to answer
questions.
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The individual attendance of each director in these Board meetings and
the 2013 AGM is as follows:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

HERE / GEREBERE
Board 2013 AGM
meetings —F—=F
EEgER BEREAEXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Chu Hing Tsung KEMREAE 13/18 0/1
Mr. Chu Muk Chi SARZ A 5/18 11
Mr. Liao Tengjia BERE 16/18 0/1
Mr. Huang Jia Jue =HEELEE 18/18 1/1
Independent Non-Executive BUFHITES
Directors
Mr. Leung Wo Ping Jp RFNF AT 3/18 1/1
Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph ERIE A 5/18 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung EREAE 4/18 1/1

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-
election. Each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company was appointed for a term of two years. All of the independent
non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every
three years and should be subject to re-election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code (appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules) stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be the same individual. As a
result of the appointment of Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi)
(“Mr. Chu”) as the chairman of the Board, Mr. Chu will assume the roles
of both the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board believes that vesting both the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decisions.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director has been given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment. A package, which has
been compiled and reviewed by the Company’s legal advisers, setting
out the duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules,
the Companies Ordinance and other related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong is provided to each newly
appointed director.

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the CG Code, directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. All directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses to ensure that they are fully aware of the
responsibilities and obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, all directors should
provide their records of continuous professional development to the
Company. According to the records provided by the directors, the
training received by them during the year 2013 is summarised as follows:
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Training received

Bz 2z
Notes
Lz
Executive Directors HITEFE

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung KEMEAE M@
Mr. Chu Muk Chi RRZ Tt M@
Mr. Liao Tengjia BESLE M@
Mr. Huang Jia Jue EEBLE M@

Independent Non-Executive BUFBITEE

Directors

Mr. Leung Wo Ping Jp PA IR e e @)
Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph B ERE ©)
Mr. Wong Chi Keung = 2EAEE (M2)(G)



Notes:

(1) Reading guidelines for directors issued by the Companies Registry of
Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

2) Watching webcast on corporate governance addressed by the Listing
Division of the Stock Exchange.

Q) Participation in continuous professional development seminars/
conferences/ courses/workshops on subjects relating to directors’ duties,
corporate governance and other relevant topics organized by professional
bodies.

The directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the CG
Code effective on 1 April 2012 on directors’ continuous professional
development.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three specialised committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The
three committees are established with defined written terms of reference
approved by the Board, which set out the committees’ major duties.
These are now posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
of the Company and are available to shareholders. Members of these
committees mainly are independent non-executive directors. The list of
the Chairman and of members of each committee is set out in each of
the following Board committee section. The meeting procedures follow
the statutory procedures for Board meetings.

The committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and in appropriate circumstances, the Company can retain
external auditors, financial advisers and lawyers and other relevant
independent professionals to provide independent professional advice to
assist members of the committees in fulfilling their responsibilities.

I Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1999 with
specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirement of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its
authority and duties.

The current members of the Audit Committee include three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Leung Wo Ping Jr,
Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph and Mr. Wong Chi Keung. Mr. Leung
Wo Ping Jp is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(1)

The Audit Committee is to consider, and to make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the audit fee and other
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of its resignation or dismissal; to review and monitor the external
auditor’s independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable standards; to
discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences
in respect of the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

to review the procedures of financial reporting, internal control
and risk management, and ensuring that management has
discharged its duty to establish an effective internal control
system; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, and material
queries raised by the external auditor to management in respect
of the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control as well as management’s response to the points raised;
to ensure that the Board responds promptly to the matters raised
by the external auditor in the management letter.

The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditor without the

presence of executive directors to discuss the Group’s financial reporting

and any major and financial matters arising during the year under review

at least twice a year.
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The Audit Committee met twice in 2013. Individual attendance of each
committee member is set out as below:
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Attended/
Eligible to attend
HERE / GEREHERE

Mr. Leung Wo Ping Jp (Chairman) RIF e Fwtr (FE)
Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph RS
Mr. Wong Chi Keung mZEEE

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee
has met with the external auditor 2 times to discuss the general
scope of their audit work and the audit findings. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the Group’s annual audited results for the year ended
31 December 2012 and unaudited interim results for the period ended
30 June 2013 and was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and requirements
and that adequate disclosures had been made and submitted them
to the Board for approval. In addition, the Audit Committee also made
evaluation on the effectiveness of the financial reporting, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group.

II Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
September 2005 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirement of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the approach under code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code and made recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure for the
remuneration of directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises an executive director,
Mr. Huang Jia Jue and two independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph and Mr. Wong Chi Keung. Mr. Wong
Chi Keung is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee

are as follows:

(1)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

to determine with delegated responsibility and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payment (including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment);

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with relevant contractual terms and otherwise
fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct
to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms
and otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee met once in 2013. Individual attendance

of each committee member is set out as below:
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Attended/
Eligible to attend
HERS/ GERUEBERH

Executive Director BITEE

Mr. Huang Jia Jue =HEEBLEE
Independent Non-Executive Director BUFHITESE
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Chairman) B E ()
Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph RS A

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the
remuneration package for the independent non-executive directors
whom the Board intended to appoint. It also reviewed the overall
remuneration policy of the Group and recommended to the Board the
salaries and bonus of the executive directors, the independent non-
executive directors and certain members of senior management.

III Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee in
September 2005 with specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirement of the Stock Exchange which
deal clearly with its authority and duties.

The Nomination Committee comprises an executive director,
Mr. Huang Jia Jue and two independent non-executive directors,
Mr. Leung Wo Ping up and Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph. Mr. Law
Shu Sang Joseph is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are
as follows:

(1) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

2) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;
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3) to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and

4) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Nomination Committee adopts certain criteria and
procedures in the nomination of new directors. The major criteria
include the candidates’ professional background, especially their
experience in the industry of the Group’s business; their financial
management experience and past track record with other similar
companies; and the recommendations from the management
team and other knowledgeable individuals. The Nomination
Committee will shortlist the candidates and then submit to the
Board for final approval.

The Nomination Committee met once in 2013. Individual
attendance of each committee member is set out below:
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Attended/
Eligible to attend
RE/ EEBEERE

HITEE
HEBKE

Executive Director
Mr. Huang Jia Jue

Independent Non-Executive Director B IEHITEE
ERESE (EE)
BT E AT+

Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Wo Ping urP

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board, considered
the suitability of the appointment of individuals nominated for
directorship, assessed whether the independence of independent
non-executive directors complied with the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules, and the suitability of the re-election of the
directors who were subject to retirement and re-election at the
annual general meeting.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interest. The Board conducts regular review of the Group’s internal
control system.

The system includes a well-established organisational structure with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority, which is designed to
safeguard assets from inappropriate use, maintain proper accounts and
ensure compliance with regulations. Executive management is directly
responsible for implementing the strategy and policies adopted by the
Board, and for all the Group’s activities.

In 2013, the Company strengthened the internal control and risk
management by adjusting certain critical business processes of the
Group. The management team in-charge mainly focused on the
improvement of the management system and workflow in the aspect of
financial management and thus making the internal controls procedures
in these areas more systematic and more effective.

During the year, the Group carried out an internal audit with the purpose
1o assess the effectiveness and to identify the related risks of the internal
controls system of the Group, and to provide an independent appraisal
of the Group’s financial and operational activities. The findings of the
internal audit were reported to the Audit Committee and the senior
management concerned. Relevant personnel were responsible to follow
up with the corrective actions on the report to ensure that all issues have
been satisfactorily resolved.

The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal controls by considering
reviews performed by the Audit Committee, executive management and
external auditor. The Board believes that the present internal control
system is adequate and effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate governance
practices relevant to the model and growth of its business. In order to
achieve a right balance between governance and performance, the
Board is responsible for introducing and proposing relevant principles
concerning corporate governance so as to enhance the standard of
corporate governance of the Company. The Board is responsible for
performing the corporate governance functions set out in D.3.1 of the
CG Code and has established the following corporate governance duties
to serve this purpose:

—
—

) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

2) review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3) review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

4) review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

There was no meeting held by the Board in respect of corporate
governance functions during the year ended 31 December 2013.
However, the Company has from time to time provided updated
information to the directors and management on the relevant rules and
regulations relating to corporate governance, ensuring that they have a
proper understanding of the latest development of the best corporate
governance practice.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, RSM
Nelson Wheeler, is set out as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and that judgement and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable.

In respect of code provision C.1.3 of the CG Code, directors are not
aware of material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor on the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages
58 to 59.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company treats all shareholders equally and ensures that
shareholders’ rights are protected and every convenience is provided
to exercise their rights in many ways that they should receive. The
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company sets out
the rights of our shareholders.

(1) Rights and procedures for shareholders to convene
special general meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws No0.58, shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company and carrying the right of voting at general meetings may
request the Company to convene a SGM by sending a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary. The objects
of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition. The
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the Company Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong Office
at Room 5702-5703, 57/F., Two International Finance Centre, 8
Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong. Before convening the SGM
of the Company, the request will be verified with the Company’s
Share Registrar in Bermuda or the Hong Kong branch Share
Registrar with their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order.
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2)

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, i.e. shareholders holding not
less than one-twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company,
may themselves convene a meeting in accordance with the
requirements and procedures set out in Sections 74(3) and 74(4)
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended), but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Rights and procedures for shareholders to make
proposals at general meetings

(i) Rights and procedures for proposing a person for
election as a director at a general meeting are as

follows:

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws No0.88, no person,
other than a retiring director, shall, unless recommended
by the Board of directors for election, be eligible for
election to the office of director at any general meeting,
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected including
that person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, shall have been lodged at
the Company’s Hong Kong Office at Room 5702-5703,
57/F., Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street,
Central, Hong Kong, or at the Hong Kong branch Share
Registrar provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such notice is given, shall be at least 7 days
before the date of the general meeting.

If the notice is submitted after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election, the
period for lodgment of such notice shall commence on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.

If the notice is received less than 10 business days prior to
the date of such general meeting, the Company will need
to consider the adjournment of such general meeting in
order to allow shareholders 14 days’ notice (the notice
period must include 10 business days) of the proposal.
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(it)

The procedures for shareholders to propose for election
as a director is posted on the Company’s website
(www.zhuguang.com.hk).

Rights and procedures for proposing resolution to be
put forward at a general meeting are as follows:

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 (as amended), (i) shareholders
holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, is entitled
to request the Company to give shareholders notice of
a resolution which is intended to be moved at the next
annual general meeting (“AGM”) or SGM. A written notice
to that effect signed by the requisitionists with contact
information must be deposited at the Company’s Hong
Kong Office at Room 5702-5703, 57/F., Two International
Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong.
(addressed to the Company Secretary). The notice shall
contain, inter alia, a description of the proposed resolution
desired to be put forward at the meeting, the reasons for
such a proposal and any material interest of the proposing
shareholder in such a proposal. The request will be
verified with the Company’s Share Registrar in Bermuda
or the Hong Kong branch Share Registrar and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the
resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholders
concerned at AGM or SGM varies according to the nature
of the proposal, details are as follows:

o At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must
include 10 business days) in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company
in SGM.

(ii)
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o At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must
include 20 business days) in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company
in AGM or a special resolution of the Company in
AGM or SGM.

In the event of failure in serving the notice to the Company by the
requisitionist within reasonable time, the Company reserves the
right to claim from the requisitionist any expenses incurred by the
Company in serving the notice of the resolution and circulating
the statement given by that requisitionist to all shareholders in
accordance with the requirements under the Listing Rules (unless
the Company otherwise resolves).

The rights and procedures for proposing resolution to be put
forward by shareholders at a general meeting is posted on the
Company’s website (www.zhuguang.com.hk).

(3) Procedures to send enquiries to the Board

Any enquiry is welcome to be presented to the Board by
shareholders and any proposal relating to the business, strategy
and management of the Company is welcome to be presented at
general meeting for review and discussion. It can be submitted in
writing with contact information and deposited at the Company
Secretary at the Company’s Hong Kong Office at Room 5702-
5703, 57/F., Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street,
Central, Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Ng Hoi Leung, Leo confirmed
that he had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AND
BYE-LAWS

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws. An up-to-date version
of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws is available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and of the
Company (www.zhuguang.com.hk).
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders. Information in relation to the Company is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels, which
include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such
published documents together with the latest corporate information are also
made available on the website of the Company (www.zhuguang.com.hk).

The AGM of the Company provides a useful platform for shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board and
the Chairman of each committee are available at the AGM to answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor is also available
at the AGM to assist the directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders. To ensure the Board is maintaining an on-going dialogue
with shareholders, shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM
or other general meetings of the Company. The AGM notice is sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM. The notice
is also published on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and of the Company (www.zhuguang.com.hk). Separate resolutions are
proposed at the general meetings on each substantially separate issue.
A shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend
and vote on his behalf. All resolutions put forward at shareholders’
meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll
voting results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
of the Company immediately after the relevant general meetings.

To ensure effective communication with the shareholders, the Company
highly values any opinion from shareholders. Comments and suggestions
are welcomed and can be addressed to the Company by mail to
the Company’s Hong Kong Office at Room 5702-5703, 57/F., Two
International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong.
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The directors herein submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the performance of the Group by principal activities is set
out in note 9 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year 2013 (2012: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five year financial summary of the Group is set out on page 181.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Group are set out in the financial statements on
pages 60 to 180.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year is set out in the
financial statements on page 64.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, computed in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) was nil (2012: HK$746,494,000).

DONATIONS

No donations were made to charities by the Group during the year (2012:
nil).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year is set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements. Particulars of investment
properties of the Group are set out on page 182.

INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of properties for sale under development and
properties held for sale. Movements in inventories of the Group during
the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements. Particulars of
the properties of the Group are set out on pages 182 to 184.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2013 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.
Particulars of the finance lease payables of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

Interest capitalised by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$96,965,000 (2012: HK$8,309,000). Details of which
are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note 48 to
the financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information on turnover and purchases attributable to the major
customers and suppliers of the Group for the year is as follows:

FREP LA E

AEETERFP REEARAEREEREEZ
EBARBZHBOT

2013 2012
—E-= —E-CF
% %

Turnover =L
The largest customer BAEP 29 14
Five largest customers in aggregate ~ A AR F#A%E 31 18

Purchases REE

The largest supplier BAHIER 28 31
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR ER AR 80 81

None of the directors and their associates or any shareholder (who to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had interest in the above customers and suppliers at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi)
Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Mr. Zhu La Yi)

Mr. Liao Tengjia

Mr. Huang Jia Jue

Mr. Leung Wo Ping JrP*

Mr. Law Shu Sang Joseph *

Mr. Wong Chi Keung *

* Independent non-executive director

Mr. Chu Muk Chi, Mr. Liao Tengjia and Mr. Leung Wo Ping Jp* will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with Bye-Laws No.87 of the Company and being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51 (B) of the Listing Rules, there are changes in
the information required to be disclosed pursuant to paragraph (a) to
(e) and (g) of Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules during the course of the
directors’ term of office. Mr. Wong Chi Keung, an independent non-
executive director of the Company, is also an independent non-executive
director of First Natural Foods Holdings Limited (“First Natural Foods”,
Stock Code: 1076), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He resigned as independent non-executive director with
effective form 21 November 2013.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that need to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the directors’ emoluments and those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set
out in note 14 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS

IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors or chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares (as the case may be) of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which was required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
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any such director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have under

such provisions of the SFO) or which was required to be entered into

the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section

352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

as contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules:

(1) Interest and short position in shares

Name of director

Pl 2 ZE G ERLRRER 2w MR

B HBRERE 7 M ERMIF 352 R A

BMARBFEZELMzEmlURR AR

TJ%J:miEQ'JBﬁﬁ?-T-Fﬁ%EZJ:m 7§$Lﬂ.ﬁ

FR HHEESTH (MRESTR) MEgARQ
KB P2 B2 EJZJU@ZZDT

(i) B ZHERRRIRE

Approximate
percentage

Total number of total

of the Company Nature of interest of shares issued shares
LEET

BRHREZ

KARESHE BEHE Bz 4 288 BMAaE L
Mr. Liao Tengjia Interest of a controlled 2,470,018,000 (L) 58.47% (L)
BRERE corporation 174,528,079 (S) 4.13% (S)

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung
PN

pifas

SRS 2 s

Interest of a controlled
corporation

AR HEE 2 s

(L) Long position
(S) Short position

Note:

Rong De Investments Limited (“Rong De”) is legally and
beneficially owned as to 36.00% by Mr. Liao Tengjia and as to
34.06% by Mr. Chu Hing Tsung. Mr. Liao Tengjia and Mr. Chu
Hing Tsung are deemed to be interested in the 2,470,018,000
shares beneficially owned by Rong De under the SFO. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, among the shares held by
Rong De, (i) 458,000,000 shares, 465,000,000 shares and
1,200,000,000 shares have been pledged by Rong De to # E
EMEEBTERMARAR (BRE) » A ([HEER]),

Shoreline Value 1, Limited (“Shoreline”) and The Bank of New
York Mellon, Hong Kong Branch (“BNY HK”) and Shoreline has
the right to convert the loan secured by the said 465,000,000
shares into 70,528,079 shares pursuant to the relevant loan
agreement; and (ii) pursuant to the stock borrowing agreement
entered into between Rong De and Senior Note Investors
(“Note Investors”), the Note Investors have the right to borrow
104,000,000 shares in aggregate from Rong De.

2,470,018,000 (L)
174,528,079 (9)

58.47% (L)
4.13% (S)

L) 4FE
(S) KA
MizE . mEREARAR ([RE]) 558
BREELERKEMELES
Tﬁtﬁse 00% }%34.06% 1 7 © 1R %

BERBEGN BEEEER
%Fﬁﬁ FEUERARNBEE R
A 2 2,470,018,000 J& B 15 7+ %
EEZ - BESHAN RuEH
B 2 B 5 () 458,000,000 %
465,000,000 f% % 1,200,000,000 A%
BROEBRESHERTHEZER
EEETERNAERLAA (ERE)
AR ([ EZEg]) - Shoreline
Value 1, Limited ([ Shoreline!) &
The Bank of New York Mellon, Hong
Kong Branch ([BNY HK]) + BiRi%
WS Z W Shoreline B 115 +
il 465,000,000 % B% 7 FT I8 30 2 &
e 570,528,079 B IS ¢+ (i)
REREREBLEAZRRESR (25
TEE]) Bl 2 BRBE - BmEE

FEIR1ZE &4 104,000,000 A&
f&15 o

EE#



(ii) Interest in shares of the Company’s associated (i) AR ) RF B I e Ay Z M 2
corporation

Approximate
percentage

of total issued
share capital

Name of director Name of associated Total number of the associated

of the Company corporation Nature of interest of shares corporation

fh R Ek

EEC T

BAEEZ

ARREEHA HEEE A BEEE EAEE BAEsIt

Mr. Liao Tengjia Rong De Beneficial owner 71,992 36.00%
BRELE B ERHAA

Mr. Chu Hing Tsung Rong De Beneficial owner 68,120 34.06%
KREMEE BhiE ERHEAA

Mr. Chu Muk Chi Rong De Beneficial owner 59,888 29.94%
RARZ %4 B ERHAA

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS #EHRAEHIZHESL

Save as disclosed in notes 25(b)(i) and 46 to the financial statements, B T A B 7 R K B Rk 25(0)() M 46 4 55 & A
no other contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its ~ RAFAE(ARE - BEERESFTNA AR
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material interest ~ EERMEB AR 2 EtEBRE N EE
subsisted, either directly or indirectly at any time during the year. SRR EE RN ERD °
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COMPETING INTERESTS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year and as at
31 December 2013, Mr. Liao Tengjia and Mr. Huang Jia Jue, the
executive directors of the Company, were interested as directors in
companies that are engaged in the businesses of property development,
investment and property rental in the PRC (the “Competing Businesses”).
As such, they were regarded as being interested in such Competing
Businesses, which competed or might compete with the Group.
However, as the above directors cannot control the Board, and a
director who has material interest in a subject matter to be resolved will
abstain from voting in the Board meeting concerned, the interests of
the above directors in the Competing Businesses will not prejudice their
capacity as director nor compromise the interests of the Group and the
shareholders.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors or any of their
respective associates of the Company were interested in any business
apart from the Company’s business, which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, as far as the directors were aware, the
following persons (other than the directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO and required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as
follows:

W i
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REREEEK TR AR RF BT E
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2 MEYRFRETEEEAFZNES
HRESFEEZELRERS Bt - billES
ERFEBRNERS I EEIFRAESN S
DRBEREBMIE R FIE o

B EXHES  MEEFEREFEANBEA
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Number of
Name of Nature of Number of Approximate underlying Approximate
shareholder Notes interest ordinary shares percentage shares percentage
REEE i3 BHME LiERYE BHENI HERBEE BB
Rong De 1 Beneficial owner 2,470,018,000 (L) 58.47% — -
e BEEEAA 174,528,079 (S) 4.13%
Central Huijin Investment 2,34 Interest of a controlled 1,303,874,862 (L) 30.87% 58,437,266(L) 1.38%
Limited (“Central Huijin") corporation 103,874,862 () 2.46% 58,437,266(S) 1.38%
RRESREBREMAF RIFHEE 2 a
([HhfER])
Agricultural Bank of China 2 Interest of a controlled 1,231,200,000 (L) 29.15% 41,249,834() 0.98%
Limited (“ABCL”) corporation 31,200,000 (S) 0.73% 41,249,834(S) 0.98%
RERERITRDERAR RIFHEE 2 a
(THhEREHT])
ABC International Holdings 2 Interest of a controlled 1,231,200,000 (L) 29.15% 41,249,834() 0.98%
Limited (*ABCIH”) corporation 31,200,000 (S) 0.73% 41,249,834(S) 0.98%
ERERERERAT] RIFHEE 2 Ea
(TRIFER])
ABCI Investment Management 2 Interest of a controlled 1,231,200,000 (L) 29.15% 41,249,834() 0.98%
Limited (“ABCIIM”) corporation 31,200,000 (S) 0.73% 41,249,834(S) 0.98%
EREKREERERAR RIFHEE 2 Ea
([RFPERREER])
Silver Bloom Investments Limited 2 Security interest 1,200,000,000 (L) 28.41% — -
(“Silver Bloom”) bl
Beneficial owner 31,200,000 (L) 0.73% 41,249,834() 0.98%
BRBEEA 31,200,000 (S) 0.73% 41,249,834(S) 0.98%
Ministry of Finance of 2 Interest of a controlled 1,231,200,000 (L) 29.15% 41,249,834() 0.98%
the People’s Republic of corporation 31,200,000 (S) 0.73% 41,249,834(S) 0.98%
China ("MOF") REhEE s
SEYN el
(9t B3))
China Construction Bank 3 Interest of a controlled 1,224,374,972 (1) 28.99% 17,187,432(1) 0.41%
Corporation (“CCB") corporation 24,374,974 () 0.58% 17,187,432(S) 0.41%
B RRTRIABR A A RIFHEE 2 Ea
(BRI
ICBC International Holdings 4 Interest of a controlled 1,248,299,890 (L) 29.55% — —
Limited (“ICBCIH") corporation 48,299,890 (S) 1.14% - -

TREKERBRAF
(TTHRER))

REHEE 2 s
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Number of
Name of Nature of Number of Approximate underlying Approximate
shareholder Notes interest ordinary shares percentage shares percentage
REEE lifz3 BHME LiERYE BHENIL HERBEE BB
The Bank of New York Mellon 5 Security interest 1,200,000,000 (L) 28.41% — -
Corporation (‘BNY’) bl
China Orient Asset Management 1,6 interest of a controlled 136,224,629 (1) 3.22% 136,224,629(L) 3.22%
Corporation (“COAM”) corporation
RERAEEEERA RIFHIEE 2 a
(TRA&E] Security interest 465,000,000 (1) 11.01% - -
gLl Fo
Cheung Fong Wing 7 Interest of controlled 558,000,000 (L) 13.21% - -
FHR corporation
RIFHEE 2 a
Quan Xing Holdings Limited 7 Beneficial owner 558,000,000 (L) 13.21% - -
(*Quan Xing ") s Z=UN
EEPRERA
(TE&])
FEEREE % KA BR AR 1 Security interest 458,000,000 (L) 10.84% - -
(ER%) pa] ([PEER)) gLl Fo
(L) Long position L) &

(S) Short position

Note:

(S) K&

G

1)

To the best knowledge of the Directors, among the shares owned by
Rong De, (i) 458,000,000 shares, 465,000,000 shares and 1,200,000,000
shares have been pledged by Rong De to FRE# gl , Shoreline and BNY
HK and Shoreline has the right to convert the loan secured by the said
465,000,000 shares into 70,528,079 shares pursuant to the relevant loan
agreement; and (iii) pursuant to the stock borrowing agreement entered
into between Rong De and Note Investors, the Note Investors have the
right to borrow 104,000,000 shares in aggregate from Rong De.

According to the disclosure of interest notices filed by Central Huijin and
MOF on 9 January 2014 and 8 January 2014 respectively, Silver Bloom
held direct interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.
Silver Bloom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ABCIIM. ABCIIM is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of ABCIH. ABCIH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
ABCL. ABCL was in turn owned as to 40.28% by Central Huijin and as to
39.21% by MOF. Accordingly, ABCIIM, ABCIH, ABCL, Central Huijin and
MOF are deemed to be interested in these shares of the Company by
virtue of the provisions of the SFO.

(1)

BESMM RRAEREZRO
(iy 458,000,000 %~ 465,000,000
1,200,000,000 A& f& 15 B gt E S BIE I T+
BIZRh - Shoreline & BNY HK: BiRIEIERAE
1% - Shoreline A # #% L 3t 465,000,000
A& A% 0 B 48 18 2 B 38 2 /570,528,079 %
B RBREREEZEREES .J
ZERRE REETERREESAH
104,000,000 RERA7 °

BEARES KBRS IR —HF—
ANBER=ZZ—NE—AN\BFE 2 ERE
FZ AN - Silver Bloom$5A AR BB K& 48
R 2 E 2 - Silver Bloom /4 £ 8 E
BIREER s 2 AMB AR - BIREERIEE
ERREIRERE 2 Z2EMBAT o BIREIE
BPEREBITZ2EWBAR - ARES
K BA BB B B R 38R 172 40.28%
% 39.21% s o AUt - RIFEFLHAE K
Bl g - BIREIRIEEEE - 2R -
PR RIRTT - RIVES RVEEWARE AR
RAT 2 ZER D P HEE#ERZ °



According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by CCB on 8 January
2014, Design Time Limited held direct interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CCBI Investments Limited (“CCBII”). CCBIl is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CCB International (Holdings) Limited (“*CCBIH”). CCBIH is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CCB Financial Holdings Limited (“CCBFH”). CCBFH
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCB International Group Holdings Limited
(“CCBIG”). CCBIG is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCB. According
to the disclosure of interest notice filed by Central Huijin on 9 January
2014, CCB is owned as to 57.26% by Central Huijin. Accordingly, CCBII,
CCBIH, CCBFH, CCBIG, CCB and Central Huijin are deemed to be
interested in these shares of the Company by virtue of the provisions of
the SFO.

According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by ICBCIH on
15 October 2013, Fine Process Limited held direct interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of ICBC International Investment Management Limited (“ICBCIIM”).
ICBCIIM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBCIH. ICBCIH is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
(“ICBC”). According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by Central
Huijin on 9 January 2014, ICBC is owned as to 35.36% by Central Huijin.
Accordingly, ICBCIIM, ICBCIH, ICBC and Central Huijin are deemed to be
interested in these shares of the Company by virtue of the provisions of
the SFO.

According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by BNY on 17 October
2013, BNY HK held direct interest in the shares of the Company and is
wholly-owned by BNY.

According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by COAM on 7
January 2014, Shoreline held direct interest in the 575,099,734 shares
of the Company and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Orient Asset
Management (International) Holding Limited (“COAM International”), which
is held as to 50% by Wise Leader Assets Limited (“Wise Leader”) and as
to 50% by Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Limited (“Dong Yin”). Wise
Leader is held as to 100% by Dong Yin and Dong Yin is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of COAM. Accordingly, COAM International, Wise Leader,
Dong Yin and COAM are deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Shoreline by virtue of the provisions of the SFO.

According to the disclosure of interest notice filed by COAM on
7 January 2014, Bright Creation Investment Limited held direct interest in
26,124,895 shares of the Company and is also a wholly-owned of COAM
International. Accordingly, COAM International, Wise Leader, Dong Yin
and COAM are deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company
held by Bright Creation Investment Limited by virtue of the provisions of
the SFO.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR
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(7) Quan Xing was the beneficial owner of these shares of the Company,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Cheung Fong Wing. Accordingly, Mr.
Cheung Fong Wing is deemed to be interested in these shares of the
Company by virtue of the provisions of the SFO.

8) For the purpose of this section, the shareholding percentage in the
Company is calculated of the basis of 4,224,118,458 shares in issue.

Save as disclosed above, so far as known to the directors, the Company
had not been notified of any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in notes
25(b)(i), 25(c), 33, 34(b)(vii) and (vii)), 34(c), 34(d)(i), (i) and (iv), 41 and 46
to the financial statements.

There were no transactions required to be disclosed as non-exempt
connected transactions or non-exempt continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2013 excepted for the transaction with Rong De on
18 October 2013, details have been disclosures in notes 25(b)()). The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws or the law in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended
31 December 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

A management discussion and analysis of the Group’s annual results is
shown on pages 6 to 23.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A corporate governance report is shown on pages 27 to 45.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three independent
non-executive directors. The committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group and discussed with the
management issues regarding auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the Company’s audited results
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained the amount of public float as required under
the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

A resolution for re-appointment of RSM Nelson Wheeler as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Chu Hing Tsung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2014
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38 3 A% Bl e

-

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhuguang
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 180,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

22 N\ 2
RO iRm R
For the year ended 31 December 20183 B2 —T—=F+_H=+—HIEFE

2013 2012
—E—= T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE FHET FiBT
Turnover SEHR 7 280,880 571,167
Cost of sales SHE A (171,692) (351,390)
Gross profit EF 109,188 219,777
Other income H KA 8 72,176 590
Fair value gains on investment properties 1% & %3 2 A FEW 20 120,625 30,174
Fair value gains on financial assets BATERAERZ
at fair value through profit or loss EREEAFERE 26 38,503 —
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAT (44,371) (7,977)
Administrative expenses THER (56,367) (29,904)
Other operating expenses e 10 (993,828) (19,401)
(Loss)/Profit from operations e (BB me (754,074) 193,259
Finance costs BhE A 11 (209,756) (108,851)
Gain on bargain purchase in respect of UK BE P B 2 B 2 s
business combination - 150,438
(Loss)/Profit before tax LAl (B18) i F (963,830) 234,846
Income tax FriSHi 12 (3,815) (56,604)
(Loss)/Profit for the year AEE (BEB) R 13 (967,645) 178,242
(Loss)/Profit for the year UTATEEEAEE
attributable to: (E518) iEw -
Owners of the Company RARHEE A 15 (938,643) 182,349
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR A (29,002) (4,107)
(967,645) 178,242
(Loss)/Earnings per share B (B1R) B 17
Basic AR (25.66) cents fll 6.48 cents Il

Diluted s N/A & H N/A i A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fo o 1 g B Al v W 2 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

T2F—

=Ft+A=1+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Loss)/Profit for the year AEE (BR) G (967,645) 178,242
Other comprehensive income BRBERAEEEMEEWES
for the year, net of tax
Items that may be reclassified to AIEMN D EERmmIAE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating REBINEBMEE ZERERE
foreign operations 80,122 13,095
Total comprehensive income TEELEWHEE
for the year (887,523) 191,337
Total comprehensive income MTATELEEE
for the year attributable to: S HENEREE
Owners of the Company RAFEBA (867,686) 192,934
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (19,837) (1,597)
(887,523) 191,337

6]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fa 3 S 5 IR DL

At 31 December 2013 R=—ZE—=F+=-F=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P EE T#ET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN L 18 20,251 13,746
Prepaid land lease payments TEf T B E A 19 49,896 49,796
Investment properties KEME 20 663,024 1,126,037
Intangible assets B EE 21 23,515 38,786
Goodwill EES 22 18,542 4,149
Deferred tax assets RIETIEEE 37 - 1,892
775,228 1,234,406
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 23 6,097,641 4,029,518
Accounts receivable FEUER K 24 11,644 4,277
Prepaid land lease payments FEfT T E R 19 1,460 1,416
Prepayments, deposits FERFIE 7T
and other receivables T B e Y5k IE 25 2,737,668 577,794
Financial assets at fair value through ﬁ?@?fﬁd’?\?ﬁfﬁ
profit or loss JEREE 26 38,503 —
Current tax assets BIHATR IR & = 76,315 7,301
Restricted bank deposits R IR TR 27 183,011 110,950
Bank and cash balances RITMIRS 5% 28 996,939 138,385
10,143,181 4,869,641
Assets of disposal groups classified SEATECLHE
as held for sale HEBE 29 620,703 -
10,763,884 4,869,641
Current liabilities mEAaE
Accounts payable JERERRR 30 560,064 420,286
Proceeds received from pre-sale of TEEMEWE 2 FT1S5kIE
properties 31 1,934,096 533,275
Accruals and other payables fEsTE A &Eﬁﬁfg H* 32 235,498 186,281
Amount due to the ultimate holding JEHE*Z“? IH
company 33 19,983 99,200
Bank and other borrowings HRITREAE R 34 1,488,816 838,914
Finance lease payables BERERNK 35 203 379
Provision for contingent liability HABERE 41(a) 9,733 —
Current tax liabilities B IE B & 15,647 37,546
4,264,040 2,115,881
Liabilities directly associated with assets ~ E2D4EBFE Y HEHS
of disposal groups classified BEEERBARE
as held for sale 29 47,056 —
4,311,096 2,115,881
Net current assets REEEFE 6,452,788 2,753,760
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDER 7,228,016 3,088,166




2013 2012
—E—= T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T T#ET FiBT
Non-current liabilities EREBARE
Amount due to a non-controlling e —E B A B
shareholder of a subsidiary — AR IR R RIE 36 - 342,303
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAME K 34 3,057,112 767,642
Finance lease payables BEMEE K 35 503 4
Deferred tax liabilities RIETHIABE 37 438,164 273,232
3,495,779 1,383,181
NET ASSETS BEFE 3,732,237 2,604,985
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital g 38 422,412 365,581
Reserves & 40(a) 2,904,958 1,915,992
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEB AEGERS
the Company 3,327,370 2,281,573
Non-controlling interests FEERR R 404,867 323,412
TOTAL EQUITY prab 3,732,237 2,604,985
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2014, RZE—WF=A=+HLEHREEZIE -
Chu Hing Tsung Huang Jia Jue
KRB HES
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AL B R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZEZ—ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FAARENER
Retained
profits/
Reserve on Exchange (Accumulated Non-
Share Share merger fluctuation ~ Contributed Statutory Warrant losses) controlling Total
capital premium  accounting reserve surplus reserve reserve REEn/ Total interests equity
k% BOEE  AHEARE  NERDRE EfES kG REdEE (ZHtE8) B i SiEs
HKS'000 HK§ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK§000 HKS'000
Tin T ThL T Tin Thn Thn Tin T Fhn T
(_Note 4000 (Note 40(0‘)(”]) (Note AO(C](iii]) (Note 0ic)))  (Note 40(c)iv) ’(No e 40(c)vi)
(Mitaoon  (hdoom  (ME4oom)  (Msolom)  (Retdoom) (s 40lm)
At1 January 2012 RZ%-25-5-A 26,882 9877 (101922) 4794 239404 - - 563,634 1004713 158,314 125302
Total comprehensive income RER2ENREE
forthe year - - - 10,585 - - - 182,349 192,934 1,597) 191,387
Transfer £ - - - - - 5611 - (5,611) - - -
Arising on an acqisition of
subsiciaries - - - - - - - - - 93,641 93,641
* Loss on the Group's contribution
toa subsidiary - - - - - - - (73,054) (73,054) 73,064 -
Issue of shares Bk 118699 948,281 - - - - - - 1,066,980 - 1,066,980
Changes in equity for the year TEERRRY 118699 948,281 - 10,585 - 5611 - 103,684 1,186,860 165,098 135198
At 31 December 2012
and 1 January 2013 365,581 1,047,082 (101922) 58529 230404 5611 - 667,318 2,281,673 38412 2,604,985
Total comprehensive ncome RER2ANGEE
forthe year - - - 70957 - - - (938,643 (867,686) 19,837) (887,523)
Issue of warrants (note 34(c) - - - - - - 3,296 - 11329 - 113,296
Capital contrbution pid - - - - - - - - - 09,259 09259
* Loss on the Group's contribution
toa subsidiary - - - - - - - (59,033) (69,033 59,033 -
Issue of shares Upon exercise of
warrants (note 38(0)) 1,031 30,866 - - - - 8.497) - 23400 - 23400
Issue of shares (note 38(c) Lkt (ko8 55,800 1,780,020 - - - - - - 1,835,820 - 1835,820
Changes in equty for the year TEERRIEY 56,831 1810886 - 70957 - - 104799 (997,676) 1,046,797 81,455 1121252
At31 December 2013 Qe S 3
tZR=t+-A 4242 2,857,938 (101,922) 129,486 239,404 5611 104,799 (330,358) 3,327,310 404,867 3,732,287
* The subsidiary, Guangdong Hailian Building Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong * MEBAREREHMAEERAR ([ERE

Hailian”) is a sino-foreign contractual cooperative enterprise under the
law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). In accordance with the
cooperative contract, and the memorandum and article of association of
Guangdong Hailian, the PRC partner is responsible for making available
the land use rights of the construction site; whereas the Group is
responsible for the full amount of Guangdong Hailian’s registered capital.
In addition, the non-controlling shareholder is entitled to share 20% of
the profit or loss of Guangdong Hailian and 20% of its surplus assets on
expiry of the cooperative arrangement or on winding up. During the year,
the Group made capital contribution of approximately HK$295,165,000
(2012: HK$365,270,000) to Guangdong Hailian. The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests were adjusted directly
in equity to reflect the changes in their relative interests in Guangdong
Hailian.

B A—EREPEARIMEA ([FEH])
EERRM T IINRONEERE - RIBEE
AR R ER TR AMS SRR -
PEZFATREEE TN T EARE
MALEEEEHAMNEREHNZHEME
% o IEAN - FEIEIRAR R BN A EfEMmEE

SRS DG BB 2 20% 5 M Sk E1E - AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mallaig®

For the year ended 31 December 20183 B2 —T—=F+_H=+—HIEFE

2013 2012
—E-= —E——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt e THET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REREXBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/Profit before tax LAl (B18) & (963,830) 234,846
Adjustments for: PTYSBEERMFAR
Interest income FE2 WA (2,211) (372)
Write back of other payables Ho A pE T EIE R B (44,377) —
Reversal of provision for contingent SAB ERERD
liabilities (24,342) —
Fair value gains on financial assets LAV ERT ABZ® 2
at fair value through profit or loss TREEATFERS (38,503) —
Fair value gains on investment properties KEME A EKE (120,625) (30,174)
Amortisation on intangible assets EmREEH#E 1,815 890
Depreciation e 1,265 982
Land lease charge (in respect of THHEER (F@EN
prepaid land leases payments) T EKIE) 1,439 939
Impairment loss on favourable EBEHEEN 28
operating leases on business HEREEE
combination 21,133 —
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 4,149 —
Impairment loss on prepayments W BE A AN 2 2 TR 3RIB
for acquisition of equity interest BEEE 830,533 —
Finance costs & R 209,756 108,851
Gain on bargain purchase in respect WHEHMB A E 2
of business combination Wiz - (150,438)
Loss on disposal of property, MEE - BB
plant and equipment KBz EE - 14
Operating (loss)/profit before Rt BE S H B L&
working capital changes (&18) EH (123,798) 165,538
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories =g OGgm SR (1,415,415) 42,038
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable  FEUZBRERL (30) &> (7,367) 20,640
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments, TERFIE « AT RHAM
deposits and other receivables FEMRIBR D (3 00) 317,482 (72,734)
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR FISRT T 3G A0 (72,061) (53,554)
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable  FEBRFIE N, O ) 60,949 (216,733)
Increase/(Decrease) in proceeds received — TBEEWEL 2 TS FTE
from pre-sale of properties #h0, Cid) 1,400,821 (222,613
Increase/(Decrease) in accruals JERTE A R EMER
and other payables FRIEH I, OR) 103,333 (139,077)
Decrease in amount due to the ultimate B & ARIZERL A B 318 R >
holding company (79,217) (1,300)
Decrease in amount due to a R —RERBARN—%4
non-controlling shareholder FEI7E A% A% 3R IR Rk
of a subsidiary (342,303) —
Cash used in operations REXBFAAZRE (157,576) (477,795)
Income taxes paid BAETER (66,435) (6,458)
Interest paid BFE (173,172 (96,889)
Interest paid and capitalised in BRAGEME Z2ENFE
properties for sale under development REBEERZF S (96,965) (8,309)
Finance lease charges paid ENmMERERS (34) (25)
Net cash used in operating activities KEREFTRIR S (494,182) (589,476)
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2013 2012
—E-= —E——fF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt e T#ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREFTHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUH B 2,211 372
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B EW% - M= K& (6,493) (8,641)
Purchase of intangible assets BEERLEE (7,520) (2,059)
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB A A 41(a) (439,518) (8,352)
Prepayments for acquisition of W B RS AN 2 2 TR ERIE
equity interest 25(a) (150,000) —
Deposits for acquisition of WHE IR AR =
equity interest/land use right T RE TR 25(b) (781,567) —
Prepayments for acquisition of W ¥ RER
property development projects/equity IR AR 2 TR FUIR
interests 25(c) (398,770) —
Net cash used in investing activities KRB EHFRAR S /58 (1,781,657) (18,680)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMEESZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Payment for arrangement fee attributable 2T R1TERELE
to bank loans raised ML HE A (6,963) (25,800)
Payment for arrangement fee attributable 27T EEESE
to issue of Senior Notes HZHEE A (41,404) —
Bank loans raised FTE&iR1TE R 562,489 462,476
Repayment of bank loans ERIRITER (474,903) (97,361)
Proceeds from issue of Senior Notes BITIB AR ZFEF0A 1,551,063 —
Repurchase of Senior Notes fHOELEEE (476,756) —
Proceeds from other borrowings EfERZ FSE0E 1,907,835 —
Repayment of other borrowings BEEAMER (1,272) -
Repayment of finance lease payables EEpmEHERMNRK (505) (363)
Capital contribution from a non-controlling & B — 44 FF#5 A% A% 3R
shareholder 2B 42,259 -
Net cash generated from financing activities B & & EhE 418 & F 48 3,061,843 338,952
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) HerBRE&EEER
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i, Gd) 35 786,004 (269,204)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [ERE &z & 72,571 13,759
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—B—BZHR%
AT 1 JANUARY EBR&E&%EEB 138,385 393,830
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+ZH=+—HzZEHE&
AT 31 DECEMBER ERBR&E&%EER 996,960 138,385
ANALYSIS OF CASH HeRREeEEEHZOW
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances SRIT MRS 4E e 996,939 138,385
Non-current assets held for sale HEZIERBDEE 29 21 —

996,960 138,385
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 ==

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is Room 5702-5703, 57th Floor, Two
International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2013, Rong De Investments Limited (“Rong De”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), is the
immediate and ultimate holding company and Mr. Liao Tengjia is
the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
that are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 January 2013. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years except as stated below.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

a.  Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of B E R R 158 (8
Financial Statements” RIA) [ BA B R M 25 |
Amendments to HKAS 1 titled Presentation of ltems of EBEGEERE1S (BRI A)
Other Comprehensive Income introduce new optional HEm2EK=EEHZ53IA
terminology for statement of comprehensive income FHEWE R MU S R FE
and income statement. Under the amendments to MERE - REAEERANZE
HKAS 1 that was adopted by the Group, a statement e ERIE 158 (WETZIK) '
of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of [2EKmER] E2AERE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and an Hivzmizm=] M Wﬂlﬁﬁi‘%l
income statement is renamed as a statement of profit or AlER AR IEBmER] B8R
loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to LERE 15 (BETA) (REBLAE
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income —HRERIMO B BEERE
in either a single statement or in two separate but 2FEREEMEE R EE
consecutive statements. o
The amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures BB ERE15H (BFTAX)
to be made in the other comprehensive income section LR EMEmKEIBNELE
such that items of other comprehensive income are ZHTE - AL EME2EREE
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be BElDAmE : @irlTgE
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items FHEEBEEMER  KO)R
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss REFTBREGRE  HErEH
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of NEEEENIER c AthEE
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated WHIBEMMEHAEZERE
on the same basis. ETFLADEL ©
The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and ZEETEENER  AtA
hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive 2 EKFEENZIIE TE
income has been modified to reflect the change. Other W ARMBEBEES - b L
than the above mentioned presentation changes, the 5 EEIN - BB SFEREA
application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result (BRI AR) 2 ER T 2B
in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive Bm- Httzmiskamik
income and total comprehensive income. HEEEEEMTE -

b.  HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other v B B i i M RIISE 12

Entities”

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
specifies the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements and associates, and introduces new
disclosure requirements for unconsolidated structured
entities.

5% [ 4 R S R A B e B
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

b. HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities” (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 12 only affects the disclosures
relating to the Group’s subsidiaries in the consolidated
financial statements. HKFRS 12 has been applied
retrospectively.

C. HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” establishes a
single source of guidance for all fair value measurements
required or permitted by HKFRSs. It clarifies the definition
of fair value as an exit price, which is defined as a price at
which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability would take place between market participants
at the measurement date under market conditions, and
enhances disclosures about fair value measurements.

The adoption of HKFRS 13 only affects disclosures on
fair value measurements in the consolidated financial
statements. HKFRS 13 has been applied prospectively.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs
would have a material impact on its results of operations and
financial position. The Group shall adopt these new HKFRSs that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation of
investment properties and some financial assets are carried at
their fair value. Non-current assets/Disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (note 3(h)) to the financial statements).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise their judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgement and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ji)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and
any related accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair value.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Company’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as
that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
(2) below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are

initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’

proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s

identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(it)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair value is
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified to the consolidated profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available
for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct
costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is
stated at its fair value based on valuation by an external
independent valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of the investment property are recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leases
The Group as lessee
(i) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(ii) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the
leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception
of the lease.
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> 2
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEEEHHEOR @
POLICIES (continued)
(f) Leases (continued) 6 MHE @
The Group as lessee (continued) AL B2 RN ()
(il Finance leases (continued) (ii) BEHE (48)
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included HHBEAZBEBEE
in the statement of financial position as finance RENFEEES AN
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned BkAEk - HEFKIETY
between the finance charge and the reduction S BC T B 7% 79 52 A R
of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is RFEEE ZMFIE
allocated to each period during the lease term so B REXHBREIAM
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest SR UBRZ - T8
on the remaining balance of the liability. ERE—REAMERBRE
BT HEBEHR—E
ELZFE -
Assets under finance leases are depreciated the REEHET 2 EEN
same as owned assets. BEEEZNET R
A -
The Group as lessor REEERHBEA
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the BEERBREZ A RR
lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership K 8] 3 37 8 K 20 () 5
of assets are accounted for as operating leases. THEMBAZEEARS
Rental income from operating leases is recognised KEHE - kBKEEHE
on a straight-line basis over the term of the EHESWARIEREHE
relevant lease. EHAERERER ©
(g) Intangible assets (o) MIEEE
(i) Computer software (i) BISHEAF
Computer software is stated at cost less B SR AR R BT
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. B RREEEYE-
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis BT NEGEERT
over the estimated useful life of 5 years. ZABETA{EAFHARTE -
(ii)  Favourable operating leases (i)  EEKERE
The intangible asset, recognised in a business AgalE s BEEER
combination due to favourable terms of the MR EEE HFPER
operating leases, is measured initially at fair value EBEEEVSZWER
at the acquisition date and amortised on a straight- ZATFEFE - WRHAE
line basis over the lease term, less impairment EHRNAE G ERBE

losses. Eriady o
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(@)

Non-current assets/Disposal groups held for
sale

A non-current asset or disposal group is classified as held
for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. The
Group must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ or
disposal groups’ previous carrying amounts and fair value
less costs to sell.

Inventories
(i) Properties for sale under development

Properties for sale under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease
payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to sale proceeds received after
the reporting period less selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion, or by
estimates based on prevailing market condition.
On completion, the properties are reclassified
to properties held for sale at the then carrying
amount.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@)

G)

Inventories
(ii)  Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Costs of properties
include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease
payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to sale proceeds received after
the reporting period less selling expenses, or by
estimates based on prevailing market condition.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

O]

(m)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either investments classified as held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. These investments are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value of these investments are recognised
in profit or loss.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market and are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of
accounts and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in
the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying
amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair value and are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligations under the contracts,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”; and

— the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the guarantee
contracts.

3.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

EEGFFER @

(n)

(0)

(p)

Sl S A M TR

BBEREEE T RLAAET
BHRZARRETBYH
REEAP SR AE RS
TAZEREDH - HEzmHETA
B ERRERASEER
BRAIBRBERZEET TR

&
hva
j:

XA HETEMAR
LEFMETARMZ € TB0R
FIEIT o

ik

3 25 1 2 T BT 31 By
RHRARE - RERAER
KRR A B o

R IEAN SR B A R EAR M R ER
8RR E WE H
T-EA BREEHRED
RMEIAE -

B PE IR B A AU
M ERANBEDN SRR

ZHA
TEHE  RARUTREE
e

|

—  REFESHERFESIT

5 [ BE - IRBERNK
REE|BEZBKET
g8 X

— VP ERSBRNER

BHFHANRELER
B R MR Rt #H -

6]




82

ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 2 Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2013 {2 ==

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

@

(r)

(s)

Senior notes with detachable warrants

Senior notes with detachable warrants are accounted for
as compound financial instruments which contain both a
liability component and an embedded conversion option
component. Conversion option that will be settled by
exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument (the
“equity component”).

The liability component of senior notes is recognised
initially at the fair value of a similar liability without warrants
granted. The equity component is recognised initially at
the difference between the proceeds of issue of the senior
notes and the fair value of the liability component, and is
included in equity as warrant reserve. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the liability component is carried as a liability
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Any directly attributable transaction costs of issuing
senior notes with detachable warrants are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to their initial
carrying amounts.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

)

(w)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers. Revenue from sales of
properties excludes business tax and other sales related
taxes and is after deduction of any discounts allowed.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
statement of financial position under proceeds received
from pre-sale of properties.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(w)

v)

Employee benefits (continued)
(ii)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs and involves
the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

v)

(w)

Borrowing costs (continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it includes previous years items of
income or expense that were not taxable or deductible
and excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(W)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

3.

EEGFFIEUR @

(W)

BiIE ()

EXEFAEEEZHERMEIRNE
WEMRETRT  ARED
BRI AT 2 BRTE F A
W Bl P s BRI B ER 1R

RIER IR T RIERN 3RS B R AT
BEETHAMETINE &
EHEEERELAEREEY
BEA R EFE - ELEHIA
TIR B RER - MM EER
TR SR AE H A 2 T UK a9 RE AR Bk
BEEREREDRTRRZEEEH
o AIFELE B T IRE & E A
2HEEARRKNE RN
R ©

BELEHRBEERABZAER
R 7 £% [ 78 3 10 R o5 HI R W [ml
EHEEERABEREEZ
FTRELEZRBETE -

A BRAFEAEZREY
KZBEEREME  ZFWE
ZHEREERREALE TN
Yem o % R AR R B R B
Sh o MR EMEA T E KR
BEKENATH ERKREY
EABREZ KRB (M
FEEBHE) ZAKBEEBERN
FE AAHESEBRE -
ERBRRWER  IREWE
Z 3 FE 75 TR B 4% B8 40 ] Ug (3 4
EZEHAHAAHE -

BRI AERBIKAHNIERE
HEPAVHH IR EEER - WA
EUHFEELRABRR—HE
HWRMBM Z SR ABAX
SERIFREEEEHAE
MEEERAGBE  REHE
BENMBEIITALHE -



3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEEFHBUR @
POLICIES (continued)
(x) PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”) (x)  PE AR ([
HERE )

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to T IR ET A E M ERTER
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds ERETMBRAY (B i
from sales of properties less deductible expenditures RS - BB - & ER R
including land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and BEMEREFRZ) O HIRER
all property development expenditures. LAT is recognised N F-30% 2 60% 1) 2 1 T R 3
as an income tax. LAT paid is a deductible expense for W WHERBER - L
PRC corporate income tax purposes. HIBERLPREPCEMEHM

EGREN: G

(y) Related parties (y) FBABiJ5
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the B T BN 5 (B R A (E
Group. AKER -
(A) A person or a close member of that person’s A WEBUATAL BIZA
family is related to the Group if that person: THZA T ZMHFHAR

SEARR

0] has control or joint control over the Group; (i) P22 1) ok £ [R] 47 )
NEE
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i HAEBEEKX

S/ . gt
TE

(i) is a member of the key management (i) BAQNBHIEAR
personnel of the Company or of a parent of AR ARIMEE
the Company. EEEKE -

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the B) WA T A R

following conditions applies: B g2 RN 5 [ 5 A

() The entity and the Company are members (i) ZEBHEKRRQF
of the same group (which means that each BR—SB 2K
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is Ena (A&
related to the others). nal - WEBA A

RERHERF

mutRA ) -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEEFHBUR @
POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties (continued) (y) BT
(B)  (continued) B) (#)
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture (ii) —HEBRS—
of the other entity (or an associate or joint TEMEE QA
venture of a member of a group of which HEEDE (K
the other entity is a member). S—EBAKE
RAElZEBET
[ =R/NICI R
ERAREE D
¥) o
(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEEEHY AR
third party. —BZNEE
=
(v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —HEBRZE=
and the other entity is an associate of the FTEBHNEED
third entity. X Mmx—EHE
BEREZHEE
HIEE N A o
v) The entity is a post-employment benefit ) B ANEET
plan for the benefit of employees of either HA A 5 5 75 R B
the Group or an entity related to the Group. ZEBNEER 7’HJ
If the Group is itself such a plan, the 5% N ) B AR
sponsoring employers are also related to FIETE - fAS
the Group. B AR5 EE%s
g EHEDH
EFImEAE
B Eaug o
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) HEREZ A FTH 7
by a person identified in (A). NS % %
B o
(vi) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant (i) R A FT B A
influence over the entity or is a member THEBEEKX
of the key management personnel of the FENIBRE
entity (or of a parent of the entity). B(HZEBY
nNAE) XEE



3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(z)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except goodwill, investment properties, deferred tax
assets, inventories and financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination
are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition date
and are subsequently measured, until the liabilities are
settled, cancelled or expire, at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
“Revenue”.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when
material.
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4.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

(i) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in determining the
Group’s deferred tax for investment properties,
the directors have adopted the presumption that
investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale.

(ii)  Basis of consolidation of subsidiaries held under

structured agreement

As stated in note 41(a) to the financial statements,
the Group acquired the interest of Feng Shun Jia
Rong Trading Company Limited* (“Jia Rong”),
through a sale and purchase agreement of Jia
Rong’s 100% income right dated 25 June 2013
(the “Income Right SP Agreement”), among the
Group, Jia Rong and the owners of Jia Rong.
Pursuant to the Income Right SP Agreement, the
Group acquired the right to receive all the income
arising from the business of Jia Rong (including,
but not limited to, the income arising from the
holding of the equity interest in Guangdong
Xilong Property Development Company Limited*
(“Guangdong Xilong”)).

* English name is translated for identification purposes
only.
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4. ERPVE KRG

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

(ii)  Basis of consolidation of subsidiaries held under

structured agreement (continued)

The directors are of the opinion that,
notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership,
having considered in substance all facts and
circumstances, and based on the terms and
conditions of the Income Right SP Agreement,
the Group has acquired control over Jia Rong and
Guangdong Xilong. Accordingly, Jia Rong and
Guangdong Xilong are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.

(iii)  Prepayment for acquisition of equity interest

As stated in note 25(a) to the financial statements,
the directors consider that the acquisition of
50% of the total issued share capital of Joygain
Holdings Limited, was not able to be completed
in 2013. Consequently, the consideration paid
was recognised as prepayments for acquisition of
equity interest.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)
(i) Estimated income taxes (including LAT)

(it)

(iii)

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly
in the PRC. Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination is made.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets are
impaired requires measurement of the recoverable
amount of the intangible assets. The recoverable
amount is determined based on the higher of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
The valuation and calculation require the use of
estimates.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
measurement of the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating units. The recoverable amount
is determined based on the higher of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use.
The valuation and calculation require the use of
estimates.
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4. ERPVE KRG

4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)
(iv)  Impairment of prepayments for acquisition of

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

equity interest

Determining whether prepayments for acquisition
of equity interest are impaired requires an
estimation of their recoverable amount. The
estimated recoverable amount of the prepayments
for acquisition of equity interest has been
determined as detailed in note 25(a) to the financial
statements.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent qualified
professional valuer to assess the fair value of the
investment properties. In determining the fair value,
the valuer has utilised valuation techniques which
involve certain estimates. Details of the valuation
techniques and inputs have been disclosed in
notes 6 and 20 to the financial statements.

Fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair value of two call options
obtained by the Group. In determining the fair
value, the valuer has utilised techniques which
involve certain estimates. Details of the valuation
techniques and inputs have been disclosed in
notes 6 and 26 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of properties for sale under
development

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of
properties for sale under development according
to their net realisable value based on the
realisability of these properties. Net realisable
value for properties for sale under development
is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing
market conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)
(vii)  Net realisable value of properties for sale under

(viii)

development (continued)

If there is an increase in costs to completion or
a decrease in net sales value, the net realisable
value will decrease and this may result in provision
for properties for sale under development. Such
provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value and
provision for properties for sale under development
in the periods in which such estimate is changed
will be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property
market and the unique nature of individual
properties for sale under development, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the reporting
date. Any increase or decrease in the provision
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment loss of accounts receivable, deposits

and other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessment of the
recoverability of the accounts receivable, deposits
and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness, the past collection history, the
length of overdue period and collateral (if any) of
each debtor or counterparty. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value
of the accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables and impairment losses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 4, HRHAE R EEMNG @

ESTIMATES (continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) AHFEIABIBIFER Z FEERK
(continued) W ()
(ix)  Financial guarantee contracts (ix) HBHEEREGH
Details of guarantees provided by the Group are REBRHOERTS
set out in note 43 to the financial statements. BRI SRR T FE48 ©
Based on expectations at the reporting date, the RN WE B ARTEE
directors consider that it is more likely than not EERABREBELHES
that such an amount will not be payable under the A 2 FRIER AT BE 1R
arrangement. However, this estimate is subject Ko R ZiHErEE
to change depending on the probability of the HFFAREREEREDY
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which FRZ 7 Al Rt B P&
is a function of the likelihood that the financial gy mA ] se kAl R
receivables held by the counterparty which are HFETMBEERY
guaranteed suffer credit losses. BREKFEHREEES
BAgEtE -
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. &MITH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) AT HAE
2013 2012
—EF-=F —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHT
Financial assets ERLEE
Financial assets at fair value BRATEFAER
through profit or loss (classified ZEREE
as held for trading) (DERFEESR) 38,503 —
Loans and receivables (including B3k & EUZIA
bank and cash balances) (BIERITRIRESER) 2,035,192 673,296

Financial liabilities EMat
Amortised cost BESHRCAR 5,317,843 2,654,627




5.
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SR SRR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. &I Hw

(b) Financial risk management (b) B B As B
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial REB 2 EBEATZEV KR
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and bp: BIEINNERER - FEERE
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management B MEE © & & FEE
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial o REEEEREGERIER
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects B YR TIG 2B ATEA
on the Group’s financial performance. M WERKEREBH KRR

BETNZEREHE -

(i) Foreign currency risk (1) Sb ¥

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has
certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities,
such as United States dollars (“US$”), Renminbi
(“RMB”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to foreign currency risk arising from
recognised monetary assets or liabilities is as

SN R HE & B T AL(E
ERBEERZEHM LI
KB 2 B o AR AN
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ERBEINAEEER
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HE - MASEARES
ETINERERR - NEE
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SN LR ©

7R & B 3 & B R H e
KECHRAZEREE
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follows:
Assets Liabilities
BiE af&
2013 2012 2013 2012
= —T——F ZEBE-Z=ZF —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FT FET FHETT
RMB AR 381,581 78,617 17,806 41,931
HK$ BIT 19,013 17,678

Us$ ETT 728 17,542

192,112 252,144
1,387,851 —
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)

(i)

(it)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The table below summarises the impact of
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates on
the consolidated (loss)/profit after tax for the year.

=Ft+A=1+—HIFE

5.

St T H &)
(b) B

B ()

i) SMEEEE (F)

TR E R AT

L

BUWARFERBEES
(E18) //ﬁn*' VRE o

Functional Increase/
currency (Decrease)
strengthened/ in consolidated
(weakened) by loss after tax
e K BHREEER
wiE, (RE) wm, Grd)
HK$’000
THETT
Year ended BE_F—Z=%
31 December 2013 +ZA=+—HLEE
RMB AR 5%/(5%) 18,189/(18,189)
HK$ BT 5%/(5%) (8,705)/8,705
Us$ ETT 4%/(4%) (55,489)/55,489
Year ended HE-Z——F
31 December 2012 TZA=+—HILFE
RVB AR 5%/(5%) (1,834)/1,834
HK$ BT 5%/(5%) 11,723/(11,723)
us$ e 4%/(4%) (526)/526
Credit risk (i)  fFEEE

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which might cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
arises from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in note
5(a) above and financial guarantees provided by
the Group as stated in note 43 to the financial
statements.

R—ZZE—=9+=A
=t+—8 AEEREYH

FHRERTE
S HEAEEER

s (T P &
(kg

BUAEEELEVEE

#8) -

KB bl 5 5(a)

OB ERERE
EZREERTBEREK
P 5 43 FT 1) 7S £= [ 4 it
ZEATEPEIR -



5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

(it)

Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is in the PRC which accounted for 100%
(2012: 100%) of the total accounts receivable.
The Group also had concentration of credit risk by
tenants as 12% (2012: 59%) of its total accounts
receivable were due from one single tenant as
at 31 December 2013. The Group requests
rental deposit from the tenant upon entering into
tenancy agreement. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

In addition to credit risk on accounts receivable,
the Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk through its deposits for acquisition
of equity interest/land use rights to 2 intended
vendors of approximately HK$781,567,000 as
at 31 December 2013. However, the directors
consider that the credit risk is limited. The directors
have regular liaison with the counterparties to
identify any early sign of potential problems.

The Group’s credit risk on bank deposits and
balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings.

5.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

St T H )
SR R\ B A B ()

(b)

(ii)

fr B (48)

R—ZZE—=F+=A
=+—B8 x%£82{
BRI E 5 5
PR EEKRERERE
B 2100%( = F — =
F :100%) © & = &l
S AEETFEEF
EERR BERR=-F
—=#+=-A=+—8H
FEU — B P FHIEEHE
JEWIR R ABEE 2 12% (=
T——4F 1 50%) o A&
BERAFPRIIVEE
mERAREERS -
gEoh - REERE RS
MAREMEEEAERE
2 el R - ARER
AR E S BEIEL R
7 MEETE - Bt
T EERARAEEZ
EERBE AKRMEIE -

BREWERZEERR
G RZE—ZF+ =
A=+—8 ' &A&EEBN
MAEEEERIZMIK
BRRARER THEA
12 51€ #9781,567,000
BrmEHSEREER
B R EERAEE
EREBAR - EETE H
B FHMENRETES
GETEERTEK -

AREBERRITIE R KA
BHEERBRABR  H
BREFHIREERSRE
PR EVIRTT -
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)

(it)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of properties and provided guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. Details of these guarantees are set
out in note 43 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
tables are drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities and the earliest
dates on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

Specifically, for certain bank loans which the Group
had breached a financial covenant clause which
can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion to
call for early repayment, the analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the earliest period in which
the Group can be required to pay, that is if the
lender were to invoke its unconditional rights to
call the loans with immediate effect.

5.

St T H &)

(b)

Yo 25 R B 4 L ()
i)  fEEEE (&)
AEBMEAETYWEN

(iii)

BERTHIRITRE - JA
RBHERARFER
BENEE - FEZTE
EROFBENM B R
RFFEE43

L) < B

REE Y BEATHE
=AM RESZ DA
SE - T RIRAE
B RS B
fE ESE M R R R
PELBR -

TRHAAEESREA
BEZRBAHWER - &
ZNDEREMABZR
FTHRECRERAEE
EERZEERBRE
B ZRBEMEER

HEMmMs  iAKEZE
RAARTEENBET
A ZSKEZATE R Z B
BRI 2B TRIT
ERME - 2IIRE
REASERERZRT
HE - AMHERAES
AR RN B SR BANE
BERFZRERL -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. &mTH e
(b)  Financial risk management (continued) (b) HABSE RS (@)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (continued) (i) mEE b (5D
Less than Total
1 year or on undiscounted
demand Between Between cash flows
D —%EE 1and2years 2and 5 years ARRE
BREX —EWE ZELfF TEAE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Fi&Ex FTEx FTiEx Fi#Ex
At 31 December 2013 RIB—-Z=f
+ZA=+—H
Accounts payable FERTERR 560,064 - - 560,064
Accruals and other payables JEFTER R
H AT FIE 177,444 - 14,423 191,867
Amount due to the ultimate JER BT R A A
holding company R 19,983 - - 19,983
Bank and other borrowings RITREM AR 1,859,922 1,419,234 2,234,939 5,514,095
Finance lease payables RMEMERRNR 231 228 304 763
Provision for contingent liabilty — St SA & &R 9,733 - - 9,733
Financial guarantee contracts ISR A4 860,245 — — 860,245

3,487,622 1,419,462 2,249,666 7,156,750

Taking into account the fact that the bank had AR IRITE RS B 5
agreed to waive the early repayment option BRENERNERZ
subsequent to the reporting date, the table BEEE TREEAR
below includes the maturity analysis of the KT BRIBHATE
above-mentioned bank loans based on agreed HEEENGTE v EaliR
repayment schedule as set out in the revised loan TTERZ EIEIDHT ©

agreements.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. &mTH e
(b)  Financial risk management (continued) (b) HBABSEFEE R (@)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (continued) (i) mEE b (5D
Less than Total
1 year or on undiscounted
demand Between Between cash flows
D —%EE 1and2years 2and 5 years ARRE
BREX —EmE ZERE TEAE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Fi&Ex FTEx FTiEx Fi#Ex
At 31 December 2013 RIB—-Z=f
+ZA=+—H
Accounts payable FERTERR 560,064 - - 560,064
Accruals and other payables JEFTER R
H AT FIE 177,444 - 14,423 191,867
Amount due to the ultimate RS YNE]
holding company R 19,983 - - 19,983
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EAIER 1,732,306 1,480,903 2,320,699 5,533,908
Finance lease payables RMEMERRNR 231 228 304 763
Provision for contingent liabilty — St SA & &R 9,733 - - 9,733
Financial guarantee contracts ISR A4 860,245 — — 860,245

3,360,006 1,481,131 2,335,426 7,176,563
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. &M THw
(b) Financial risk management (continued) (b) HABSE RS (@)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (continued) (i) mEE b (5D
Less than Total
1 year or on undiscounted
demand Between Between cash flows
DR—Fsk 1and2years 2and5years  AKITHIES
BEK —EWF —EhE MELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAL FAL TAET
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F
+=-A=1+—H
Accounts payable ERTERR 420,286 — — 420,286
Accruals and other payables JEFTER R
H AT FIE 169,916 — 16,365 186,281
Amount due to the ultimate JER BT A A
holding company A 99,200 — — 99,200
Amount due to a non-controlling & — P B2 &
shareholder of a subsidiary F— B IR
R FIE — 342,308 — 342,303
Bank and other borrowings TITR W EN 1,023,783 742,570 478,382 2,244,735
Finance lease payables BEHERNR 388 5 — 393
Financial guarantee contracts ~ EIHEIERAH 288,383 — — 288,383
2,001,956 1,084,878 494,747 3,581,581
The amounts included above for financial BHFAIREREFIER
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts HEE Lillst ARE
the Group could be forced to settle under the BERENZSBIHIAS

arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the
guarantee. At the reporting date, the directors do
not consider it probable that a claim will be made
against the Group under the above guarantees.

R E % AR 2 BUE
REBIEFHEEZRD
TR -RHREEH &
ERR AEERA L
SRMERRENKS

IIF

However, this estimate is subject to change TR R ZGETHE
depending on the probability of the counterparty FEHFHREREIER

claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

5850 2 T B e 7
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ 88 - 74 B A L A
BT A E R
B 7 HE RSB I B
BB TR AM -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)

(v)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to fair value interest rate
risk relates primarily to fixed rate borrowings.
Bank loans, Senior Notes and other borrowings
of approximately HK$203,502,000 (2012:
HK$32,102,000), HK$1,387,851,000 (2012:
HK$476,756,000) and HK$1,908,701,000 (2012:
Nil) respectively, bear interests at fixed rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk, relates primarily to variable rate bank loans
and other borrowings, which is partially offset
by bank deposits held at variable rates. Bank
deposits, bank loans and other borrowings
of approximately HK$1,176,909,000 (2012:
HK$249,067,000), HK$1,022,980,000 (2012:
HK$1,097,698,000) and HK$22,894,000 (2012:
Nil) respectively, bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk on the Group’s variable rate bank loans and
other borrowings, partially offset by bank deposits
held at variable rates, at the end of the reporting
period and prepared assuming the amounts of
bank deposits, bank loans and other borrowings
outstanding at the end of each reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year.

5.

St T H &)

(b)

Yo 25 R B 4 L ()
Gv)  FIFE R
AEEEEY ATEF

X R E ZHEEE A
EEREB RITE
o BAEEBREME
X 9 Bl 49208,502,000
BIL(ZFE — = F:
32,102,000 7T ) »
1,387,851,0007% jt ( —
T — — 4 1 476,756,000
7% Jr) 11,908,701,000
BT (ZE—=F: &)
ZEEFEFT S Bt
ARAFENZRRRE

REBEE 2HRE2RT
KRR EEEFBR
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B 2B R B A
BB ZRITEREK
e RITHEH - RITE
AR CH M D B
1,176,909,0003% 7© ( —
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management (continued)
(iv)  Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, if interest rates had
been 25 basis points (2012: 100 basis points)
higher, with all other variables held constant and
taking into account the capitalisation of borrowing
costs, consolidated loss after tax for the year
would have been decreased by approximately
HK$964,000 (2012: consolidated profit after tax
would have been decreased by approximately
HK$3,436,000). If the interest rate had been 25
basis points (2012: 100 basis points) lower, with
all other variables held constant and taking into
account the capitalisation of borrowing costs,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have
been increased by approximately HK$930,000
(2012: consolidated profit after tax would have
been increased by approximately HK$4,739,000).

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy in relation to interest rate risk.
The directors monitor the Group’s exposure on an
ongoing basis and will consider hedging interest
rate risk should the need arise.

Fair value

Except for Senior Notes and certain other borrowings with
the carrying amounts of approximately HK$1,387,851,000
and HK$1,908,701,000 respectively, the directors
consider that the carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position are not
materially different from their fair value as at 31 December
20183. The directors estimate the fair value of the Senior
Notes and certain other borrowings as at 31 December
2013 to be approximately HK$1,367,551,000 and
HK$1,970,736,000 respectively. The fair value has been
calculated by discounting the future cash flows at the
market interest rates (level 2 measurement under HKFRS
13).

5.
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. X»FEuHE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or AFERTME2EECFTEH#ETCE

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market MR 5 E—HEEMEE S EE

participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures —IEEBEMINHER - L TRENA

of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that FTEFEREFERASAE=EBALAR

categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques FFEATEZHERMHATESR

used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for FARBAERE : AEEF A EHE
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can B BEREES AR
access at the measurement date. EERMS 2 WmE

(CRATHRE) -

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within BoMBAEE : BRE1RTIHHREN
level 1 that are observable for the asset or SN+ EA T E kA
liability, either directly or indirectly. BEERNE2EEY

BEE AR -

Level 3inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. FIMBAEE - EEXBEZTAE

i ABUE o

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out N2 B YIRS = 1 ol A B

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in MIERELERZH - BREARED

circumstances that caused the transfer. = (ERRAIE 2 — o

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy: (a) A PAEFERZHN W

Fair value
measurement
using:
Level 3
AFEFAERA
AT B
Description HiE $E34
HK$’000
T#ExT
At 31 December 2013 RZFE—=5+"A=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements: BEELATEFE
Investment properties AW
Commercial — PRC EE— P 663,024
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABSEZ SHEE
profit or loss
Derivatives — call options PTHET A — REEAE 38,503
Non-recurring fair value measurements: EREHATEE

Non-current assets of disposal groups classified DB AFE 2
as held for sale: HEHEE ZIERBEE
Investment properties "EYE
Commercial — PRC ¥ — 620,682



6.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
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EN =1
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. O PAEHE
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair (b) MRIBEIHRIEA A=
value based on level 3: Z ¥ EZ HR
The movements in the investment properties (including FRRBEIRAFETFESD
those investment properties of the disposal groups HoREME (BRIEAFE
classified as held for sale) under Level 3 fair value ZINEHEZIREYE) 2 #
measurements during the year are presented in note 20 to IR B MEM 20 ES
the financial statements. In the opinion of directors, there RE BHE-_ZT—=F+_A4
is no change in the fair value of investment properties =t+—H REEIERFE
included in the disposal groups immediately prior to RIRF A GEHE T IREMEL
classification as held for sale to 31 December 2013. Fair NEEREEE - REMEL
value adjustment on investment properties are recognised AVFEFAERGEERR S [
in the line item “fair value gains on investment properties” EME s N FENE] R - F
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. WETE R EBEm R ER 2 Y& H
All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year arose WERAIHCEMEMESE -
from the investment properties held at the end of the
reporting period.
The movements in the Group’s financial assets at fair FARAREERAFEFAER
value through profit or loss during the year are as follows: L EREE L FENT
Derivatives
Description 5 TEIR
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 January 2013 RN-ZE—=F—HF—H —
Total gains recognised in profit or loss MR KRR 2 Bz ® 38,503
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=f+"A=+—H 38,503
# Include gains for assets held W B IR BRI B A 2 W
at end of reporting period 38,503

The total gains recognised in profit or loss are presented
in the line item “fair value gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

REBERRER 2B E IR
AEmRZ [BAFENARR
ZEMEEQFERE] 27 -
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6. VAHEHE @

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with
recognised professional qualifications and recent

(©)

A S M A 2 A R
Rk B—= N
= H A
P 2 A0 B W A
2 145 -

AEBE MG REAB AT
BERNMBECEERABEZ
NHERE - BREIBATFE
AFE - MBRERZFATFE
AEERRAEFSME - UK
BENEZEGAMRMBMERFR
BREFEDRITMIRGT® °

LFESREAFEAEMS - AE
B—REIEABRAIERE
EROHNERELRZGEESR

experience to perform the valuations. RETEBME -
Level 3 fair value measurements HEIMATEHFE
Fair value
Valuation 2013
Description technique Unobservable inputs Range —EF-=F
5 fRIE R TABZHAYIE #E A
HK$'000
FET
Investment properties Market comparable Premium/(Discount) on quality -5% to 10% 663,024
Commercial — PRC approach of the properties
REME 5L EA BANZEZRL
% — w8/ (&)
Investment properties of Market comparable Premium/(Discount) on quality -25.85% 10 8.61% 620,682
the disposal groups approach of the properties
classified as held for sale
PERFEZ ikl AV BANZEZRL
HEERZRENE w8/ (f7:8)
Derivatives — call options Binomial option Volatility 39.08% 10 45.72% 38,503
pricing model
TETA — REDR IEA BT EES KR
Stock price 210.26
(RMB million)
(&

(ARKBEET)



6.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(continued)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013: (continued)

The fair value of the investment properties and investment
properties of the disposal groups classified as held for
sale located in the PRC are determined using comparison
method by reference to comparable recent market
transactions, on a price per square meter basis, adjusted
for a premium or a discount specific to the quality of
the Group’s investment properties. Higher premium for
higher quality properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair value of the investment properties of
the disposal groups classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2013. In determining the fair value, the valuer
has changed the valuation technique from investment
method (based on capitalisation of the net rental income
with due allowance for the reversionary income potential)
to comparison method since the tenancy agreements of
the said properties were terminated on 31 October 2013.

The fair value of the call options obtained by the Group
are determined using binomial option pricing model and
the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement are expected volatility and underlying stock
price.

The expected volatility is estimated based on historical
volatility of the comparable companies. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the expected
volatility. As at 31 December 2013, it is estimated that with
all other variables held constant, an increase/decrease
in the expected volatility by 5% would have decreased/
increased the Group’s loss after tax by approximately
HK$5,167,000/HK$4,957,000 respectively.
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FEZHEHGZREMEZ
RFEDIRBLEBELL2ER
LB TSR HikE T 75K
BREEET  IMAKER
EMRZEEMER ZRENK
FRELAR - BSEENY
FnEWS HERBRZA
FERE -

REBE R IB L EEGER
FEoBEAREZLEMEAEZ
BEYWER_T—=F+_7
=+—AZAFE - REER
FER - HEMESHERN
MIREE (ERASBRAFEE
e FEFKRAE NIEEE
mE) BEALEEE RAEZ
Tt ECHRERHECR -
—=®+A=+—HKL-

AEBEER 2 RBHEZQF
BNERA-EAREEEEN
BE ARAFEFEZEKX
T B R ABE SN IE
K AERARAE

TEHR IR TIIRIE AT LR A Al 2
FE SR IEE TR - AFER
ERBHLBETHABEMY - B
—ET—=F+-—A=+—8"
EFEHEMESHIETE

BT - T8 ER IR 1 hn, R A
5% % 8 A & B R B 1k & 1B
DRIE D M AN#) 5,167,000 7
7t/ 4,957,000 7T °
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6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6. FEEHR )

(continued)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by (c) AR ) Z A 2 )7
the Group and valuation techniques and it —E =411
inputs used in fair value measurements as at =+ —HAPEF Bl
31 December 2013: (continued) FH 2Z A A8 5 9l S i A\ Bt

R o)
The underlying stock price is estimated based on the FEEREREEECEEER
business enterprise value. The fair value measurement e AT EFEERESR
is positively correlated to the stock price. As at 31 FHEBEE RZE—=F+=
December 2013, it is estimated that with all other variables A=+—H GEREHEME
held constant, an increase/decrease in the stock price by ERBFIEZEBERT  KE
5% would have decreased/increased the Group’s loss B R 5% B E A EE
after tax by approximately HK$5,788,000/HK$5,319,000 BREZEES IR, N
respectively. 5,788,0007% JT 5,319,000
ﬂ: o
7. TURNOVER 7. BE#

AREEERTEEENERAERDE
HER -

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and property rental in the PRC.

ARBZEXBEAFREELEZMEE
BEWARBEWA (FIEREER - Bft
HEMRBEME RITH) - AEERER
MR SERARWE 2 BT

The Group’s turnover represents income from sales of properties
and rental income during the year, net of business tax, other
sales related taxes and discounts allowed. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during the
year is as follows:

2013 2012
—E-= —E-—fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#ET FHTT

Sales of properties YISEIEE 200,540 489,760
Rental income Ee A 80,340 81,407
280,880 571,167
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OTHER INCOME 8. HAbU A
2013 2012
=== —E—_fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FiET
Interest income B U A 2,211 372
Write back of other payables (note) HAb e RIERE (M) 44,377 —

Reversal of provision for contingent liability =%k & & #E @

(note 41(a)) (Mi5E41(a) 24,342 -
Sundry income FIEA 1,246 218
72,176 590

Note:

The amount represented write back of long outstanding payables owed
by the Group. According to legal opinion obtained, the directors are of the
opinion that the time limit for claim by creditors had been lapsed, hence,
the write back of other payables was made.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 9.

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

Property sales — property development and sales

Property rental — property investment and property
rental activities

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include corporate income and expenses.
Segment assets do not include computer software included in
intangible assets and corporate assets which are managed on
a central basis. Segment liabilities include accruals and other
payables, current and deferred tax liabilities managed directly by
the segments.

Fia -

EZ%%E?E%@$EIﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬂi%ﬁffﬁ
BB - RIBERNERER EERRERE

}\TEHjEE/%E’J,HHJ?EEFﬁ B O] Eo A FE A
IR

iy g

REEBUTREZ3HDE0
VIZHE  — YR RIEE
WEHRE — ES &= ES
HEES)
AEBE 7 2/HD I ERETRE R &R
TERIRBE TSN - AR B EBHERT
BT SHERE  WZE2%555
PAERE -
KNI 7 SETHER A SRR MITES
NETEYE—E - D HBEBWBEIED
HEWAKRRAY - nHEETREREE
mIVEETHEREEREFER 2D
¥XEE - »HEBEREIHE *%.:IEZ

FERT & M R E MR R
HIEAE -

T8 ~ BNVEA MR AE

1M
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. HHEER =
Information about reportable segments’ profit or AFHRERSHZEE  BEk
loss, assets and liabilities HIEZ Gk
Property Property
sales rental Total
MEHE WERE Fik
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT FET FTET
Year ended 31 December 2013 HEE-Z=F
+ZA=+—HILLEE
Revenue from external customers RPN 200,540 80,340 280,880
Segment (loss)/profit S8 (B1R) /&7 (250,637) 177,399 (73,238)
Other information: HiEk -
Interest income FEWA 2,208 1 2,209
Interest expense FBHX 129,868 - 129,868
Depreciation and amortisation & R 1,951 — 1,951
Land lease charge (in respect of THHEE (BEER
prepaid land lease payments) THAEEFIA) 1,439 - 1,439
Income tax FTiSH (16,705) 20,520 3,815
Other material items of income and expense: HERKFIES
Land premium related charges THHESERER
and penalties P&k 46,549 - 46,549
Other material non-cash items: HihEXRIRLIER -
Fair value gains on investment properties BEWME 2 N ENE - 120,625 120,625
Write back of other payables Hit et HIARME 44,377 - 44,377
Reversal of provision for contingent liability FARBEREREE 24,342 - 24,342
Impairment loss on favourable operating ERAHEEF
leases on business combination JIEEHE
RIEEE 21,133 - 21,133
Impairment loss on goodwil HERESR 4,149 - 4,149
Additions to segment non-current assets DEIERENE B 2 SN 6,521 - 6,521
At 31 December 2013 RIE-—Z&
+ZA=+—
Segment assets NEEE 7,843,791 1,300,094 9,143,885
Segment liabilities HEa’E 5,921,767 199,072 6,120,839
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. HEER )
Information about reportable segments’ profit or AFHRERSHZENE  BEk
loss, assets and liabilities (continued) HEZER @)
Property Property
sales rental Total
ES MERE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FEr FET
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-T——F
+-B=1+—HIFE
Revenue from external customers MR P 489,760 81,407 571,167
Segment profit D E & A 121,708 88,638 210,346
Other information: HpER -
Interest income FEMA 372 — 372
Interest expense FIER% 91,095 — 91,095
Depreciation and amortisation e M 1,378 — 1,378
Land lease charge (in respect of THEEE (BB
prepaid land lease payments) T EFRIHE) 939 — 939
Income tax PriSHE 45,017 11,587 56,604
Other material items of income and expense: HppBEAWLIER :
Land premium related charges TinPEEAEER
and penalties KEig 3,866 — 3,866
Other material non-cash items: HBEAIREER :
Fair value gains on investment properties REMEZ N FHERE — 30,174 30,174
Gain on bargain purchase in respect WEEMB ARz
of business combination 150,438 — 150,438
Additions to segment non-current assets DECIERENE B 2 BN 7,795 — 7,795
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-ZF
TZA=1-H
Segment assets DEEE 4,954,218 1,146,239 6,100,457
Segment liabilities HHBEE 3,085,316 158,434 3,243,750




’114 ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

St 5 2 Wi

For the year ended 31 December 20183 B2 —T—=F+_H=+—HIEFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. HHEER =
Reconciliations of reportable segments’ profit or BWaMZEE - EERAE
loss, assets and liabilities Z B

2013 2012
=== —E—_fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 25 2~ B 54858 (73,238) 210,346
Unallocated amounts KOS
Fair value gains on financial assets RATFERAER
at fair value through profit or loss ZamEENTEKS 38,503 —
Other corporate expenses * HAth b FFT (932,910) (32,104)
Consolidated (loss)/profit for the year KFEEHRE (BB) &5 (967,645) 178,242
Assets EiE
Total assets of reportable segments BB REE 9,143,885 6,100,457
Unallocated amounts RO e
Other corporate assets EfrEE 2,395,227 3,590
Consolidated total assets CABEE 11,539,112 6,104,047
Liabilities afg
Total liabilities of reportable segments EWMNAzBEE 6,120,839 3,243,750
Unallocated amounts RHOELERE
Other corporate liabilities HEhEafs 1,686,036 255,312
Consolidated total liabilities mEEBRE 7,806,875 3,499,062

* HAib PR B

Other corporate expenses include the following:

2013 2012

—F=f —T——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Other income HAbg A (3] (199)
Impairment loss on prepayments U RE IR AR s 2 TR 5K

for acquisition of equity interest RIEEE 830,533 —

Unallocated administration RO BT R BB AR
and finance costs 102,379 32,303

932,910 32,104
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. BHEPER
Geographical information Hb i R}
All the revenue generated by the Group for the two years ended AEBBE_Z—=FER_T—=F
31 December 2013 and 2012 were attributable to customers T A=t+—RHIMEFE AR
based in the PRC. In addition, the majority of the Group’s TIREFBEZEP o I - AEBEZ K
non-current assets are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no EMRIERBEESMNANTRE - B E
geographical analysis is presented. ZVHE DT °
Revenue from major customers KA FEE P Z W
During the year ended 31 December 2013, revenues derived REE-_ZT—=F+=ZA=+—8H
from the Group’s largest customer which accounted for 10% or LEFE AEBREEATEPZHK
more of the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately EEASEEBRZEI0%IIA L 8
HK$80,340,000 (2012: HK$81,407,000). These revenues are /80,340,000 T ( = & — = & :
attributable to the property rental segment. 81,407,000 70) - 2S5 W R E W E

HEDHR -

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 10. Hth 2B X
2013 2012
=== —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Land premium related charges T HESERERA LIS
and penalties 46,549 3,866
Other taxes HAth A 18 16,510 12,612
Net foreign exchange loss SN B 1R T 5 419 2,076
Financial advisory fees IR E 73,276 —
Impairment loss on favourable operating %754 G5 A F
leases on business combination ZEEHERAEBE 21,133 —
Impairment loss on goodwil HEREBE 4,149 —
Impairment loss on prepayments I BB AR A i 55 7 TEAS 5R0E
for acquisition of equity interest REEE (FH5E25())
(note 25(a)) 830,533 —
Sundry expenses MIEMAS 1,259 847

993,828 19,401
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11. FINANCE COSTS 11. A& RA
2013 2012
=== —E—_fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FiET
Finance lease charges BhEHEMY 34 25
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable 7B AFEREBHEERE
within five years ZIRITERHE 90,078 33,745
Interest on Senior Notes wholly ARAFRBEEE
repayable within five years BB R 127,286 83,390
Interest on other borrowings wholly ARAFRNEBHEER
repayable within five years Z EMEFRF B 89,323 —
Total borrowings costs IS E R A 306,721 117,160
Amount capitalised BEXR{L2HE (96,965) (8,309)
209,756 108,851
Borrowing costs on funds borrowed generally are capitalised at a —RERZBEERRIREFNE6.7% (=
rate of 6.7% (2012: 23%) per annum. T 23%) HETTERL -
2 y
12. INCOME TAX 12. Bt
2013 2012
—E-= —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Current tax BN EATR 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax A 1 25 TS
— Provision for the year —RF 8,457 28,739
LAT B ER
— Provision for the year — AN - 21,883
— Over-provision in prior years — LA F R B (22,315) —
(13,858) 50,622
Deferred tax (note 37) IRIERIIA (MIFE37) 17,673 5,982
3,815 56,604




12. INCOME TAX (continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong for both years.

Subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to PRC Corporate
Income Tax at 25% (2012: 25%) based on the relevant income
tax rules and regulations in the PRC.

According to the PRC corporate income tax law and the relevant
PRC issued implementation regulation, the Group is subject to
PRC withholding income tax of 10% on the gross rental income
(2012: 10%).

Under the PRC corporate income tax law, dividends received by
foreign investors from investment in foreign-invested enterprises
in respect of their profits earned since 1 January 2008 are subject
to withholding tax of 5% to 10% unless reduced by treaty.
Accordingly, deferred tax has been recognised for undistributed
retained profits of a PRC subsidiary at a rate of 10% to the extent
that the profits will be distributed in the foreseeable future.

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for sale, at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, which under the applicable regulations is calculated
based on the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditure including lease charges of land use rights, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditure.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
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12. WifgBi o

AR AEENBEMEFELBESE
EEEARRBRN - R ERE AT
BUfEL A -

RIBZEBETE SRR EARG - 7
BRI B A RIZR#N25% (—F
— 5 25%) ZPBLEMAEH o

RIE R B S FTE A R B 2 48
AERMR - NEBEERESWALRE
Z10% (ZE—ZF : 10%) ZM+ =
TEHFTISHEL ©

REBEHBEDEMEVE - RIBZH U
ER%  BRARIMEEER _TT/\F
—A— BRIERERINEIE B EEE
2 MPTS 2 B RZAS N 6% = 10% T8
R - Eitk - PEMB AR ZRD KR
BaNEI10% 2 L RigERIRERIA -
HEATR AT TR R SR AS VB HE 20 Ik s 1) A5
R o

REEBRIFHE 2 MEMR L EEIS
IN#230% £ 60% T35 2 RAEH KUK
THIRER - RBEAMRD - LHIR(E
T 53R WD 3% 35 58 PSRRI AT F0RR S
(B AREERX  FERAK
KA BEMEERMAR) FHHE
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12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. BBt
The reconciliation between the income tax and the product of FTiS R AR B AT (B518) % A3k LA
(loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as RABERZEHRIOT
follows:
2013 2012
—E-= —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHTT
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRFLAT (E51B) mF (963,830) 234,846
Tax at the applicable rates in the RRERAERERDE
jurisdictions concerned FE 2 HIE (191,248) 41,882
Tax effect on LAT deductible for calculation ststE Ffii5 ﬁﬁﬁ‘;—f?ﬂﬁ
of income tax purpose THIRET 2 IS R 2 5,579 (5,471)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBRA 2 RIG2 (10,583) (24,870)
Tax effect of expenses that are AR 2 R &
not deductible 174,483 21,054
Tax effect of temporary differences RERCERERE
not recognised LRGSR 3,751 1,432
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BB ATARER 2 BB 18
not previously recognised B E - (6,740)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIER 2 TIEEE 2 RIS s & 44,148 2,401
Deferred tax on undistributed profits BE—HETEWEAR
of a PRC subsidiary Roiks | B IR - 5,033
LAT T HIRER (22,315) 21,883

Income tax FriSHi 3,815 56,604




13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13.

The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
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ALENE (i) Al

AEBZAFEE (BB /&8e

M, (GEA) ATRRIA

2013 2012
—F—=£ —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT FHETT
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET N &
— Audit —gt 1,800 1,380
— Others —HA 870 470
2,670 1,850
Amortisation on intangible assets B A E#E 1,815 890
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 171,692 351,390
Depreciation e 1,265 982
Amount capitalised = N gt (11) -
Depreciation net of amount capitalised WEREN&5E 1,254 982
Loss on disposal of property, plant MEEME - BB k&iE 2 EE
and equipment - 14
Operating lease charges in respect THREFEEHRNEER
of land and buildings 2,758 2,350
Staff costs (including directors’ BTINA (BREEZHS)
emoluments)
— Salaries, allowances and —5&  EMREE
compensation 24,783 12,381
— Retirement benefit scheme —RIKEFIFH B R
contributions 949 367
25,732 12,748
Amount capitalised Bt EFE
— Salaries, allowances and —Fe R E
compensation (3,800) (1,851)
— Retirement benefit scheme —IRIKEFIFT IR
contributions (272) (50)
(4,072) (1,901)
Staff costs net of amount capitalised BIXANRERNME &5
— Salaries, allowances and —¥& SRR NEE
compensation 20,983 10,530
— Retirement benefit scheme —IRIKBFIFT IR
contributions 677 317
21,660 10,847
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14. HEHELAREEZME

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each director are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2013

BEESMEOT

BE_F—=f+"_HA=+—HLEE

Retirement

benefit scheme

Salariesand  contributions
Name of director Fees allowances RIMER Total
ESiA g HEREH B BE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx Fi#x Ti#x
Liao Tengjia Bl - 1,736 - 1,736
Chu Hing Tsung, alias Zhu Qing Yi RER (XBRER) - 1,200 - 1,200
Chu Muk Chi, alias Zhu La Yi RARZ (REKERF) - 650 - 650
Huang Jia Jue EEE - 1,768 - 1,768
Leung Wo Ping JP PRF R4 240 - - 240
Law Shu Sang Joseph B 240 - - 240
Wong Chi Keung B 240 - - 240
Total ke 720 5,354 - 6,074
Year ended 31 December 2012 HE_ZT——F+-A=+—"HIFE

Retirement

benefit scheme

Salaries and contributions
Name of director Fees allowances RIRER Total
BEME ks e NoEhh BE ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL FEL TEL
Liao Tengjia Bl - 650 — 650
Chu Hing Tsung, alias Zhu Qing Yi RER (XBERER) — 650 — 650
Chu Muk Chi, alias Zhu La Yi KR (RBRHF) — 650 — 650
Huang Jia Jue HER - 650 — 650
Leung Wo Ping JP ZMERFoL 240 — — 240
Law Shu Sang Joseph (Note (b)) B (i3 () 137 — — 137
Wong Chi Keung (Note (v)) &% (i3 ([) 137 — — 137
Liang Tongying (Note (a)) 28 (M3 (a) 80 — — 80
Zhang Jiangi (Note (c)) wEmE (M) 103 - — 103
Total ek 697 2,600 — 3,207




14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(@) Resigned on 1 May 2012
(b) Appointed on 5 June 2012
(c) Retired on 5 June 2012

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years 2013 and 2012.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 3 (2012: 2) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining
2 (2012: 3) individuals are set out below:

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
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14. HHELEREZME @

P&

(@) R_Z——FRA—BET
(b) R-ZE——FNARBEZT
(© R-E-—FRARREE

RoE—=—FEER-_T-—FE  TEE
EEEPEES R ERE AR E 2 228k -

F - AEEZSHREHFALTES
B(=F——%:2f) AEF  ®E
ZES R EAITRFIE - Hipofs
—T—F 31 BEFALIMHE
T

2013 2012

—E-—= —EF——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

Ti#x FBT

Salaries and allowances e MoEBA 1,490 2,442
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  3RRIE &I T 28 40
1,518 2,482

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

e &0 ALAT AR

Number of individuals

A
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET-—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 7 1,000,000/87C 2 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %&7T

% 1,500,000/ 7T

Apart from the above emoluments, approximately HK$225,000
was paid by the Group to one of the two remaining highest paid
individuals as compensation for loss of office during the year
20183. Apart from the above-mentioned compensation, during
the years 2013 and 2012, no other emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

BREMBEI R-2F—=FEF K
SERESRUSESHFALTZEF
S #)225,000 8 7T 1ERBEREE -
B EMEEN R —=FER=T
——FE  ARBYEREMNEELK
BHALXNEMME - ERINAKRSE
B IMARKE R 2 BE - SIERBER
g -
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15. LOSS/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
included a loss of approximately HK$759,802,000 (2012: the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company included
a profit of approximately HK$10,103,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

16. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2012: Nil) in respect of the year.

17. LOSS/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss/earnings per share

The calculation of basic loss/earnings per share is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$938,643,000 (2012:
profit of approximately HK$182,349,000) divided by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
3,657,909,251 (2012: 2,813,868,427) in issue during the
year.

(b) Diluted loss/earnings per share

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
20183 has not been presented as the Company’s
outstanding warrants during the year has an anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share.

There was no dilutive potential shares during the year
ended 31 December 2012. Therefore, no diluted earnings
per share was presented.

15.

16.

17.

A0 wl B N EAG A
3 Py

RARHEB AEEARFEBEREBE
#7759,802,000 8 L (ZE—=F : K
NAEB AEEARFE T 2L
10,103,00087T) * ERARA 78 7 5
FAFRIE °

Jix 8

EERFAFETNRBIAKRE (-
— 4 ) o

R A
(a) ERIEAER A

BREXREE BFIIRAR
ABBEAEBEREEEERY
938,643,000/ ;L (= F — =
1 % F #9182,349,00078 TT)
BrAF B BT mAR 2 N
19 803,657,909,251 f (==
— — £ :2,813,868,427 %) =f

o

Rt

(b) FREEEEE B

HRFRARBZMRITER
BEFHEREABIEAER
BEYE WEE-_ZT—=

T+ A=t HILFETESR
PR EEE -

BIEFE  BEEL#EEh
&D‘Wﬂﬂﬁfﬂ#h%ﬁ
ARH| o



18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
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18. W3k - Wam Kt

EQUIPMENT
Office
equipment,
furniture
and fixtures Motor Construction
PWAERRME vehicles in progress Total
BRREE RE HEEIRE bl
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FHET TFHT FAT
Cost RiE
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F
—H—H 1,081 1,678 — 2,759
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEME 2 A 237 1,227 3,024 4,488
Additions = 979 — 7,662 8,641
Disposals b6 (506) — — (506)
Exchange differences BN =5 — (1) (4) ()
At 31 December 2012 R-T—_%F
+—-—HA=+—H 1,791 2,904 10,682 15,377
Additions = 1,136 834 5,351 7,321
Exchange differences EHZER 20 35 414 469
At 31 December 2013 RIE—=%F
+=-A=+—H 2,947 3,773 16,447 23,167
Accumulated depreciation HEtin g
At 1 January 2012 RZE—ZF
—H—H 608 532 — 1,140
Charge for the year REERZ 400 582 — 082
Disposals L (492) - - (492)
Exchange differences EHZER — 1 — 1
At 31 December 2012 MZZE——4F
+=A=+—H 516 1,115 - 1,631
Charge for the year AFERE 555 710 — 1,265
Exchange differences EHZER 9 11 — 20
At 31 December 2013 RIE—=%
+ZA=+—H 1,080 1,836 - 2,916
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2013 RIE—=%
+=ZA=+—H 1,867 1,937 16,447 20,251
At 31 December 2012 RZE—=F
+=—A=+—H 1,275 1,789 10,682 13,746
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 18. W3k ~ Wb Kkt cm)
EQUIPMENT (continued)
As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of office RZZE—=F+ZA=+—1H  &~5E
equipment and motor vehicles held by the Group under finance DRERORE C I AERME N TEN
leases amounted to approximately HK$6,000 and HK$769,000 SR TEE 2 Bl %) 46,0008 7T & 769,000
respectively (2012: HK$14,000 and HK$811,000 respectively). BT (ZE—Z%F : 5517 14,0008 7T
% 811,00047T)
As at 31 December 2013, the construction in progress was RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—0 BT
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans (details of which EEER  EFAREBERITERZER
are set out in note 34(b) to the financial statements). m (AFFEE NI B EMTE34(0))
£ &
19. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 19. FEA LR 3K0E
2013 2012
=== —E——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
At 1 January n—H—H 51,212 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries WHEHTB A A - 52,225
Amortisation for the year AN (1,439) (939)
Exchange differences e ZE8 1,583 (74)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 51,356 51,212
Current portion BNERER 5> (1,460) (1,416)
Non-current portion FERNERER 49,896 49,796
The Group’s prepaid land lease payments in relation to land use REE BN THEERE - EENF
rights under medium term leases in Guangzhou, the PRC for B AIE T ARNBEERF RN B E
hotel buildings, were acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries Mz T fERE - ThERN T ——4F
in 2012. As at 31 December 2013, the land use rights were WHEMB ARG - RZE—=F+=
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans (details of which A=+—8  LIEREZKR  EA
are set out in note 34(b) to the financial statements). AEFEFITEFRZEER (HFBHN
B 75 = T 52 34(0)) ©
20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. HEYE
2013 2012
—E-= —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET T
At 1 January n—A—H 1,126,037 1,095,966
Fair value gains N ERE 120,625 30,174
Classified as held for sale (note 29) PEAEFEWE (MizE29) (620,682) —
Exchange differences e X =58 37,044 (103)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8H 663,024 1,126,037




20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

@)

As at 31 December 2013, all the Group’s investment
properties, situated in Guangzhou, the PRC, are held
under medium-term leases.

The Group’s investment properties held under operating
leases for rental purposes are measured using the fair
value model. The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2013 was based on a
valuation carried out by A.G. Wilkinson & Associates
(Surveyors) Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group with substantial
experience in valuation of properties. The valuation of
investment properties was carried out, on the basis of
market value, by comparison method with reference to
comparable market transactions, adjusted for a premium
or a discount specific to the quality of the investment
properties. The Group’s financial controller has discussion
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and results
when the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

As at 31 December 2013, all investment properties were
pledged for the Group’s bank loans (details of which are
set out in note 34(b) to the financial statements).

The Group leases out all its investment properties under
operating leases. The leases are fixed for a term of seven
years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are receivable as follows:

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

20. HEME @

(@

WZE—=F+=ZA=+—
B AEEMEREMEHMN
AR B EM - IR R A
5o

AREBMACEROBHAELR
gz REWME RN TFER
E-AEEREMER_-ZT
—=ZF+_A=+—HZRA¥
BENREERENEMITER
RAMEH ZEEBE - Z A7
BRERE[EMmEEE
EEREEMGERM ERWE
HESFEEELELR KE
MEZHELETEEERA
LA EMLRMER HiE
7 WIREBEREMERTER
ERERITEAE - RS HRE
RERBPHEAEAZE  AEH
2 ISR B B E R AT sR S
BERERER -

RZE—=F+=ZHA=+—
H - FTBEREMEGHERTE
ERITERHERD (BHAFS
BB IR FE34(b)) ©

AEBEREBELEHELEEM
EREME - HEMER/S L
FoZEHEHTBEXANE

N
e

RZF-—=F+ZA=1+—
A A& EARER A AT ARBR A 48
EHEERRERNSEEE
BRI -

2013 2012
—B—Z=F —E—_F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

T#xT FET

Within one year —FNR 52,374 90,283
In the second to fifth years inclusive 28 —ZF A F (BIEERMSE) 215,551 325,290
267,925 415,573
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21. WBIEEE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Favourable
operating
leases on
business
combination
EB A Computer
ZEE software Total
rEHE ES [N wEE
(Note)
(M%)
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET T BT
Cost RE
At 1 January 2012 MZE—Z4F
—H—H - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR 37,618 — 37,618
Additions NE — 2,059 2,059
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F
+=—A=+—H 37,618 2,059 39,677
Additions = - 7,520 7,520
Exchange differences e =58 — 175 175
At 31 December 2013 RIE—Z=F
+=ZHA=+—H 37,618 9,754 47,372
Accumulated amortisation R RE
and impairment
At 1 January 2012 NZE—ZF
—H—H - - -
Amortisation for the year REEHESH 681 209 890
Exchange differences EH =R — 1 1
At 31 December 2012 RIT——4F
+=-A=+—8 681 210 891
Amortisation for the year AN S 5 1,021 794 1,815
Impairment loss BIEEE 21,133 — 21,133
Exchange differences ME 5 2R — 18 18
At 31 December 2013 R-E—Z=F
+=-A=+—H 22,835 1,022 23,857
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2013 RIE—Z=%
+ZA=+—H 14,783 8,732 23,515
At 31 December 2012 RZT—Z4F
+=-—A=+—~H” 36,937 1,849 38,786




21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Note:

In 2012, the Group obtained certain land use rights under medium term
leases in Guangzhou, the PRC through acquisition of subsidiaries. The
terms of the leases are favourable relative to market terms. Hence, the
Group recognised an intangible asset.

In 2013, due to changes in market condition, the recoverable amount
of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments (note 19) and favourable
operating leases arising from business combination was assessed. The
recoverable amount of the prepaid land lease payments and favourable
operating leases on business combination amounted to approximately
HK$66,139,000 was based on the fair value less costs of disposal as
at 31 December 2013, using direct comparison approach by reference
to comparable sale transactions in the relevant market, adjusted for
differences such as location, on the assumption that the underlying land
use rights can be freely transferred in the open market, as assessed by an
independent qualified professional valuer and approved by the directors.
The fair value on which the recoverable amount based on is catergorised
as a level 3 measurement under HKFRS 13. An impairment loss on
favourable operating leases on business combination of approximately

21.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

WIEEE =
e -

R-T——%  AEEZBRENBELRR
B EMES A I AR 2 B T bk
PR - MAVERETIGERER » Eit - &
SEER/BIVEE -

RZZT—=F HRTMREE  AEEE
N EFIE (ME19) REBEHESE
ZEREEAE Bl EEL T - 78
S FIE RERHA R 2 EREEH
B 2 Al [l & 58 4 566,189,000 7T T
m_2—7¢+ A=+ —BEAFERE
EXNAET  MAFENDBELBLEER
E%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ&%%ﬂ&Zﬁ%ﬁ%Zﬂ
LLESEER S - SN BESE EIEH AR
RAEERLEAET - WERRAE T ER
AR ARS8 REE - REBEESVIE®R

EEAFEA35E - A E KRB EMAZ A
TEAIEREIRFE - EBANRZESR

KEHE 2 REFBIEL A21,133,0007% T
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HK$21,133,000 (included in other operating expenses) was recognised (FIAHEMLEFRST)  EREBEE-T—=F
during the year ended 31 December 2013. +ZA=+—HIEFEER
22. GOODWILL 22. BB
HK$'000
FAT

Cost RE
At 1 January 2012 RZE—=—F—HF—H —
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41(b)) UGB @A) (MRt 41() 4,149
At 31 December 2012 W-ZE——_F+_-_A=+—8H 4,149
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41(a)) WEEH B A A (MiiE41() 18,011
Impairment loss WEEE (4,149
Exchange differences fEH =% 531
At 31 December 2013 R-ZFE—=F+"A=+—H 18,542
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22. GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The carrying
amount of goodwill was allocated as follows:

22. B2 )

X AES I EEINER DR
SRR EBAHTERCReESE
B ((REELEM) - BEZE®R
BEEDEWMT :

2013 2012
—B—Z=fF —EC_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Property development and sales segment #7252 K& 5% 526
Guangzhou Dong Gang He Zhong BMNEEE REHE

Property Company Limited* BRAR (EMEED
(“Guangzhou Dong Gang”) = 4,149
Guangdong Xilong BRERE 18,542 —
18,542 4,149

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on
the fair value less costs of disposal. The fair value of the CGUs is
determined according to the value of the underlying properties.
Goodwill decreases along with the sales of the underlying
properties and any impairment loss. Up to 31 December 2013,
no revenue was generated by the CGUs. The assumptions
used in deriving the recoverable amount for the CGUs have
been determined based on the past performance, nature of the
underlying properties and management’s latest development plan
and expectations in respect of the market development in the
PRC property market.

The impairment loss of approximately HK$4,149,000 (included
in other operating expenses) solely relates to the CGU of
Guangzhou Dong Gang due to changes in market conditions. The
recoverable amount of the CGU of Guangzhou Dong Gang was
determined based on the fair value less costs of disposal as at
31 December 2013, by reference to comparable sales evidence
in the relevant market and the development costs relevant to
the stage of construction and the remainder of the costs that
expected to be incurred for completing the development, as
assessed by an independent qualified professional valuer and
approved by the directors.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.

ReELRU 2 REERIEAFE
B EKRAETE - ReEEBEM 2 NF
BEBNRERENEZEBEEE - BER
FEMRRAYI R 2 1 & R AER EE R MR
Lo HEFT-=Ft+-_A=t—8H"
ReES BT ESRNS - AHERE
EAE B 2 PR E 2 5T RRIRE
BERR - HEMEEEREEEYT
BYETS SRR &M ERAE
NIBMEE -

SHE BT 1B 414,149,000 7T (FI| A E A
KRR ) EHEEMNRBRE BT L

ZHEESELBNER BNEERZ=ZZ
—ZF+ A=+ HAZBREELENM
Z AR Bl & B TR A AR H SR A E
T MAFEDNSELEBIAEREE
HEMMERESIE 2 RBET S 20
LLESHE AR - R TR
AN SERK B R TR HAAS BE A 2 IR A

E °

* A ETHEMHE
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23. INVENTORIES 23. #H§
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Properties for sale under development BRAPFEDE 6,075,409 4,029,159
Properties held for sale FEME 22,232 359
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 6,097,641 4,029,518
(@)  The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in @ EFABEBRESEVERTEY
properties for sale under development and properties held ¥ HE T BREE ST 40
for sale is as follows: I
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#T FAET
In PRC A E
— Long leases — REIMEA 1,359,652 809,683
— Medium-term leases — HERAEAY 1,932,101 475,863
3,291,753 1,285,546
(o)  The amount of properties for sale under development () TEEIBRBRA—FROEU
expected to be recovered after more than one year is RAPFEME 2 SBUOT -
analysed as follows:
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TF#ET FAT
Properties for sale under BRPFENE
development 5,861,220 3,894,836
(c) As at 31 December 2013, certain properties for sale under (c) RZE—=F+=ZRA=+—

development were pledged for the Group’s bank loans
and other borrowings (details of which are set out in notes
34(b) and 34(d) to the financial statements).

H 5TEBRREEMEER
REEBRBRITERRHEAER
miEEAR (A BN M BIRE
B 5E 34(b) K2 34(d)) °
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24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24. JEWEZK

The Group’s accounts receivable represent receivables from
property rental and sales of properties. Rental receivables from
tenants are due on presentation of invoices and there are no
credit terms for sales of properties.

The aging analysis of accounts receivable, based on the invoice
date for property rental and delivery date for property sales, is as
follows:

REEZ REERTIREMERE LY
FKIHE ZEIFOR - REMEF ZEEHE
SRHREREE - WREELEE

B8 -

YU ESTIRYFHEHFZ A MY EH
BN BEFEZ BREEDHTIAT

2013 2012

—E-—= —EF——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FBT

Within 3 months —{EALA 11,644 4,277

As of 31 December 2013, the above accounts receivable were
past due for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss.

The above receivables relate to certain independent purchasers
and a tenant. In respect of the accounts receivable that arose
from sales of properties, the directors consider that these
receivables would be recovered and no allowance for impairment
was made against these past due receivables. Regarding
the rental receivable of approximately HK$1,402,000 (2012:
HK$2,525,000), the balance was fully settled subsequent to the
reporting date. The Group holds rental deposits as collateral from
the tenant. As such, the directors consider that no allowance for
impairment is necessary in respect of the rental receivable.

R-ZFB—=F+-A=+—H  LifE
WiERE A - EAREEYEELRE
EERE -

FiERGRIEEE T h—RH
FPER - stEEEE 2 EIERSM
T EERARZRWFIEAHIKE -
D 4 6 52 55 2 480 HA PR R TE 1 R
B - BLIEUNAE < 491,402,000 % 7T
—T— 4 :2,525000/87C) ME
HERERMER R SEER - A5E
BEHPzHERSERERR -
It EFRABARERASIELRE
B o
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 25. TEMFEKIE - BT R At
OTHER RECEIVABLES W Wk JH
2013 2012
=== —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Prepayments for acquisition of W g AR AN M 55 2 TR SRIE
equity interest (note (a)) (P 5E () 1,155,287 —
Deposits for acquisition of equity W BB R A M 2, - Hb {55 P4
interest/land use rights (note (b)) ZE]% (BIEE D)) 781,567 —
Prepayments for acquisition of property ~ WEEWIEEEIAR IR AMERS
development projects/equity ZTEFIE (W5 ()
interests (note (c)) 398,770 78,617
Prepaid construction costs FETEEK A 237,506 41,218
Other prepayments, HAbTEFIE -
deposits and receivables & R EWGRIE 164,538 333,927
Prepaid land costs (note (d)) TER AN (FIFE(d)) - 124,032
2,737,668 577,794

On 12 September 2013, South Trend Holdings Limited
(“South Trend”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the purchaser, Quan Xing Holdings Ltd
(“Quan Xing”) as the vendor and Mr. Cheung Fong
Wing as Quan Xing’s guarantor entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Joygain SP Agreement”),
pursuant to which South Trend conditionally agreed to
purchase and Quan Xing conditionally agreed to sell all
its equity interest in Joygain Holdings Limited (“Joygain”),
representing 50% of the total issued share capital of
Joygain (the “Joygain Acquisition”). The consideration
was agreed to be satisfied by HK$150 million deposit
in cash to be paid at the date of signing the Joygain SP
Agresment, 558,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each to be issued by the Company (the “Consideration
Shares”) and the remaining balance of approximately
HK$1,599,000 to be settled in cash at the completion of
the Joygain Acquisition.

ZE—=FNA+=ZH" &
Al E2BWEB AR e EZE
RER A ([ME] - ERE
) BEIERERAF ([F
B ERER) BRFRESE
E(REEZERAN) FIVE
ERzE (LEEERZ]D B
I MEAEKGRERE &
BEGRHRE LS EREEE
BREBRAR (T45B]) <&
AR - BEREEE BT
BR AR 4258 2 50% ([ &5 iE =
B - BAREBREHBERE
RS EERE ARSI NR
% 5] % 150,000,000/ 70 * A4
AEETEREMEI0B T
558,000,000 % #T & 8 Az ([ 1%
BRHD BN FHRELD
1,599,000 T iR LS I
BEMKEBARE I o

B E
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)

(continued)

Joygain is a company incorporated in the BVI and its
principal asset is 100% equity interest in Ocean Leader
Investments Limited (“Ocean Leader”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. Upon the date of signing
the Joygain SP Agreement, Ocean Leader was in the
process of acquiring 100% equity interest in Guangzhou
Yifa Development Company Limited* (“Guangzhou Yifa”).
Guangzhou Yifa is a company incorporated in the PRC
and its principal business activity is to develop a piece of
land, of approximately 94,000 square meters, located in
Baiyun District, Guangzhou (the “Land”)

According to the Joygain SP Agreement, one of the
significant conditions to the Joygain Acquisition is that
the 100% equity interest in Guangzhou Yifa is held by
Ocean Leader and Joygain has obtained all necessary
approvals from relevant government authorities in respect
thereof. However, up to 31 December 2013, the aforesaid
condition was yet to be fulfilled.

Another significant condition to the Joygain SP Agreement
is that Guangzhou Yifa should own the Land with all valid
land use right certificates and the Land should be free
from all encumbrances (both current and contingent).
As at 31 December 2013, Guangzhou Yifa was only
able to obtain one land use right certificate in respect of
approximately 42,000 square meters (the “Partial Portion
Land”) out of approximately 94,000 square meters. In
addition, the Partial Portion Land has been frozen by
the Guangzhou City Intermediate People’s Court of
Guangdong Province in relation to certain legal actions
and consequently, the Partial Portion Land is not free from
all encumbrances.

As at 31 December 2013, the HK$150 million deposit
has been paid and the Consideration Shares have been
issued to Quan Xing. However, the Joygain Acquisition
was yet to be completed as the significant conditions as
mentioned above and as stipulated in the Joygain SP
Agreement have yet to be fulfilled.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.

25. fﬁﬁifxlﬁ ~ 514 B HiAth
JEWL K IE ()

@)

(#8)

SLeE—HREBRAESF
MRz e EXBEEER
BEEDBEMERLAGLERE
BERRAR ([F4]) 2100%
Bt e REFTRLBEER
HBH B TEWREERME
BEEXERBBRAA EM
168 ]) 2 100% P AN % o B
Mg AEREEMALZ A
Al AEX2XEBAME I8
AN T B E R E & 4Y 94,000
ARz ([FZEH]) ©

RIEZEGEEDHE BB
FHZEF-EAEEHRERE
JH15 8 2 100% PR A 2a /B 44
A ARESREBBRAEE
BERF—YLENABILE -
R BE-_ZT—=F+_H
=+—B - DREFDARERR

BSEEEWME LS —EEKY
BEMNGEBHREZ LI E
BIIBEBMZ T F AEEE
Rzt EFmEES &
(BRTRZEAR) - RZE—=%
+ZA=+—8 " BEMNEEE
BEEN1S 494,000 F 5 KR 249
42,000 F 5K b ([ 39 =
) 2 — B EREE - It
Hh o ZE DB R EET
FERFARMERREREIMNTHR
WAREB RS - AL - %3
DT IEE T EREEE

RZE—=F+_HA=+—
H - 150,000,000/ Tt 2 7] &
EXREREEETRER
fhe A REWEEERA L
XA SIS EE R ELE
S 8 AR A T B R TEAK ©
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

@)

(continued)

The prepayments for the acquisition of equity interest
relating to the Joygain Acquisition represent the sum
of HK$150 million deposit and the fair value of the
Consideration Shares amounting to HK$1,835,820,000
determined on the basis of the closing market price of
the Company’s ordinary shares of HK$3.29 each at
the issue date less an impairment loss of approximately
HK$830,533,000, by reference to the estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is based on
fair value less costs of disposal measured by reference to
the business enterprise value of Joygain, Ocean Leader
and Guangzhou Yifa as at 31 December 2013, assuming
the Land were free from all encumbrances, as assessed
by an independent qualified professional valuer and
approved by the directors. The business enterprise value
is categorised as a level 3 measurement under HKFRS
13.

The directors are of the opinion that the impairment
loss of approximately HK$830,533,000 (recognised in
other operating expenses) was mainly attributable to the
increase in the closing market price of the Company’s
ordinary shares at their issue date as compared to the
price of HK$1.98 per Consideration Share as stipulated in
the Joygain SP Agreement.

Although the terms of the Joygain SP Agreement have
not been completely fulfilled as at 31 December 2013,
the parties have agreed to extend the completion date.
In the opinion of the directors, Quan Xing shall honour its
obligations under the Joygain SP Agreement.

On 28 March 2014, the 100% equity interest in
Guangzhou Yifa was transferred to Ocean Leader and a
valid land use right certificate for the Land was obtained
by Guangzhou Yifa.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
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WHEHEALESIWEEIEMER 2
BAEZ 2 BNIRIBIE &
150,000,0007% 7T £ K & I
i 2 A F {E1,835,820,000 %5
T BRAFENEARNEE
P E E3.207 ;T 2 BN
BITRH KT ERSE M
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REF LERALEBLE L
SEREEGHEMTERES
B2 EE  BEREMNEE
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B °
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) The Group’s deposits for acquisition of equity interest/

land use rights arise from the following:

U

On 18 October 2013, the Company as the
intended purchaser, Rong De (the Company’s
immediate and ultimate holding company) as
the intended vendor and Guangzhou Zhuguang
Investment Company Limited* (“Guangzhou
Zhuguang Investment”) entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “October
MOU”) in relation to the proposed acquisition of
the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuguang
Investment. Guangzhou Zhuguang Investment,
a company incorporated in the PRC, is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Guangdong Zhuguang Group
Company Limited* (“Guangdong Zhuguang”),
principally engaged in property development.
Pursuant to the October MOU, a HK$400 million
refundable deposit was made to Rong De. This
proposed acquisition was not yet completed as at
31 December 2013.

In the event that a sale and purchase agreement in
relation to the proposed acquisition is not entered
into on or before 17 April 2014, Rong De shall,
within three business days after 17 April 2014,
refund the above-mentioned HK$400 million
deposit to the Group (the “Rong De Obligations”).

* English name is translated for identification purposes
only.
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

)

(i)

(continued)

In relation to the Group’s proposed acquisition of
the entire equity interest in Guangzhou Zhuguang
Investment, on 14 March 2014, Rong De’s
shareholders, Mr. Liao Tengjia, Mr. Chu Hing
Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi) and Mr. Chu Muk Chi
(alias Mr. Zhu La Yi) have undertaken to the Group
to guarantee the due and punctual performance by
Rong De with respect to the Rong De Obligations
under the October MOU.

Up to the date of these financial statements,
no legally binding agreement in relation to the
proposed acquisition has been entered into
(save for certain provisions relating to the deposit
of HK$400 million, confidentiality, exclusivity,
conditions precedent and governing law under the
October MOU).

On 31 December 2013, South Trend, as the
intended purchaser and Quan Xing, as the
intended vendor entered into a memorandum of
understanding (the “December MOU”) in relation
to the proposed acquisition of the land use rights
over a parcel of land at Tianhe District, Guangzhou
City, the PRC or the entire equity interest of the
company, directly or indirectly, holds the entire
interest of the said land use right. Quan Xing
becomes a substantial shareholder of the Company
upon the issue of the Consideration Shares on
31 December 2013 pursuant to the Joygain SP
Agreement (note 25(a) above). Pursuant to the
December MOU, approximately HK$381,567,000
refundable deposit was made to Quan Xing. This
proposed acquisition was not yet completed as at
31 December 2013.
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(i) (continued)

In the event that a sale and purchase agreement
in relation to the proposed acquisition is not
entered into on or before 30 June 2014, Quan
Xing shall, within five business days after 30 June
2014, refund the above-mentioned approximately
HK$381,567,000 deposit to the Group.

Up to the date of these financial statements,
no legally binding agreement in relation to the
proposed acquisition has been entered into (save
for certain provisions relating to the refundable
deposit of approximately HK$381,567,000,
confidentiality, exclusivity, conditions precedent
and governing law under the December MOU).

During the year, approximately HK$398,770,000 was
prepaid through an authorised agent for the acquisition of
certain property development projects/equity interests by
Guangdong Zhuguang’s subsidiaries, namely Guangzhou
Zhuguang Zhiye Company Limited* (“Guangzhou
Zhuguang Zhiye”) and Guangzhou Heng Yu Investment
Company Limited* (“Guangzhou Heng Yu”), respectively.
Guangzhou Zhuguang Zhiye and Guangzhou Heng Yu are
considered as related parties of the Group as the ultimate
controlling party of the Company, Mr. Laio Tengjia, has
significant influence over Guangdong Zhuguang and its
subsidiaries.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(©

(continued)

In relation to the Group’s proposed acquisition of the
aforesaid property development projects/equity interests
held by Guangzhou Zhuguang Zhiye and Guangzhou
Heng Yu, on 20 March 2014, Guangdong Zhuguang and
one of its equity owners have undertaken to the Group to
guarantee the due performance by Guangzhou Zhuguang
Zhiye and Guanyzhou Heng Yu with respect to their
obligations under certain memorandum of understanding
and/or agreement entered into with the Group’s
authorised agent.

Up to the date of these financial statements, the prepaid
amount increased to approximately HK$500,521,000.
No definitive agreements have been entered into by the
Group.

In 2012, the Group’s prepaid land costs represented
partial payment of land costs and incidental costs
for acquisition of land use rights located in Conghua,
Guangzhou, the PRC upon successfully bidding at a land
auction conducted by the PRC government.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
fully settled the balance of land premium and obtained the
relevant land use right certificates.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

)
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26. AP AREEZ &

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS il ¥
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Derivative financial assets PTHEEmERE 38,503 —

DHERFEZITEEREERASEE
2 RIBHE -

Derivative financial assets, classified as held for trading, represent
call options obtained by the Group.
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE  26. &2 -Flit ARz Z 4
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) B E ()
On 12 September 2013, the grantor, Wai Lee Holding Limited, RIE—=FNA+=8  TFHEFZE
at the consideration of HK$1 granted the following call options to RBERARIARE 1 ATRAAREERH
the Group. The Group may at its absolute discretion: THREEERE - RNEBE A 2EWIE
@) exercise the first option during the first exercise period (12 (@) RERITE A (U8 4415 50%
months from the completion date of the 50% acquisition #Ezs (FisE25(a)) < 5Emk B AR
of Joygain (note 25(a))) to acquire 25% equity interest of FH12MEA) ATTE & R
Joygain at the price of RMB500 million; and IA¥Z B 18 AR ¥ 500,000,000 7T
WSS 25% v IR ANHE R © ]2
(b)  exercise the second option during the second exercise (b) REZIRITEE (WERSE
period (36 months from the completion date of the 50% 50% 1 z= (B 5E25(0)) < 5T X
acquisition of Joygain (note 25(a))) to acquire 25% equity HHEi & 51 361E H) AITEE
interest of Joygain at the price of RMB500 million. “hERE LIRERARE
500,000,000 JTHL BB £E1S 25% 2
MRS o
The call options were measured at their fair value on 31 REREZERN - —=F+=A
December 2013. The fair value (categorised as level 3 =t+—BZAVERE - REHEZA
measurement under HKFRS 13) of the call options was based HE (REEEMEREENE 13RS
on a valuation, using binomial option pricing model, carried out HAFIHRFTE) NIRBEBILGERSE
by an independent qualified professional valuer and approved by FE (G ERTFTIE LD 48 & UM 2 (B ER
the directors. The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair RoEA R EERAETE - ARAY
value measurement are expected volatility and underlying stock BFtE 2 ERTA B R AR 2785
price. B IR RABRAARE
27. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 27. =R H AT K
2013 2012
—E-—= T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FiET
Guarantee deposits for construction TEEWH 2 EEIAR
of pre-sale properties BRTR 169,456 93,282
Pledged bank deposits (note 34(b)) ERITER (HI5E34(0) 13,555 17,668

183,011 110,950




27.

28.

29.

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

In accordance with the Administration of Pre-sale of Commodity
Premises Regulations in the PRC, the Group is required to
place in designated bank accounts certain amount of pre-sale
proceeds of properties as guarantee deposits for construction of
related properties. The deposits can only be used for purchases
of construction materials and the payments of construction costs
of the relevant property project when approval from PRC State-
Owned Land Resources and Housing Administrative Bureau is
obtained. Such guarantee deposits will only be released after
completion of related pre-sale properties.

As at 31 December 2013, the restricted bank deposits of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$169,456,000 (2012: HK$93,282,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2013, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$988,890,000 (2012: HK$120,563,000). Conversion of RMB
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

On 4 November 2013, the Group and Madam Zhu Jin Ling
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Share SP
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Share SP Agreement, the Group
has conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued share capital
of two subsidiaries, Rainbow High Holdings Limited (“Rainbow
High”) and Zhang Tong Holdings Limited (“Zhang Tong”) at
a total consideration of approximately HK$862,614,000. The
consideration was agreed to be satisfied by repaying the amount
due by the Group to the disposal groups upon completion and
then the remaining balance of the consideration will be satisfied
by cash upon completion. Rainbow High and Zhang Tong
together with their respective subsidiary, Big Wisdom Limited
and Light-Up Investments Limited, are engaged in the property
investment and property rental activities. In November 2013, a
deposit of HK$80,000,000 was received by the Group.

27.

28.

29.
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29. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS 29. HEAENEZHEHS

HELD FOR SALE (continued) (&)
As at 31 December 2013, the disposal was yet to be completed. RZZE—=F+ZA=+—H HES
On 25 March 2014, the Group and Madam Zhu Jin Ling further HEARTK - RZE—NF=H=+H
entered into an addendum to the Share SP Agreement to H  AEBERSRZTE TR
extend the long stop date under the Share SP Agreement from MEEHR MR - UERHEEHE
31 December 2013 to 30 June 2014. The assets and liabilities ZEEBILIEHBE-_T-—=F+_A
attributable to the disposal groups (included in the Group’s _+ AtRE-FT—WFESA="
property rental segment), which are expected to be sold within o HHAM M 12 AN E 2 HER
twelve months, have been classified as held for sale and are é\ (FFAKREB 2 MEHEDEL) B
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial ZEERBECDBAFE  UNERE
position. SRR ANBILZY °
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal groups DEASEZREHEZEERBER
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2013 are as follows: TR —=Ft+ A=+ —HZEENSE
R
HK$’000
FEXT
Investment properties B 620,682
Bank and cash balances RITRIB S ERR 21
Total assets of disposal groups classified DB AFE 2 HEMHA EEEE
as held for sale 620,703
Accruals and other payables FERTE R R E MR FRIE 36,369
Current tax liabilities AT IE B & 10,687
Total liabilities associated with assets HEAYBAREZHEHEAEENBAZRAE
of disposal groups classified
as held for sale 47,056
Net assets of the disposal groups HEHEEEFE 573,647
Intragroup balances as at 31 December 2013 have been REZE—=F+ZA=1T—Hz&EBER
eliminated. NAEIEZ BRI EHE o
As at 31 December 2013, cumulative income recognised in other R-ZE—=F+_A=+—H8 @58
comprehensive income relating to the disposal groups classified BEEZHEHAREM 2 EIRZEER

as held for sale amounted to approximately HK$31,225,000. 2 25t A#931,225,000/8 7T °



29.

30.

DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the investment properties of the
disposal groups, situated in Guangzhou, the PRC, are held under
medium-term leases. All tenancy agreements in relation to the
investment properties of disposal groups were terminated on 31
October 2013. The fair value of investment properties as at 31
December 2013 was based on a valuation carried out by A.G.
Wilkinson & Associates (Surveyors) Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group with
substantial experience in valuation of properties. The valuation
of investment properties was carried out, on the basis of market
value, by comparison method with reference to comparable
market transactions, adjusted for a premium or a discount
specific to the quality of the investment properties of the disposal
groups. The Group’s financial controller discussed with the valuer
on the valuation assumptions and results.

The expected capital gain from the transfer of immovable
properties in the PRC through disposal of subsidiaries which may
be subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax have been recognised
as deferred tax liabilities by the immediate holding company of
Rainbow High and Zhang Tong.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The Group’s accounts payable comprise the following:

29.

30.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

AR EZHENG
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R-ZT—=ZF+-_fA=+—H8 HEH
ANURPBREMNT ZIREYE TR
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T oAZ+—RZAFEDNREEERE
BERMITHERARWEL ZEEETE © %
RAA—RAAEEEHEZBLEE
EERMGER - ERWEGERE%ES
LELRH  REMEZHERETEE
A DIEREARBMISER 5 2 LLEE
HIT WHBEEHEZRENMEZE
EHIR 2R BRITRIEL TR - AEEH
2 IS BEE S EMR A ERE RS
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FRHEMNB AR MERMNAFRE 2T
B E P A 2 TEHRE AR W as mT A 78 A

ZHBEERMAEYN  CHERERAT
Ik RBERSEEHBARE -

FEAF Bk

AEE 2 BNEREEATEA

2013 2012
—F—= —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FiET

Land premium related charge and JES T RSB ER R
penalty payable Hika 124,414 177,351
Construction fee payable JEIZEER 435,650 242,935
560,064 420,286
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30. FEAFEREK

e BR IR TR B HA A P 2 BRER D AT

30.

31.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued)

The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on the payment

due date, is as follows: N
2013 2012
—E-= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 3 months ={EALA 555,641 242,935
4 to 6 months EEVANEPE! 1,348 —
7 to 12 months +t&=+ @A 2,931 —
Over 1 year —F LA E 144 177,351
560,064 420,286
PROCEEDS RECEIVED FROM PRE- 31. HEEMFEWIRZ s
SALE OF PROPERTIES JH

Proceeds received from purchasers in connection with the
Group’s pre-sales of properties to be settled after more than one
year are analysed as follows:

ERASEBREMEERWIZ G
FIHEBB —FREENONT ¢

2013 2012

—E—= —EF——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FiET

Settled after more than 1 year FRIR—FREE 1,660,331 369,340

Apart from the above, all other proceeds from pre-sale of
properties are expected to be settled within one year.

Br BN - FTARMEEMERZAE
RIBFEHR —FREE -
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32. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES  32. ME#t# ) 5 it i AoF 3k
5

2013 2012
=== —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Consideration payables 17,806 17,267
Rental deposits received BUHELRS 7,809 16,365
Deposit received (note 29) BUETE (F13E29) 80,000 —
Other creditors and accrued charges H sk R ERT &R 129,883 152,649
235,498 186,281

AEEZBERAERSTEHBNBR—
after more than one vyear. Fla#EH o

The Group’s rental deposits received are expected to be settled

33. AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE 33. MEAT A A Wk
HOLDING COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the amount due to the ultimate holding RZZE—=%F+ZA=+—0 " Eff&
IR ARIFIBAERR - 2B RIEE

company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 34. AT B HAbAE
2013 2012
—E—-= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ExT BT
Bank loans — secured 1,226,482 1,129,800
Senior Notes — secured BREEE — AHEMH 1,387,851 476,756
Other borrowings — secured 1,931,595 —
4,545,928 1,606,556
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P HE 3y =
34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 34, SRAT RHABAE K )
(continued)
(a)  The bank loans, Senior Notes and other borrowings are (a) MEEEBZHRITER BEAER
repayable as follows: NEMERRT -
2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ExT T
Bank loans, Senior Notes and RITER - BAEER
other borrowings HMER
On demand or within one year RERIN—FNR 1,488,816 838,914
In the second year E_F 1,116,196 648,186
In the third to fifth years, FEERF
inclusive (BREEEMF) 1,940,916 119,456
4,545,928 1,606,556

Less: Amount due for settlement & : IR+ 1A R

within 12 months BEEE
(shown under Z5RIE
current liabilities) (FIEREIEE) (1,296,704) (838,914)
Less: Amount subject to an early i : STIRFE
repayment option page L ainyidl
(shown under 2 I
current liabilities) FIEREAE) (192,112) -
(1,488,816) (838,914)
Amount due for settlement R+ EFEE B E
after 12 months Z A 3,057,112 767,642
During the year, the Group breached a financial covenant FR - AEEBRFEEEASESF
clause in relation to the maintenance of the consolidated REFEGEERFREEEH
net borrowings to consolidated tangible net worth ratio TRFBELL RN BRLY B
of the Group which constitutes an early repayment BITHEEERRFEEENE
option by the bank. Such bank loans in the total sum B - RN _ZT—=F1+=_H
of approximately HK$192,112,000 are reclassified as —t+—BEHBBRITERRELY
current liabilities as at 31 December 2013. The bank did 192,112,000 8 T E#5H f8 A7
not request for the early repayment of the bank loans. FaE e RITVEBERRERE
Subsequent to the reporting date, the bank has agreed to BRITER - RERHE -
waive the early repayment option. RITEREBEMEZREFRER

YR ZHE -



34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(b)

Bank loans

As at 31 December 2013, the bank loans were secured

by the following:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the Group’s investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$663,024,000;

the Group’s land use rights classified under
prepaid land lease payments and the
construction in progress thereon of approximately
HK$51,356,000 and HK$16,447,000 respectively;

the Group’s properties for sale under development
of approximately HK$2,061,669,000;

the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$13,555,000;

charge over the entire issued share capital of the
Company’s subsidiaries, Diamond Crown Limited,
Graceful Link Limited, Speedy Full Limited and
Guangdong Xilong;

assignment of all rental income from the Group’s
investment properties with carrying amount of
approximately HK$663,024,000;

guarantees executed by the Company’s directors,
Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi) and
Mr. Huang Jia Jue; and a director of Guangdong
Zhuguang; and

corporate guarantees executed by Guangdong
Zhuguang, Guangdong New Southern Group
Company Limited* (“Guangdong New Southern”)
and an independent third party.

* English name is translated for identification purposes
only.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
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(vii)

(viil)
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34. SRAT AR )

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Bank loans (continued)

(vii)  (continued)

Guangdong Zhuguang is considered as a related
party of the Group as the ultimate controlling party
of the Company, Mr. Liao Tengjia, has significant
influence in Guangdong Zhuguang.

Guangdong New Southern is considered as a
related party of the Group as it is beneficially
owned and controlled by the executive director of
the Company, Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Mr. Zhu La
Yi).

As at 31 December 2013, the effective interest rates on
the bank loans ranged from 4.9% to 13.9% (2012: 5.0%
to 24.0%) per annum.

Senior Notes

Senior Notes |

Pursuant to an investment agreement dated 6 December
2011 (the “Investment Agreement”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Zhuguang Group Limited
(“ZGL”) issued secured and guaranteed senior notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$500 million (the “Senior
Notes I”) to Silver Prosper (BVI) Investments Limited (“Silver
Prosper”) on 21 December 2011. The Senior Notes |
are interest-bearing at 15% per annum calculated by
reference to the principal amount thereof.

(b)

(©)

HATER ()

(viiy (&)
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34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(c)

Senior Notes (continued)
Senior Notes I (continued)

The Senior Notes | are accounted for as financial liabilities,
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred,
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The effective interest rate
applied is 17.2% (2012: 17.2%) per annum.

The Senior Notes | are secured and guaranteed by:

(i) a second fixed charge over the entire issued share
capital of ZGL, Cheng Chang Holdings Limited and
Fully Wise Investment Limited (“Fully Wise”), being
the holding companies of Guangdong Hailian, and
the related rights;

(ii) 80% equity interests in Guangdong Hailian;

(iii) security assignment of all of the rights and interests
in respect of certain intra-group loans; and

(iv) guarantee executed by the Company’s director,
Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi).

During the year, the Senior Notes | was fully settled.

Senior Notes 11

Pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated 22 July
2013 together with certain supplemental agreements
thereto, the Company issued secured and guaranteed
senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of US$200
million (the “Senior Notes II”) to certain investors in 2013.
The Senior Notes I, due on 4 August 2016, are interest-
bearing at 12.5% per annum and interests are payable
semi-annually in arrears.
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RARRBEREER
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[
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34. SRAT AR )

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(c)

Senior Notes (continued)
Senior Notes II (continued)

Concurrent with the issuance of the Senior Notes II,
nil-paid warrants (the “Warrants”) representing a total
aggregate amount of exercise moneys of US$40 million
(the exchange rate to be used for the purchase of HK$
with US$ shall be HK$7.8 per US$1.0) were granted
by the Company to these investors to subscribe for
137,499,449 ordinary shares of the Company at an
initial exercise price of HK$2.2691 per ordinary share
of the Company, which is subject to certain anti-dilutive
adjustments. The warrants are exercisable at any time up
to three years from 5 August 2013.

The Senior Notes Il are accounted for as financial
liabilities, initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rates ranged from 16.01% to 16.95% per annum.

The Senior Notes Il are secured and guaranteed by:

(i) 1,200 million ordinary shares of the Company
owned by Rong De;

(ii) 100% equity interest of the Company’s
subsidiaries: Top Perfect Development Limited
(“Top Perfect”), Ever Crown Corporation Limited
(“Ever Crown”), East Orient Investment Limited
(“East Orient”) and Fully Wise;

(iii) corporate guarantees executed by Rong De, Top
Perfect, Ever Crown, East Orient, Fully Wise and
Zhuguang Group (Hong Kong) Limited; and

(iv) guarantees executed by the Company’s directors,
Mr. Liao Tengjia, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr.
Zhu Qing Yi) and Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Mr. Zhu
La Yi).

(©)

B )
BRI (4E)

BREITEEZIBNGN - NARFIF
RIKETZEREEITERE
& #540,000,000% 7T (ZHEE
HSERAE T H ETER A7.8/8
TLHR1.03ETT) KRB RRAE
#([REREF]D - ATAFHET
FERD R T REBRR2.2691
B ITTRE AN ) 137,499,449 %
@k mEBRTEEAXSA
FREEFHERS - RBRIEF
AR T—=FN\ARAKR
% = FRTEERETTE -

BEZBRIZIESHBEBEAK -
BRATE (IREEENR
SR HER - HiB A EREF
BOENBIEK AT E - B
FIENTF16.01% £ 16.95% °

BERZEEITIHNA T SEER K

0] Rb{EHEAE 2~ 1,200,000,000
REARR R BARAR (D

(ii) KRNBIATHEBRRZ
100% IR AR - ZRiE
BRAERAR ([FE] -
wEEEERAA (B
B - EREBEBERA
A ([ER]) FEE:

(i) EiiE-. FE- BB E
RBEREAEE (B
) BIRABIBRLZE
BR: R

vy ZAAREFEEEL
o REREE (REK
BFEE) REKZEE
(RBERAMFRE) EH
ZHER o



34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(c)

Senior Notes (continued)

Senior Notes II (continued)

34.

The fair value of the liability component of the Senior

Notes Il was estimated at the issuance date using the

prevailing market interest rate for a similar liability without

warrants granted. The residual amount is assigned as

warrant reserve and is included in shareholders’ equity.

The Senior Notes Il issued have been split into the liability

and equity components, as follows:

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

SRAT B FHoAAE 3K )

(©)

B )
R I (1)

BEZRIZBELDAFES
REETT H BB A A SR A RE
ZBEREBEABRTHHH X
EITHEE - RSB OE/R

EI

¥

REE S RERRERTD S
EEO
BERTZEEZRIEHDREE

KAgmaf T

2013 2012
=== —E—_fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#ET FHT
Value of Senior Notes I FAETEREREI
and warrants issued MR EREBE
during the year (HMBREERSHHA)
(less direct transaction costs) 1,509,659 —
Equity component =
(after allocation of direct (DEEEEER ZHAE)
attributable transaction costs) (113,296) —
Liability component MEE1TH HY
at the issue date ZBfEE S
(after allocation of direct (DEEIEEER ZKAE)
attributable transaction costs) 1,396,363 —
Interest expense BT 58,760 —
Interest paid BERAFLE (43,763) -
Setting off against the outstanding K 51T AN 12
principal upon exercise REELRE
of warrants (7,800) —
Setting off against the due and I IHI TR R AR TR 12 21 B J2
unpaid interest upon exercise RETFLE
of warrants (15,600) —
Exchange differences ME 7 ZERE (109) —
Liability component Wt+-—A=+—H8z2
at 31 December BEHRHD 1,387,851 —
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34. SRAT AR )

34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(d) Other borrowings (d)  HAfEK

Other borrowings are secured and guaranteed by:

(i)

(i)

(v)

the Group’s properties for sale under development
of approximately HK$1,042,430,000;

charge over the assets provided by Guangdong
Feng Shun Lu Hu Hot Spring Resort Company
Limited” (“Feng Shun Lu Hu”), the registered
capital of Feng Shun Lu Hu was owned, as to 80%
by Guangdong Zhuguang and as to 20% owned
by Guangdong New Southern;

corporate guarantee executed by related
companies — Guangdong Zhuguang, Guangzhou
Zhuguang Property Development Company
Limited” (“Guangzhou Zhuguang Property”),
Beijing Zhuguang Property Development Company
Limited* (“Beijing Zhuguang Property”) and
Guangzhou Zhuguang Investment;

guarantee executed by the Company’s director,
Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi);
corporate guarantee executed by a non-controlling

shareholder of Guangdong Hailian; and

entire equity interest in Guangdong Hailian.

Feng Shun Lu Hu is considered as a related party of the

Group as the ultimate controlling party of the Company,

Mr. Liao Tengjia, has significant influence over Guangdong

Zhuguang and Feng Shun Lu Hu. In addition, the
Company’s director, Mr. Chu Muk Chi (alias Mr. Zhu La
Yi) has control over Guangdong New Southern.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.

HAER TR IA T SIHER

0] AEBZERPEEY
% 471,042,430,000 78
G

(i) JE R IR R 4R RO R
NAERRAR (T LIEE
W) 2 BEE
LB g 2 M E A D
Bl BRI M B R
M A 80% K 20% :

(iii BRIEKX - BEINKKEE
MERZAERAT ([E
MEAEEHE] « bR
KAEHEREFRA
A ([ERHAFEHE]
MEMBKEHIEE S B
RNEIFEM L EER

V) ARAREERBERLE
(XBAREFEE) FH
ZIER

V) ERSBIFEBERRER
MZEREER R

Vi)  EREE . 2IRAE

S

E\

HRARR R 2 REERTT B
ERAERE RN BRI
BEZRE)  HNEIREHE
BRANEE 2B o i
ARBEERAZEE (XEBR
FRSEE) A RRHE T 21
il -

* R L HEEBS -



34. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Other borrowings (continued)

Guangdong Zhuguang, Guangzhou Zhuguang Property,
Beijing Zhuguang Property, and Guangzhou Zhuguang
Investment are considered as related companies
of the Group as the ultimate controlling party of the
Company, Mr. Liao Tengjia, has significant influence in
Guangdong Zhuguang, Guangzhou Zhuguang Property,
Beijing Zhuguang Property, and Guangzhou Zhuguang
Investment.

As at 31 December 2013, the effective interest rate on
other borrowings ranged from 7.0% to 9.2% (2012: Nil)
per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies,
other than the functional currency of the relevant group

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

34. SRAT AR )

(d)

(e)

HAfE K )

HRAR R 2 REERTT B
ERERBRIRS - BMKL
FHE - ERKEFHERE
MK IR EREERE S - &
BRIk - BMKEEHE
IR B B BN R 4R
BEWRBAEE BB AT

RZE—=F+=-_A=+—
B HEMERZERFENEN
F7.0%E92% (=T — —F:
=)o

AREBERTREMEREEE
TSR EREBIERER 2
BEEE

entity:
2013 2012
=== —E-_fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HK$ BT 192,112 252,144
Uss$ EH 1,387,851 —
1,579,963 252,144
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35. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 35. mbE AL EA K
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
RIRA G RRAGEHHRE
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E—=f T ZE-=f =—ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET F#T FAT

Within one year R—FR 232 388 203 379
In the second to fifth years, E_EZFERF

inclusive (BRERMF) 531 5 503 4

763 393 706 383

Less: Future finance charges B RRBE R (57) (10) N/A N/A

Present value of lease obligations T E&IEIRE 706 383 706 383

Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : I+ Z1EA R

within 12 months (shown BIRfEE 2 3R
under current liabilities) (FHERBIAE) (203) (379

I

Amount due for settlement after R+ @AERHEE

12 months Z I8 503 4
It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its office equipment and UREHERRETHAREBERAER
motor vehicle under finance leases. The lease terms range from REBEWBEK - AN FHUERSF - B
4 to 5 years. As at 31 December 2013, the effective borrowing —E——F+A=1T—H EENE
rates ranging from 5.9% to 6.1% (2012: 5.9%) per annum. BEMENFL59%E61% (=T —=
Interest rates are fixed at respective contract dates and thus F:59%) - FEEEASENAHN
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. All leases are on FE - B A EEEAZ AT ERER
a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered b2 o FTEMES I EHEE - AWEETT
into for contingent rental payments. At the end of each lease AR ARE T 28 - RS
term, the Group has an option to purchase the underlying asset B AEBAREENRHEEREER
at a nominal price. EHEEE -
The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the lessors’ REBRERERAREALEAR
title to the leased assets. EEENMARERIERM -

36. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON- 36. MEAT— [ B 2 Wl 9 —
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A 44 I B e Sk IH
SUBSIDIARY
During the year, the amount due to a non-controlling shareholder RER - BBRHEEERNS —ERNBAR

of a subsidiary was fully repaid. K — A IEIZERR AR R SRIA ©



e

37. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/ 37. EHEBH (EE) Al
LIABILITIES
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised REREMBRAKRANER ZIELETIE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the (BE) /[ BEZHEKERAFEZE
movements during the year are as follows: BT -
Undistributed
Fair value profits of
adjustments aPRC Temporary Total Temporary Total
Revaluationof ~ on business subsidiary difference deferred difference deferred
investment  combinations .l onLAT tax liabilities on LAT tax assets

properties £HBate  HEREBAR TibEER EEHE TibEER ERHE
REMEER  ATEAE  EAHEEH 0 ZEREE BEOE  (ERER i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THn THn THn T T Thr Thn

At1 January 2012 R-E--%-B-H 73,842 - - - 78,842 - -
Acquisttion of subsiciaries R B Al - 191,510 - - 191510 - -
Charged/(Credited) to TEERBER

proftorloss for theyear %8,/ (GFA) 3017 (182) 5,033 - 7668 (1,886) (1,886)
Exchange differences EiEE “ - 16 - 12 0) 0)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-A=1-H 76,855 191,328 5,049 - 273232 (189 (189
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM 7]

(note 41g) (M 41) - 144,796 - - 144,796 - -
Chargedtoprofitorloss — AFERBER X

for the year 12,063 (268 - 3,986 15,781 1,892 1,892
Exchange differences ERER 2585 1,742 - 28 4.3% - -
At 31 December 2013 RZF-ZE+ZR=+-H 91,503 337,59 5,049 4,014 438,164 - -
At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of R-TE—=Ft+-A=1+—8  &x&H&
approximately HK$239,476,000 (2012: HK$50,788,000) available BARBABIIAEEL) 239,476,000 78 7T
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been —ZF— 4 : 50,788,000/ ;L) A A
recognised in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability SRR T o AR R F i 2 T
of future profit streams. The above unused tax losses will expire AITEAIM - MBS Z S S EERRLE
after five years from the year of assessment they relate to. RIBEE - Ll KRB ABIARSIEEAA

R FERERFRIE -
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38. A

38. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Share capital
& %
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F-Zf —TF ~%-= —BCF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i Fi#x THT
Authorised: EERA
Ordinary shares of FREE0I0ETT
HK$0.10 each ZEER
At 1 January R—A—H 6,000,000,000 4,000,000,000 600,000 400,000
Increase 0 (@ - 2,000,000,000 - 200,000
At 31 December ®+=-A=+—H 6,000,000,000 6,000,000,000 600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BRETEHRRA:
Ordinary shares of BRMEEI0ET
HK$0.10 each BB
At 1 January ®—A—H 3,655,806,000 2,468,820,000 365,581 246,882
Issue of shares upon TR EEE
exercise of warrants B2k b) 10,312,458 - 1,031 -
Issue of shares ikt (© 558,000,000 1,186,986,000 55,800 118,699
At 31 December w“+=-A=+—H 4,224,118,458  3,655,806,000 422,412 365,581
Note: PizE
(@) By a special resolution passed on 27 November 2012, the (@) BRER-_ZT—Z—F+—A=++t
authorised ordinary share capital of the Company was increased Hd@z —BRERRER K
from HK$400,000,000 to HK$600,000,000 by the creation of NAIZETEEBRIRAEBIGH
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in 2012, such 2,000,000,000 % &A% EI1E0.10 47T
new shares ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing L 38 1% £ 400,000,000 7 7T 42 10
shares of the Company. 2 600,000,000 JT * #% 5 ¥ A&
HARABBEROEMEFEHEE
BREER -
(b) Upon exercise of the subscription rights conferred by the (o) TEARBRREEME T 2R

Company’s warrants, three lots of the Company’s new ordinary
shares of 3,437,486 shares each were issued on 22 November
2013, 16 December 2013 and 27 December 2013 respectively
(totalled 10,312,458 new ordinary shares), at the exercise price
of HK$2.2691 per share. The new shares rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares of the Company. The premium
on issue of shares amounted to approximately HK$22,369,000
and was credited to the Company’s share premium. In addition,
an amount of approximately HK$8,497,000 was reclassified from
warrant reserve to share premium upon exercise of warrants.

BEE ARADFR_ZT—=
F+—A=-+=-H Z2—=%
+ZAt+RBER-E—=F1+=A
ZHERZRERITEE2.2691 8T
217 = 113,437,486 IRFT LB (A
10,312,458 R FT L @A) - Z F
FRMERRRRERDENE S
HHZFBEREER - BITRMGEE
#)/522,369,0008 7T * 5F AR A
B8 o toh - 498,497,000487T
2 S EEITERIRE % R A
EREETOBEBRDEE -



38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note: (continued)

(c) On 31 December 2013, 558,000,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company were issued at HK$3.29 per share as prepayment
for the Joygain Acquisition, details of which are set out in note
25(a) to the financial statements. The new shares rank pari
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company
and resulted in an increase in share premium of approximately
HK$1,780,020,000.

Capital management

During 2013, the Group changed its strategy on managing
capital. The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.

The Group is subject to financial covenants under certain
loan agreements with a bank. The Group has to maintain its
consolidated net borrowings to consolidated tangible net worth
ratio not be in excess of 1:1. Consolidated net borrowings are
calculated as the borrowings disclosed in notes 34 and 35 less all
the cash and bank deposits of the Group; whereas consolidated
tangible net worth consists of issued capital, share premium,
contributed surplus and accumulated losses/retained profits
attributable to owners of the Company less intangible assets and
goodwill as disclosed in the financial statements. During the year,
the Group breached the said ratio (note 34(a) to the financial
statements). Since February 2014, the bank has agreed to revise
the said consolidated net borrowings to consolidated tangible net
worth ratio requirement to not more than 1.5:1.

In addition, the Group is also subject to financial covenants
under Senior Notes Il with certain investors. The Group has to
maintain its consolidated net debt to shareholders’ equity ratio
not be in excess of 1.5:1. Consolidated net debt is calculated as
the borrowings disclosed in notes 34 and 35 minus all the cash
and cash deposits of the Group; whereas equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued capital and reserves
as disclosed in the financial statements. During the year, the
Group complied with the aforesaid ratio requirement.

38.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

A ()
Mk - (88)

(© RZE—=F+=-A=+—8"
K QA E ST K320 T B 1T

558000000&%& AR (ERTE
NREFWEEE  AEFBHRY
B IRR M L 250 © B H M &

RKRARIRBERNDEMBEHFEHE
ERE#EZ RSB BEL ML
1,780,020,000 7 7T °

RIZT—=%F FEEREHEREE
REE o AEBEER KT AR L E R
HEXRGERE  UERAEEEIFES
g WiEBBEBRERERAIRE

HREALH -

AEEBEETHR-HRITZETERR
BB - AEBMAKBERS
BRFREGAEBRFELETREA
1:1 o GRAEFUFRE B B 5134 K 35
%&%ZF*m$ﬁl2%ﬁﬁi&ﬁ
AERGTE - Me B FERBER
RAEBABLBBEITRA - RGO
B BRAEBKERFER REBEFR
Wﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ZﬁﬁﬁF&ﬁ§°i
F REBKRFEE Lt tf(%%&ﬁ
WEM@ME—%—EE At
ﬁﬁa@,fJLLﬁAfM@ﬁﬂ%
GEMFEREZHRERSTEMN.61 -

BEAh - REE A STEHE TREEZ
BEZRINZWIERE - REBERR
HiRA &5 F LR R s L R TR
1511 c SREEBFRINDEBIWEI4 R
BSHEBRZEFRAEE B S
FMIReGFHETE - MARRES AN
=PRIV ISREHE 2 BT
KR fHEE - TN AEEDESF Ll
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 38. A @)
BAGEH ()

EERBRNEAREE  c AEE AR
B BITHAR A B IR0 DA KR BT 3T
EHNERRAEYR  TEHAREER
well as the issue of new debts or redemption of existing debts. i o

Capital management (continued)

The directors review the capital structure on an ongoing basis.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as

Br L& SN - NEBBINEEBTZINR
BARFTEBERRORBR ET A
BERETER25%  NEEF A UER
BHBPFPRELBTIEARATHEE
ERMmiER RS ERRFRE—E
BF5%REN2HE - RZT—=4F
TZA=+—8 " BROZABBEREAR
28.3% (ZE— 4 : 32.4%) °

Apart from the above, another externally imposed capital
requirement is that for the Group to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of at least 25% of
the shares. The Group receives a report from the share registrars
monthly on substantial share interests showing the non-public
float and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25%
limit throughout the year. As at 31 December 2013, 28.3% (2012:
32.4%) of the shares were in public hands.

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

39. Anw|ZMBRIE

2013 2012
—E—= —ET——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ExT FETT
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 1,263 771
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR 2 RE 4,364,932 2,211,303
Prepayments and deposits FEFIENTE 408,256 406
Bank balances RITEEER 456 74
Accruals and other payables FEFT B R R EMFE 5IE (5,236) (2,285)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A Rl FE (9,979) (51,142)
Senior Notes — secured BEERE — BHEH (1,387,851) —
NET ASSETS BEZE 3,371,841 2,159,127
Share capital [N 422,412 365,581
Reserves it 2,949,429 1,793,546
TOTAL EQUITY WRER 3,371,841 2,159,127




Pngies 157

40. RESERVES 40. falhf
(a) Group (a) ASEH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements AEBrRFESHEREEHE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement TiRtraEm kA4 2EKE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and FURGEEREEE -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(b) Company (b) ARAF
Retained
profits/
(Accumulated
Share  Contributed Warrant losses)
premium surplus reserve RBiER,/ Total
R BEs JIREIRG (RFHER) k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TEL TAT TERT
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—-F—H 98,771 717,209 - 19,182 835,162
Issue of shares B17fkin 948,281 - - - 948,281
Profit for the year REREM - - - 10,108 10,108
At31December2012and  RZE-——4#+-A=+-HR
1 January 2013 “Z-=%-f-H 1,047,062 717,209 - 29,285 1,793,546
Issue of warrant (note 34(c)  Z1TRMEE (ME34(0) - - 113,206 - 113,296
Issue of shares upon exercise 1T RIEE BT R
of warrants note 38(0)) (H7E38(0)) 30,866 - (8,497) - 22,369
Issue of shares (note 38(c) ~ Z17R&(H (3£38(c)) 1,780,020 - - - 1,780,020
Loss for the year AEERR - - - (759,802) (759,802)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-Z%+°A=1-H 2,857,938 717,209 104,799 (730,517) 2,949,429
As at 31 December 2013, the contributed surplus of the NZE—=F+=-_A=+—H ' &AQ
Company includes (i) approximately HK$477,805,000 AINEHSESGERRE)ERNRRBITR
(2012: HK$477,805,000) that arose when the Company AR R PT I IE R AR IR E A Y
issued shares in exchange for the shares of companies #1477,805,000/8 L (—Z & — = F
being acquired, and represented the difference between 477,805,000 7t) + JRBIAS A A B 2%
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued and TR EEAEKENIRDEER
the value of the shares acquired; and (ii) approximately FEZEE Ri)EBUERR M &= B im &
HK$239,404,000 (2012: HK$239,404,000) which was A #9239,404,0008 7T (Z & — % :
credited from the share premium cancellation. The 239,404,000/87T) - EM A HH A &
application of the contributed surplus is governed by the T HEENTNREE o

Companies Act of Bermuda.
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40. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(it)

(iii)

(v)

(v)

(vi)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their
par value per share. The application of the share
premium is governed by the Companies Act of
Bermuda.

Reserve on merger accounting

The reserve on merger accounting was set up
upon the share swap for the Company to acquire
its subsidiaries.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 3(c) to
the financial statements.

Contributed surplus

The Company’s contributed surplus was explained
in note 40(b) above. The application of the
contributed surplus is governed by the Companies
Act of Bermuda.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the articles of association of
certain subsidiaries established in the PRC, these
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the
profit after tax to the statutory reserve until the
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.
Transfer to this reserve must be made before
distributing dividends to equity owners.

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve represents the equity component
of the Senior Notes Il with detachable warrants
issued. Details of which are set out in note 34(c) to
the financial statements.

40. fifl 2

it i AP ECR H R

@

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

et i 6

B 4532 B R T 1T AR D
{0 1 4R 4L SRR B4R
T 2 5 0 o IR B
ZEREEREATE
ZEE -

AR H i i

BHRE BN AR
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

2013

(@)

As stated in note 4(a)(ii) above, on 16 August 2013, the
Group acquired the interest of Jia Rong, through the
Income Right SP Agreement dated 25 June 2013 entered
with Jia Rong and the owners of Jia Rong. Pursuant to
the Income Right SP Agreement, the Group acquired the
right to receive all the income arising from the business of
Jia Rong (including, but not limited to, the income arising
from the holding of the equity interest in Guangdong
Xilong).

Jia Rong is an investment holding company, together with
its 100% owned subsidiary, Guangdong Xilong (collectively
referred to as “Jia Rong Group”) are principally engaged
in property development in the PRC. Jia Rong Group
was acquired so as to enhance the Group’s property
development operations.

The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding
the lack of equity ownership, in substance, based on
the Income Right SP Agreement, the Group has power
over Jia Rong and Guangdong Xilong that gives it the
ability to direct the relevant activities of Jia Rong Group.
Accordingly, Jia Rong and Guangdong Xilong are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group.
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41. WeHERHE A E @

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

2013 (continued)

(@)

(continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Jia
Rong Group acquired as at its date of acquisition is as

follows:

“F-=5 B

@) (&)

™

PR B ER S EA A B A&
ENBERKERNAFELN

HK$'000
FAET

Net assets acquired: FrisiE e & =5E -
Properties for sale under development BRPTEYE 711,900
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TARFRIE ~ 7] R E A FEWRIA 17,700
Bank and cash balances IRITRIA SRR 41
Accounts payable FERTARER (78,829)
Accruals and other payables FERHE R & B e FRIE (26,630)
Other borrowings HAb &R (23,879)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIEAE (144,796)
Provision for contingent liability SARBERE (33,959)

421,548
Goodwill = 18,011
Satisfied by cash VAR & 2+ 439,559
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W E A MRS HFEE
Cash consideration paid BRRERE 439,559

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

P 2R e hIReFHEERR

(41)

439,518



41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

2013 (continued)

@)

(continued)

A provision for contingent liability of HK$33,959,000
arising on the business combination has been recognised.
On 30 July 2013, Jia Rong pledged the entire issued
capital of Guangdong Xilong to a bank regarding a
short term loan facility of RMB500,000,000 of which
RMB160,000,000 was granted to Guangdong Xilong
and RMB340,000,000 was granted to, a related party,
Guangzhou Zhuguang Property (in relation to two short
term loans with principal sum of RMB250,000,000
and RMB90,000,000, respectively). Hence, the Group
recognised a contingent liability assumed in the business
combination at the acquisition date as the Group has a
present obligation arising from the pledge of the entire
issued capital of Guangdong Xilong. On 27 August 2013,
the Group further pledged certain of Guangdong Xilong’s
properties for sale under development to a bank for the
aforesaid bank loan facility. On 25 December 2013, one
of the loans with principal sum of RMB250,000,000
was fully settled by Guangzhou Zhuguang Property.
Hence, as at 31 December 2013, the loan principal
sum due by Guangzhou Zhuguang Property reduced to
RMB90,000,000.

41.
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. WCHERELE 2 F) e
(continued)
2013 (continued) ZE—-ZfF ()
(@)  (continued) (@) (%)
The movements in the provision for contingent liability of BREARE_ZT—=F1+=
the Group from the date of acquisition to 31 December A=+—H8 X&BELAEE
2013 are set out below: L BEEEHEHIT ¢
Contingent liability
arising on
business
combination
EBEHEE
ZHAREE
HK$'000
FHTT
Fair value adjustment on business combination A& 6 2 A F(EHE 33,959
Reductions resulting from settlement PRI RS v 455
without cost and amortisation FREEE 2 HR (24,342)
Exchange differences fEH =58 116
At 31 December 2013 R-FE—Z=Z+ZH=+—H 9,733

The directors are of the opinion that the goodwill arising
on the acquisition of Jia Rong Group is attributable to the
anticipated future operating synergies from the business
combination.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$384,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as expenses in the
year, within the “administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Jia Rong Group’s contribution of turnover and results to
the Group from the date of acquisition to 31 December
2013 are as follows:

EERRPBERERELD
BEEXEAHHBEHRKL
EWFRIERAR -

1 B AR B R AN 49 384,000 B T2
REERERE - LREGFEEE
wR[THRER]BEAERRA
FARY -

EXREEBANRBEEE_F
—=F+ZA=+—HBHAXKE
BERBMEEZERWT

HK$’'000

FHETT

Turnover ] —
Loss [E518 37,846



41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

2013 (continued)

@)

2012

(continued)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2018, total Group turnover for the year would have been
approximately HK$280,880,000 and loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,290,269,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of the turnover and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2013, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 16
January 2012, the Group acquired from the Company’s
director, Mr. Chu Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi)
the entire issued share capital of Profaith International.
The consideration was satisfied by the issuance of
437,453,000 new ordinary shares of the Company.
Profaith International is an investment holding company,
together with its 100% owned subsidiaries, Ever Crown
Corporation Limited and Guangzhou Dong Gang
(collectively referred to as “Profaith International Group”)
are principally engaged in property development.

The acquisition was completed on 7 May 2012. Profaith
International Group was acquired so as to enhance the
Group’s property development operations.

41.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

W b B I8 2 ) )

—F-=5 (B

(@)
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. WCHERELE 2 F) e
(continued)
2012 (continued) ZE—ZF (#)
(b)  (continued) (b) (%)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of PR B0 B (5 B R R B A AT 3
Profaith International Group acquired as at its date of FIEERBERKEANATF
acquisition is as follows: (ERCNNE
HK$'000
T
Net assets acquired: FrisiE e & =5E -
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BN 4,319
Intangible asset BEE 37,618
Prepaid land lease payments A T EFIE 52,225
Properties for sale under development BRPTEYE 403,564
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFIR -« 518 REALEWEIR 1,983
Bank and cash balances RITRIRESER 3,299
Accruals and other payables FERTE A & B A FRIE (132,454)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE (94,733)
275,821
Goodwill = 4,149
279,970
Satisfied by: PN IS
Issue of 437,453,000 new ordinary shares of B£1T 437,453,000 PR AN A &)
the Company, at fair value g mATE 279,970
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEBEEERNIRSRAFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriEmIR e MR SEIRE 3,299
The directors are of the opinion that the goodwill arising EERRANBREHEEEEE
on the acquisition of Profaith International Group is ENEEREBSHBEAR
attributable to the anticipated future operating synergies KRG ERERER -
from the business combination.
The fair value of the 437,453,000 ordinary shares of ERENRKREZETH
the Company issued as the consideration paid was 437,453,000 Bz A~ 2 7] & @AY
determined on the basis of the closing market price of the RNEETERERREBR®

Company’s ordinary shares on the acquisition date. WEEAMKMERETE -



41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

2012 (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$497,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as expenses in the
prior year, within the “administrative expenses” line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 23
September 2012, the Group acquired from its ultimate
holding company, Rong De, the entire issued share capital
of Ai De. The consideration comprised the issuance of
749,533,000 new ordinary shares of the Company and
cash consideration of approximately HK$1,000. Ai De is
an investment holding company, together with its 100%
direct interest in Top Perfect Development Limited and
70% indirect interest in Guangzhou Yu Ying Property
Company Limited* (“Guangzhou Yu Ying”) (collectively
referred to as “Ai De Group”) are principally engaged in
property development. Ai De Group was acquired so as
to enhance the Group’s property development operations.

The acquisition was completed on 3 December
2012. A gain on bargain purchase of approximately
HK$150,438,000 was generated from this business
combination. The directors are of the opinion that the
gain on bargain purchase was mainly attributable to the
decline in the closing market price of the Company’s
ordinary shares from the date of entering into the sale and
purchase agreement to the acquisition date.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.

41.
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. WCHERELE 2 F) e
(continued)
2012 (continued) ZE—ZF (#)

€  (continued) (©) (%)

PrffEm B R E A B A&
ENBERKERNAFELN

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Ai De Group acquired as at its date of acquisition is as

follows: N
HK$'000
FAET
Net assets acquired: FrisiE e & =5E -
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BN 169
Properties for sale under development BRPFEME 1,601,534
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENRE -~ 518 REALEYEIR 350,894
Current tax assets BVERTR IR & = 4,461
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITIFK 1,485
Bank and cash balances RITRBSER 271
Accounts payable FEATARER (104,376)
Proceeds received from pre-sale of properties TEEMZEWE 2 TS FIE (233,308)
Accruals and other payables JEETE R R EAMEFRIE (24,993)
Bank borrowings RITIEK (468,270)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE (96,777)
1,031,090
Non-controlling interests I (93,641)
Gain on bargain purchase in respect UK BB P B A B 2 s
of business combination (150,438)
787,011
Satisfied by: ATRBN AT
Issue of 749,533,000 new ordinary shares 2417 749,533,000 f& A2 &)
of the Company, at fair value gk ZATE 787,010
Consideration payable FERIRE 1
Total consideration BR(E 787,011
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHESMIRSIMAFE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrisiERIiRe RIREEEIER 271



41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

2012 (continued)

©

(continued)

The fair value of the 749,533,000 ordinary shares of the
Company issued as part of the consideration paid was
determined on the basis of the closing market price of the
Company’s ordinary shares on the acquisition date.

The non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition
date were measured by the non-controlling shareholder’s
proportionate share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of Ai De Group at the acquisition
date.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$1,125,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as expenses in the
prior year, within the “administrative expenses” line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Pursuant to a share transfer agreement dated 18
December 2012, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Guangzhou City Rungi Property Company
Limited* (“Guangzhou City Rungi”) from Guangdong
Zhuguang, being 95% equity owner, and an independent
third party, being 5% equity owner, at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$11,931,000.

Guangdong Zhuguang is considered as a related
company of the Group as the ultimate controlling party of
the Company, Mr. Liao Tengjia, has significant influence in
Guangdong Zhuguang.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.

41.
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 41. WCHERELE 2 F) e
(continued)
2012 (continued) ZE—ZF (#)
(d)  (continued) ©) (%)
The acquisition was completed on 18 December 2012 WHEEBER_Z——_F+_H
for the Group’s future property development purposes. TNANBZK - AT AREER
Since Guangzhou City Rungi had not commenced its REMEERE - AREMNME
business and its major assets are mainly receivables A AFIREE EFXE2EE
and bank balances, the directors are of the opinion that FTEAERFIAMIRITES
the acquisition of Guangzhou City Rungi is in substance WEFRABWEREMNTERE
acquisition of assets, instead of an acquisition of business, BRWEEE MEREZE
and therefore is excluded from the scope of Hong Kong % AT ERBT RS LE
Financial Reporting Standard 3 (Revised) “Business AIZE 31 (&185]) | 2755 0t
Combinations” (“HKFRS 3”). The purchase consideration (IEAMB@mELERZEIE])
of the Group was allocated to the individual identifiable MEEAN - NREEMNBEERE
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition o e = P U Y B B AT 3 R A&
date as follows: ERRIEREEN&ED
T~
HK$'000
FAT
Net assets acquired: FrushE 2 EE A -
Other receivables E b g IA 66,531
Bank balance RITHE SR 9
Other payables H M pERIFRIE (54,609)
Satisfied by cash AR @ 2+ 11,931
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W E A M IR SR HF 8
Cash consideration paid BERNRERE 11,931
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Frig v IRe KRS EEIEE 9)
11,922

42. ERIFBIERS

(a) FRABEME  BEMIEL
828,000 B THEEHERMEE
finance lease. & e

42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@) Additions to property, plant and equipment during the
year of approximately HK$828,000 were financed by a



42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

43.

(continued)

(b) During the year, the Senior Notes Il with a principal
amount of HK$7,800,000 together with the due and
unpaid interest of approximately HK$15,600,000 were
settled by the issue and allotment of 10,312,458 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each by the Company upon exercise of
warrants (note 34(c)).

() During the year, 558,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each were issued by the Company to Quan
Xing on 31 December 2013 as part of the consideration
for acquisition of 50% equity interest in Joygain. The
fair value of the Consideration Shares amounted to
HK$1,835,820,000 determined on the basis of the
closing market price of the Company’s ordinary shares of
HK$3.29 each (note 25(a)).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans
entered into by purchasers of the Group’s properties as follows:

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

42. FRIFBERS @

43.

(b) FR - RKe £ 7,800,000 T
ZAERERIER | H &R F
£ #715,600,0007% 7T B A 1T{E
RIREFE % - AR RFLATEST
M2 8510,312,458 I8 & AR H B
01 T EmAR 2 7 A A (Bt
FE34(c)) °

© FR ARAR_ZT—ZF
+—_A=+t—BmEEET
558,000,000 % & % E1{E0.1%5
T2 EBRERIIBLESE 2
50% & 1 2 # o KB - KER
9 2 A V18 A1,835,820,000 7%
TN A E R ER3.29%8
T2 WM EMEE (HiE25@) o

AR FR

AEEAAKRENE 2 ETEN ZHE
BERMES TRITR THRIBRMER
RN TR

2013 2012
—E-= —EF——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage  #LE S {E A 2 ILIBR AR E
facilities utilised by purchasers MIRITIRHIELR 860,245 288,383

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there are any
defaults on the mortgages, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interests and penalties owed by the defaulting purchasers to
the banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title
and possession of the related properties. The guarantees will be
released upon issuance of the purchasers’ property ownership
certificates and completion of the relevant registration of the
mortgaged properties.

RIFERZ G WIRBHREOR
o AEEARBEEROETERR
T ARBEZEBASER R B KR E
e REBEZ RARZERBYEAE
EFRENBRE - BRERENENE
BV EEHEEE M STRIRIBYMEDN
BRABCERER o
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43.

44.

45.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 43.

At the reporting date, the directors do not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Group under the above
guarantees.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44.

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

AR @)

RBERH  ESRAANEERE L

RMERRENEE T -

BRERNEHRBHZAFELTE
R FEI BB R TR o

BEAESE

AEENRERROEARENT -

2013 2012
—E—=f —B—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Property, plant and equipment Y% B RS
— Contracted but not provided for — BETHVEREE 5,443 3,749
Joygain Acquisition (note 25(a)) LRWEEIR (FiFE25(a))
— Contracted but not provided for — BEJAEREE 1,599 —
7,042 3,749
LEASE COMMITMENTS 45. PR YE
As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s total future minimum lease RZE—=F+-A=+—H " BELF

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as

ARGHE SR A SBERN 2 RRKIE

follows: HAFIBIT
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
Within one year —EMNR 9,472 1,389
In the second to fifth years inclusive E-EZFAF (BEEEMF) 84,271 1,852
After five years AFLALE 303,498 —
397,241 3,241

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for Hong Kong and PRC premises.

REMOFREASERERE R E

WEEMNZHEE -



46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions and balances with its related parties:

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel compensation

The key management personnel of the Group comprises
all directors, details of their emoluments were disclosed in
note 14 to the financial statements.

Transactions and balances with related
parties

U

During the year, the Group’s principal place of
business in the PRC was provided by Guangdong
Zhuguang for which no charge was made.

Guangdong Zhuguang is considered as a related
company of the Group as the ultimate controlling
party of the Company, Mr. Liao Tengjia, has
significant influence in Guangdong Zhuguang.

As disclosed in note 41(a) to the financial
statements, during the year ended December
2013, the Group pledged the entire issued
capital of its subsidiary, Guangdong Xilong and
certain of Guangdong Xilong’s properties for sale
under development with total carrying amount
of approximately HK$234,005,000 to a bank
regarding a loan facility of RMB500,000,000
of which RMB160,000,000 was granted to
Guangdong Xilong and RMB340,000,000 was
granted to Guangzhou Zhuguang Property,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guangdong
Zhuguang. Guangzhou Zhuguang Property is
considered as a related party of the Group as the
ultimate controlling party of the Company, Mr. Liao
Tengjia, has significant influence in Guangdong
Zhuguang and Guangzhou Zhuguang Property.
The aforesaid bank loan facility was under the
guarantees of the Company’s directors, Mr. Chu
Hing Tsung (alias Mr. Zhu Qing Yi) and Mr. Huang
Jia Jue; Guangdong Zhuguang and a director
of Guangdong Zhuguang. As at 31 December
2013, the loan principal sum due by Guangzhou
Zhuguang Property reduced to RMB90,000,000.

46.
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46. BN H ARG ®

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Transactions and balances with related
parties (continued)

(i)

Included in accruals are amounts in total of
HK$810,000 (2012: HK$260,000) representing
accrued directors’ emoluments due to the
Company’s directors. The accrued directors’
emoluments are unsecured, interest-free and are
settled in cash.

Included in other payables are amounts
of approximately HK$18,253,000 (2012:
HK$7,881,000), HK$1,347,000 (2012: Nil) and
HK$1,118,000 (2012: Nil) due to Guangdong
Zhuguang, Guangzhou Zhuguang Property and
Guangzhou Zhuguang Bay Property Company
Limited* (“Guangzhou Zhuguang Bay Property”)
respectively.

Guangdong Zhuguang, Guangzhou Zhuguang
Property and Guangzhou Zhuguang Bay Property
are considered as related parties of the Group
as the ultimate controlling party of the Company,
Mr. Liao Tengjia, has significant influence in
Guangdong Zhuguang, Guangzhou Zhuguang
Property and Guangzhou Zhuguang Bay Property.

* English name is translated for identification purposes
only.

(b)  BRLBA W O 2 A By I i i

(&)

(i)

(iv)

FEETE R+ & $£810,000
BLT(ZF — = F:
260,000/ 7T) 2 HIE B
ERTARRREE ZJE
FTEEFM EATES
FAEER 28K
RS AT o

H b & RIEAFH L
18,253,000 7T (ZZF—
—4F :7,881,00087T)
1,347,000 7L (=& —
Z 4 &) 1,118,000
BT (ZT—ZF: &)
ZHRBEDRAENER
Bt BMER K EHE
R EMTERLE R E
BRAF ([EMERIE
BHE ) Z3IH -

HRA R B &EERTS
BREELSENRERIK
X BMRAEHE R
BEMKTEEWERS
EAREN FLER
R BMEREEHE
Ko & M BRI & 55 3 EE 4%
BRAEEE ) -

* R A TBEEER -
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BHH TR G )

(continued)
(b) Transactions and balances with related (b) BEBAB T 2R 5 K&k
parties (continued) ()
v) The below maximum amounts due from related () FA - TR R
parties are included in prepayments, deposits and 77 RIEEF ATEA OB -
other receivables during the year. & R EMEWHKIE 2

Ra & e

Balance at Balance at Maximum
31 December 31 December amount
2013 2012 outstanding
RZIF—=% RZZE—Z%  during the year
Name Terms +-A=+-B +ZHR=+-H ERREERN
A FH8 H Bk B e Ene#
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET
Guangdong Zhuguang Unsecured, interest-free and - — 394,298
BRKAL no fixed repayment terms
BIEW R ENEETEENR
Guangzhou City De Xin Unsecured, interest-free and - - 381,567
Property Development no fixed repayment terms
Company Limited* EER - 2EREETEENR
(Guangzhou City De Xin”)
BMNmEEEHEERLAR
([EMmER])
Guangdong Zhuguang and Guangzhou City De EAA/NEIES §-$ 21 931
Xin are considered as related parties of the Group BREXERBERIEL
as the ultimate controlling party of the Company, FEMNTEEBEEERXR
Mr. Liao Tengjia, has significant influence in FEN ARERKRY
Guangdong Zhuguang and Guangzhou City De FEMNMESEEAR
Xin. SEET -
* English name is translated for identification purposes * RHTBEMRER -

only.
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. BT AR G )

(continued)
(b) Transactions and balances with related (b)  BLBH BT Z A 5 I A ik
parties (continued) ()

(vi)

At 31 December 2012, included in other
receivables is an amount of HK$4,662,000 due
from Guangzhou Zhu Fu Property Investment
Company Limited* (“Guangzhou Zhu Fu”). During
the year ended 31 December 2013, the balance
was fully repaid.

Guangzhou Zhu Fu is considered as a related

party of the Group as the ultimate controlling party

of the Company, Mr. Liao Tengjia, has significant

influence in Guangzhou Zhu Fu.

* English name is translated for identification purposes

(Vi)

R—ZZE——F+=A
=+—8  EMERKK
TE A 4,662,000 78 7T 2 3K
B A EWE N E B
EXRERRAR ([EM
KEl) }E-BHE-ZT
—=#+=-RA=+—H
LHFE B EHE
e

BN AR B &R TS
BREEXSEREMKE
BEERFEN Al
BEMIKE R R A EE
ARG )T o

* WA TREHEHS -

only.
» —
47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 47. FEME A T

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 are R-ZE—=F+_A=+T—HEZEWE
as follows: RNEIZFFBEWT

Place of

incorporation

or registration/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary operations Issued and ownership Principal

FEM A LR paid up capital interest/voting power activities
WBLR £ £ 31k ERITRAZKA AR RERENL TEXH

Direct Indirect
EH# B
Nam Fong International Group Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$10,000 100% — Investment holding
A EREEBR AR KEELHE /B LBk 10,000 7T REER
Zhuguang Group Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% — Investment holding
KA EEARAR KEELHE/BE LTdR1ET REER
South Trend Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% — Investment holding
MEZRER AR KEELHE/BE LTdR1ET REER
Zhuguang Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
KAEE (BE) BRDOA BB Ll BT REER
Guangzhou City Runfa Property Company PRC RMB132,880,000 — 100% Property development
Limited * * 23 AR 132,880,0007T MELE

BN EEEEERAR ¢



PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

A} —

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. FEMEAE o

Place of

incorporation

or registration/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary operations Issued and ownership Principal

MM paid up capital interest/voting power activities
MBLAREMH BEIE EETRERRE EEEs REREN L TEEH

Direct Indirect
EH#% %
Zhang Tong Holdings Limited (Note (a)) BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
RBERARAR (M3 (@) RERLHES /% LTdR1ET BEER
Rainbow High Holdings Limited (Note (a)) BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
RIERARAR (Fi3 (@) RERLHES /% LTdR1ET BEER
Talent Wide Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
BEERARAR RERLHES/BF ak1ET BEER
Gains Wide Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
MEZERER AR RERLHES/BF ak1ET BEER
Graceful Link Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
BEBRLR B/ H LRl AT NERE
Light-Up Investments Limited (Note (a)) Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Property investment
SEREBRAT (F (@) g/ L1k 10,0007 WERE
Big Wisdom Limited (Note (a)) Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
REERLFA (@) B/ H Lak2ET MERE
Diamond Crown Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
BREBRAA &5/ Lak2ET MERE
Speedy Full Limited Hong Kong/PRC Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property investment
BRARAR &5,/ LidRko BT MERE
Cheng Chang Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$55 - 100% Investment holding
HEERARAT RERLHES,/BF LidRosET BEER
Fully Wise Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
BEREFRAR BE LA 1,000,000 T REZR
Guangdong Hailian Building Co. Limited " PRC US$99,000,000 — 80% Property development
EREHAEBRAR" H 99,000,000% 7T MEER
Profaith International Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1,000 - 100% Investment holding
REEFRZERERAT RERLHES /% Li®BR1,000%T BAER
Ever Crown Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
BEREARAR B L@k BT BAER
Guangzhou Dong Gang He Zhong Property PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% Property development
Company Limited * * H AR™100,000,0007T MEER

BMNRAEEREHERRAR !
Ai De Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 — 100% Investment holding
BEREBRAR KEELHE /A LdR1ET REER
Top Perfect Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
REEERARAT BB Ll BT REER
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A} —
47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. FEME AT @)
Place of
incorporation
or registration/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary operations Issued and ownership Principal
MR paid up capital interest/voting power activities
i NEE-2 BEIE EETRERRE s REREN L TEEH
Direct Indirect
EH# %
Guangzhou Yu Ying Property PRC RMB160,000,000 — 70% Property development
Company Limited ~* H AR ™ 160,000,0007T (ownership MELR
BMNHREMERRDA ~ interest)
(FrEmRkEs)
60%
(voting power)
(RER)
East Orient Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
ERREARAR B L@k BT BEER
Guangzhou City Runaji Property PRC RMB10,000,000 — Note (c) Property development
Company Limited * * i AR10,000,0007C Bzt (o) MELERE
BMTERMEEFRAR
Feng Shun Jia Rong Trading Company Limited * * PRC RMB1,000,000 — Note (b) Investment holding
LIEERESHBERAR HE AR 1,000,0007T R REER
Guangdong Xilong Property Development PRC RMB120,000,000 — Note (b) Property development
Company Limited & * EP AR®120,000,0007C g MELE

ERERFHEREERAF"

# Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise under the PRC
law.

Registered as a sino-foreign contractual cooperative enterprise
under the PRC law.

~ Registered as a sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under
the PRC law.

B Registered as a company with limited liability under the PRC law.

English name is translated for identification purposes only.

‘ RBPEEREMA—MINEBE

X o

" RIBPBEDEREM A —BHINRL

AAELRE -

~ RiEPEEEEMA BTG E

RS

- RBPEEREMA—MAREE

2T -

i X BREEMRHR -



47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note:

(a) The assets and liabilities of Rainbow High and Zhang Tong
and their respective subsidiaries, Big Wisdom and Light-Up
Investments were classified as disposal groups classified as held
for sale in 2018.

(b) The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding the lack
of equity ownership, in substance, based on the Income Right
SP Agreement, the Group has control over Jia Rong and
Guangdong Xilong. Accordingly, Jia Rong and Guangdong Xilong
are accounted for as the Company’s 100% indirect subsidiaries.

(c) Pursuant to a share transfer agreement dated 18 December
2012, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in Guangzhou
City Runqi, a company with limited liability under the PRC
law in 2012. In October 2013, the approval from the relevant
government authority for its conversion from a limited liability
company to a foreign enterprise under the PRC law was issued.
Up to the date of these financial statements, the Group is in
the process of filing with the relevant government authorities
in respect thereof. The directors are of the opinion that, in
substance, based on the aforesaid share transfer agreement,
the Group has control over Guangzhou City Rungi. Accordingly,
Guangzhou City Rungi is accounted for as the Company’s 100%
indirect subsidiary.

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR

47. FEFE AN @)

B

(@)

LRI KRBEERFERREEE

B kERBAREZENMERR
REEZEREZEERAGBR
T-=FHROBA/FEZHEARS -

BEERN BELEESMEE
BERLE REKRGEEEE B
AEEHERNERSRERER
2 o Hit - ERKEREER
B AR R BIHEE 100% 1 0 2 f #
M AR -

BEASHA-_ZT——F+-A+N
HzBRMHERGZE  AEBREE
MHER (—RKR T ——FRIE
FEEEKR I ZBREEAR) Z
EHBE-R-_T—=F+7
R R H A AR IR A2 S
BERECAREANELEZH
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FEME A @

TREJHAKBEMSHEERNZIFE
Pergas (1SR EzE]) ZHBARE
# o MBERBBREARELEHE 22

47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following table shows information on subsidiaries that have
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before

inter-company eliminations. BH o
Name Guangdong Hailian Guangzhou Yu Ying
&% EEEH EMEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
5% —E-CF —%-zf “ECF
Principal place of business PRC PRC PRC PRC
TERLIE HE HE HE e
% of ownership interests/voting rights FAEREREEN
held by NCI FrgiEEs/ REREAL 20% 20% 30%/40% 30%/40%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TiEx T T
At 31 December: R+ZA=+-A:
Non-current assets FRBEE 7,327 40 309 169
Current assets mEEE 3,692,106 1,849,824 2,996,812 2,024,178
Non-current liabilties FreaE (1,272,451) (342,309) (96,776) (133,775)
Current liabilities MEAE (1,020,523) (346,779) (2,488,430) (1,586,389)
Net assets BE%E 1,406,459 1,160,788 411,915 304,183
Accumulated NCI ZET IR ES 281,292 282,157 123,575 91,255
Year ended 31 December: BET_RA=t-HLEE:
Revenue Wezs - - - -
Loss BB (92,065) (8,550) (35,296) (7,990)
Total comprehensive income FENESE (49,494) 3,947 (33,130) (7,956)
Loss allocated to NCI DI RER B (18,413) (1,710) (10,589) (2,397)
Net cash (used in)/generated from weiEy (R /EE
operating activities ReFE (2,190,388) (354,508) 299,600 7,266
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (F1A) /EL
investing activities ReFE (6,200) 11 (133) 48
Net cash generated from BEEHELRSFE
financing activities 2,203,001 365,269 11,003 -




48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

@)

On 1 January 2014, the Group, as the intended
purchaser, and Guangdong Zhuguang, as the intended
vendor, entered into a memorandum of understanding
(the “2014 MOU-1") in relation to the proposed acquisition
of 98% equity interest of Xinjiang Zhuguang Scenic
Property Development Company Limited*. Guangdong
Zhuguang is considered as a related party of the Group
as the ultimate controlling party of the Company, Mr.
Liao Tengjia, has significant influence over Guangdong
Zhuguang. Pursuant to the 2014 MOU-1, RMB300 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$381,567,000) refundable
deposit was made to Guangdong Zhuguang. In the event
that a sale and purchase agreement in relation to the
proposed acquisition is not entered into by the Group,
Guangdong Zhuguang shall, within two business days
upon receipt of written notice, refund the RMB300 million
deposit to the Group.

Up to the date of these financial statements, no legally
binding agreement in relation to the proposed acquisition
has been entered into by the Group (save for certain
provisions relating to the deposit of RMB300 million,
confidentiality, exclusivity and governing law under the
2014 MOU-1).

On 1 January 2014, the Group, as the intended
purchaser, and Beijing Rong Zhi Property Development
Company Limited* (“Rong Zhi”), as the intended vendor,
entered into a memorandum of understanding (the “2014
MOU-2") in relation to the proposed acquisition of the
land use rights over a parcel of land at Xianghe District,
He Bei Province, the PRC. Pursuant to the 2014 MOU-
2 and a supplemented agreement dated 20 March
2014, approximately RMB332,669,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$423,118,000) refundable deposit was
made to Rong Zhi. In the event that a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the proposed acquisition is not
entered into by the Group, Rong Zhi shall, within two
business days upon receipt of written notice, refund the
RMB332,669,000 deposit to the Group.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.

48.

PR 2 Jie 4 I A7 PR 24
SR SRR
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48.

49.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(b) (continued)

Up to the date of these financial statements, no legally
binding agreement in relation to the proposed acquisition
has been entered into by the Group (save for certain
provisions relating to the deposit of approximately
RMB332,669,000, confidentiality, exclusivity and
governing law under the 2014 MOU-2).

(c) On 16 January 2014, the Group, as the intended
purchaser, and Rong Zhi, as the intended vendor, entered
into a memorandum of understanding (the “2014 MOU-
3”) in relation to the proposed acquisition of 100% equity
interest in a target company. Pursuant to the 2014
MOU-3, RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$254,378,000) was made to Rong Zhi. However, no
definitive agreement was entered and hence, the sum
was fully repaid to the Group in March 2014.

(d) On 14 March 2014, the Group, as the purchaser and
Sanya Zhuguang Investment Company Limited* (“Sanya
Zhuguang”), as the vendor, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of 100%
equity interest of Sanya Lantian Investment Company
Limited*, at a consideration of RMB200,000,000. As
such, RMB199,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$251,839,000) was paid by the Group in relation to
the said acquisition. Sanya Zhuguang is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guangdong Zhuguang. Sanya Zhuguang is
considered as a related party of the Group as the ultimate
controlling party of the Company, Mr. Liao Tengjia, has
significant influence in Guangdong Zhuguang and Sanya
Zhuguang. Up to the date of these financial statements,
the acquisition is still in progress.

(e) On 26 January 2014, RMB80 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$101,751,000) was paid through an
authorised agent for a potential property project. Up to the
date of these financial statements, no definitive agreement
has been entered into by the Group.

* English name is translated for identification purposes only.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 49.

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2014.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A S 5 B

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last ~ FNERBIMASERNBERBFE 2 ¥E - EE
five years is as follows: RAafE

Year ended 31 December
BE+-_RA=t+—HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—T-=& T —T——% —T-TF _TTHhF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET FET FAET FET

RESULTS E
Turnover e 280,880 571,167 57,899 7,855 7,761
(Loss)/Profit before tax BREAT (B18) /R (963,830) 234,846 18,225 8,460 9,497
Income tax PSR (3,815) (56,604) (10,267) (3,319) (2,235)
(Loss)/Profit for the year AFEE (B8) /&5F (967,645) 178,242 7,958 5,141 7,262
Attributable to: AR ALRE
Owners of the Company RATHEEA (938,643) 182,349 16,659 5,141 7,262
Non-controlling interests FEE R (29,002) 4,107 (8,701) — —

(967,645) 178,242 7,958 5141 7,262

As at 31 December
W+ZA=+-—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ZF-Zf —T-—-F —FT——F —T-TF —TTNH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FET FET FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #ERE&R

Total assets EEBE 11,539,112 6,104,047 3,788,767 1,352,888 542,854
Total liabilities BEMQE (7,806,875) (3,499,062) (2,535,740)  (392,620) (25,507)
Net assets BEFE 3,732,237 2,604,985 1,253,027 960,268 517,347
Equity attributable to: AR AL :
Owners of the Company ZA/NSTZEPN 3,327,370 2,281,573 1,094,713 960,268 517,347
Non-controlling interests FEIER R 404,867 323,412 158,314 — —

Total equity BEn 3,732,237 2,604,985 1,253,027 960,268 517,347
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LUE ST

Attributable
beneficial interest

Investment properties to the Group GFA™ Type Lease term
BEME AEFELERELZ BEEEFEAX Rl HEEH
1. Levels 31-33, 35-39, 100% 18,184 H Medium lease

40-43 and 45 i hEHE

Royal Mediterranean Hotel

No. 518 Tianhe Road

Tianhe District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

The PRC

A BB S

£31-33 + 35-39

40-43 }2 45

MEERE

PN

FOM B 518 5%

Attributable Estimated

Properties for sale under beneficial interest date of
development to the Group GFA™ Type completion
BRPEEYE AEFELERELZ BEEEFEAX &Rl fhEtEMR B
2. Zhukong International 80% 133,326 C/CP/O 2015

Lot A2-1, w128 2015 4F

Zhujiang New Town
Tianhe District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
The PRC
IRIZBUBR AR 0
PEERE

BN TR [
RO A2-1 335
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Attributable Estimated
Properties for sale under beneficial interest date of
development to the Group GFA™ Type completion
BRPGFEYE AEFELERELZ BEEEFEAX Rl fhETE R B

3. Yunling Lake 100% 124,521 R/HN 2015
Provincial Highway S355 line T/ 85l 2015 4F
Jiekou Street
Conghua
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
The PRC
E8)H
PEERE
B M
e mEes;

418 S355 #R b ]

4, Yujing Scenic Garden 70% 886,216 R/C/CP/S  Between 2014 to
Provincial Highway G105 line &/ 8/1%/ R 2018
Jiulibu District 20145 &
Jiangpu Town 2018 4F
Conghua
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
The PRC
=LK TEE
HEERE
&N
RALITHE
NEZ R
48 G105 R HDER

5. Tianhu Yuijing 100% 245,182 R/C/CP 2016
Shui Di Village T/1/1F 20164
Jiulibu District
Wenquan Town
Conghua
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
The PRC
R =
FEIERE
&N T
I HEnE
NEHE
IKE AT HER
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES

Y=

Properties for sale under

development

BRPTEME

Attributable

beneficial interest
to the Group GFA™
AEFELERELZ BEEEFEAX

Estimated
date of
Type completion

&5l fE=H&EM B

6. Central Park
Lot H3-3

Zhujiang New Town

Tianhe Distri
Guangzhou
Guangdong
The PRC

ct

Province

BRI B R

TREERE

FE N T KA [
TROT T H3-3 1 158

R-Residential
F—EE

C-Commercial

B —AxE

100% 36,559

CP-Car park H-Hotel O-Office
fF—12EE JHE—AF 2—BFE

S/C/CP 2015
Bk, 1= 20154

V-Villa S-Service Apartment
Bl — B R — IR &



WWW.ZHUGUANG.COM.HK

ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
wogee ey SROG PR B A B A AT
Iﬁ # ;E ﬂz (incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

ZHUGUANG HOLDINGS (R A Mk AR )




